
UIdaho Law
Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

4-1-2011

Erickson v. McKee Clerk's Record v. 4 Dckt. 38130

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu/
idaho_supreme_court_record_briefs

This Court Document is brought to you for free and open access by Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law. It has been accepted for inclusion in Idaho
Supreme Court Records & Briefs by an authorized administrator of Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law. For more information, please contact
annablaine@uidaho.edu.

Recommended Citation
"Erickson v. McKee Clerk's Record v. 4 Dckt. 38130" (2011). Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs. 3086.
https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu/idaho_supreme_court_record_briefs/3086

https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu?utm_source=digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu%2Fidaho_supreme_court_record_briefs%2F3086&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu/idaho_supreme_court_record_briefs?utm_source=digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu%2Fidaho_supreme_court_record_briefs%2F3086&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu/idaho_supreme_court_record_briefs?utm_source=digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu%2Fidaho_supreme_court_record_briefs%2F3086&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu/idaho_supreme_court_record_briefs?utm_source=digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu%2Fidaho_supreme_court_record_briefs%2F3086&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu/idaho_supreme_court_record_briefs/3086?utm_source=digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu%2Fidaho_supreme_court_record_briefs%2F3086&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
mailto:annablaine@uidaho.edu


WCLE 4. 

IN THE 

SUPREl\ffi COURT 
OFTBB 

STATE OF IDAHO 

MAUREEN ERICKSON. 

Personal Representat~~. 

Appellant. 

vs. 

JEROME S MCKEE. 

Respondent. 11M 

First App.aUd from tA. DUtrict Court of tA. _____ _ 
JtulioiCll DUtrict for til Stile. of Id4Ao. m lind 

lor Shoshone County Count~ 

Fred Gibler 
HOft.. DUtrict Judg. 

Lloyd Herman 

Charles Dean 

Ji'il«I tAw __ _ ~ _____ ....... 1'_ 

----~--_+~~-----------C~k 



SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ..................................................................................... PAGE NO. 

VOLUME I 

APPLICATION FOR INFORMAL PROBATE OF WILL AND INFORMAL 
APPOINTMENT OF PR, FILED JANUARY 23,2006 ........................................ 1 

AFFIDAVIT OF BILL MCKEE, FILED JANUARY 23, 2006 ........................................ 5 

PRELIMINARY INVENTORY, FILED JANUARY 23,2006 ........................................ 7 

STATEMENT OF INFORMAL PROBATE AND INFORMAL 
APPOINTMENT OF PR, FILED JANUARY 24,2006 ........................................ 11 

LETTER TESTAMENTARY, FILED JANUARY 24,2006 ............................................ 14 

DEMAND FOR NOTICE, FILED WL Y 12, 2006 ........................................................... 15 

MOTION TO DISMISS PROBATE, FILED JANUARY 5, 2007 .................................... 19 

AFFIDAVIT OF JEROME MCKEE, FILED JANUARY 5, 2007 ................................... 21 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS PROBATE, 
FILED JANUARY 5, 2007 .................................................................................... 24 

MOTION FOR PARTIAL DISTRIBUTION, FILED JANUARY 16, 2007 .................... 28 

CORRECTED MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS 
PROBATE, FILED JANUARY 16,2007 .............................................................. 30 

CORRECTIONS TO MEMORADNUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO 
DISMISS PROBATE FILED JANUARY 5,2007, 
FILED JANUARY 16,2007 .................................................................................. 34 

OBJECTION TO PARTIAL DISTRIBUTION, FILED JANUARY 23,2007 ................. 36 

AFFIDAVIT OF BILL MCKEE, FILED MARCH 8, 2007 .............................................. 46 

MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO DISMISSAL, 
FILED MARCH 9, 2007 ........................................................................................ 50 

TABLE OF CONTENTS - 1 



SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ..................................................................................... PAGE NO. 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR PARTIAL 
DISTRIBUTION, FILED MARCH 9, 2007 .......................................................... 57 

SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM, FILED MARCH 12,2007 .................................. 61 

AFFIDAVIT OF MICHAEL BRANSTETTER, FILED MARCH 12, 2007 .................... 68 

MOTION TO STRIKE AFFIDAVIT OF BILL MCKEE, 
FILED MARCH 12, 2007 ...................................................................................... 85 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR PARTIAL 
DISTRIBUTION AND OPPOSING SUMMARY DISMISSAL, 
FILED MARCH 23, 2007 ...................................................................................... 89 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER, 
FILED APRIL 19, 2007 ......................................................................................... 95 

MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FILED APRIL 30, 2007 .................................... 99 

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT OF COURT'S DECISION FROM THE MARCH 
26,2007 HEARING, FILED APRIL 10, 2008 ...................................................... 101 

AMENDED MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FILED WL Y 29, 2009 ................. 104 

VOLUME II 

AFFIDAVIT OF LLOYD A HERMAN, FILED mL Y 29,2009 ..................................... 119 

AFFIDAVIT IN OPPOSITION TO AMENDED MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION, FILED AUGUST 11,2009 ............................................. 121 

MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO AMENDED MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION, FILED AUGUST 11,2009 ............................................. 156 

AFFIDAVIT IN OPPOSITION TO AMENDED MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION, FILED AUGUST 13,2009 ............................................. 167 

TABLE OF CONTENTS - 2 



SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ..................................................................................... PAGE NO. 

RESPONSE TO THE MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO AMENDED 
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FILED AUGUST 17,2009 ................... 171 

NOTICE OF APPEAL OF THE FIRST DECISION AND THE DECISION IN 
THE AMENDED MOTION TO RECONSIDER MADE BY 
MAGISTRATE JUDGE MCFADDEN, FILED OCTOBER 22,2009 ................. 183 

MOTION AND NOTICE OF MOTION TO DISMISS APPEAL, 
FILED NOVEMBER 18, 2009 .............................................................................. 208 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS APPEAL, 
FILED NOVEMBER 18, 2009 .............................................................................. 210 

RESPONSE TO THE MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO 
DISMISS APPEAL, FILED NOVEMBER 25, 2009 ............................................ 228 

REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS 
APPEAL, FILED DECEMBER 8, 2009 ................................................................ 251 

BRIEF ON APPEAL, FILED JANUARY 19, 2010 .......................................................... 267 

VOLUME III 

BRIEF ON APPEAL (CONTINUATION OF), FILED JANUARY 19,2010 .................. 320 

VOLUME IV 

BRIEF ON APPEAL (CONTINUATION OF), FILED JANUARY 19,2010 .................. 520 

JEROME MCKEE'S BRIEF ON APPEAL, FILED FEBRUARY 12,2010 .................... 666 

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF, FILED MARCH 4, 2010 .............................................. 686 

DECISION ON APPEAL, FILED MAY 18, 2010 ............................................................ 708 

TABLE OF CONTENTS - 3 



SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ..................................................................................... PAGE NO. 

MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FILED MAY 28,2010 ...................................... 710 

MEMORANDUM SUPPORTING MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, 
FILED JUNE 9, 2010 ............................................................................................. 713 

LETTER TO JUDGE MCFADDEN RE: REQUESTING HIM TO SIGN A 
JUDGMENT, RECEIVED ON JUNE 9, 2010 ...................................................... 722 

JUDGMENT NOT SIGNED BY JUDGE MCFADDEN, HE DECLINED TO 
SIGN, FILED JUNE 10, 2010 ................................................................................ 736 

MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION OF MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION OF DECISION ON APPEAL, 
FILED JUNE 21, 2020 ........................................................................................... 738 

REPLY TO MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION OF MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION OF DECISION ON APPEAL, 
FILED JULY 13, 2010 ........................................................................................... 743 

ORDER DENYING MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, 
FILED AUGUST 5, 2010 ....................................................................................... 752 

CLERK'S REMITTITUR, FILED AUGUST 26,2010 ..................................................... 754 

NOTICE OF APPEAL, FILED SEPTEMBER 14,2010 ................................................... 755 

NOTICE OF TRANSCRIPT LODGED (JOANN SCHALLER), 
FILED OCTOBER 18,2010 .................................................................................. 762 

NOTICE OF TRANSCRIPT LODGED (BYRL CINNAMON), 
FILED OCTOBER 19,2010 .................................................................................. 763 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE ................................................................................................. 764 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION ............................................................................................. 766 

TABLE OF CONTENTS - 4 



SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

INDEX OF RECORD .......................................................................................... PAGE NO. 

VOLUME I 

AFFIDAVIT OF BILL MCKEE, FILED JANUARY 23, 2006 ........................................ 5 

AFFIDAVIT OF BILL MCKEE, FILED MARCH 8, 2007 .............................................. 46 

AFFIDAVIT OF JEROME MCKEE, FILED JANUARY 5, 2007 ................................... 21 

AFFIDAVIT OF MICHAEL BRANSTETTER, FILED MARCH 12, 2007 .................... 68 

AMENDED MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FILED JULY 29, 2009 ................. 104 

APPLICATION FOR INFORMAL PROBATE OF WILL AND INFORMAL 
APPOINTMENT OF PR, FILED JANUARY 23,2006 ........................................ 1 

CORRECTED MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS 
PROBATE, FILED JANUARY 16, 2007 .............................................................. 30 

CORRECTIONS TO MEMORADNUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO 
DISMISS PROBATE FILED JANUARY 5, 2007, 
FILED JANUARY 16, 2007 .................................................................................. 34 

DEMAND FOR NOTICE, FILED mL Y 12, 2006 ........................................................... 15 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER, 
FILED APRIL 19, 2007 ......................................................................................... 95 

LETTER TESTAMENTARY, FILED JANUARY 24,2006 ............................................ 14 

MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO DISMISSAL, 
FILED MARCH 9, 2007 ........................................................................................ 50 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR PARTIAL 
DISTRIBUTION AND OPPOSING SUMMARY DISMISSAL, 
FILED MARCH 23, 2007 ...................................................................................... 89 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR PARTIAL 
DISTRIBUTION, FILED MARCH 9, 2007 .......................................................... 57 

INDEX OF RECORD - 1 



SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

INDEX OF RECORD .......................................................................................... PAGE NO. 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS PROBATE, 
FILED JANUARY 5, 2007 .................................................................................... 24 

MOTION FOR PARTIAL DISTRIBUTION, FILED JANUARY 16,2007 .................... 28 

MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FILED APRIL 30, 2007 .................................... 99 

MOTION TO DISMISS PROBATE, FILED JANUARY 5, 2007 .................................... 19 

MOTION TO STRIKE AFFIDAVIT OF BILL MCKEE, 
FILED MARCH 12,2007 ...................................................................................... 85 

OBJECTION TO PARTIAL DISTRIBUTION, FILED JANUARY 23,2007 ................. 36 

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT OF COURT'S DECISION FROM THE MARCH 
26,2007 HEARING, FILED APRIL 10, 2008 ...................................................... 101 

PRELIMINARY INVENTORY, FILED JANUARY 23, 2006 ........................................ 7 

STATEMENT OF INFORMAL PROBATE AND INFORMAL 
APPOINTMENT OF PR, FILED JANUARY 24,2006 ........................................ 11 

SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM, FILED MARCH 12, 2007 .................................. 61 

VOLUME II 

AFFIDAVIT IN OPPOSITION TO AMENDED MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION, FILED AUGUST 11,2009 ............................................. 121 

AFFIDA VIT IN OPPOSITION TO AMENDED MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION, FILED AUGUST 13,2009 ............................................. 167 

AFFIDAVIT OF LLOYD A HERMAN, FILED JULY 29, 2009 ..................................... 119 

BRIEF ON APPEAL, FILED JANUARY 19, 2010 .......................................................... 267 

MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO AMENDED MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION, FILED AUGUST 11,2009 ............................................. 156 

INDEX OF RECORD - 2 



SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

INDEX OF RECORD .......................................................................................... PAGE NO. 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS APPEAL, 
FILED NOVEMBER 18, 2009 .............................................................................. 210 

MOTION AND NOTICE OF MOTION TO DISMISS APPEAL, 
FILED NOVEMBER 18, 2009 .............................................................................. 208 

NOTICE OF APPEAL OF THE FIRST DECISION AND THE DECISION IN 
THE AMENDED MOTION TO RECONSIDER MADE BY 
MAGISTRATE JUDGE MCFADDEN, FILED OCTOBER 22,2009 ................. 183 

REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS 
APPEAL, FILED DECEMBER 8, 2009 ................................................................ 251 

RESPONSE TO THE MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO AMENDED 
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FILED AUGUST 17,2009 ................... 171 

RESPONSE TO THE MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO 
DISMISS APPEAL, FILED NOVEMBER 25, 2009 ............................................ 228 

VOLUME III 

BRIEF ON APPEAL (CONTINUATION OF), FILED JANUARY 19,2010 .................. 320 

VOLUME IV 

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF, FILED MARCH 4, 2010 .............................................. 686 

BRIEF ON APPEAL (CONTINUATION OF), FILED JANUARY 19,2010 .................. 520 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE ................................................................................................. 764 

CLERK'S REMITTITUR, FILED AUGUST 26, 2010 ..................................................... 754 

DECISION ON APPEAL, FILED MAY 18, 2010 ............................................................ 708 

JEROME MCKEE'S BRIEF ON APPEAL, FILED FEBRUARY 12,2010 .................... 666 

INDEX OF RECORD - 3 



SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

INDEX OF RECORD .......................................................................................... PAGE NO. 

JUDGMENT NOT SIGNED BY JUDGE MCFADDEN, HE DECLINED TO 
SIGN, FILED JUNE 10, 2010 ................................................................................ 736 

LETTER TO JUDGE MCFADDEN RE: REQUESTING HIM TO SIGN A 
JUDGMENT, RECEIVED ON JUNE 9,2010 ...................................................... 722 

MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION OF MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION OF DECISION ON APPEAL, 
FILED JUNE 21, 2020 ........................................................................................... 738 

MEMORANDUM SUPPORTING MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, 
FILED JUNE 9, 2010 ............................................................................................. 713 

MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FILED MAY 28, 2010 ...................................... 710 

NOTICE OF APPEAL, FILED SEPTEMBER 14,2010 ................................................... 755 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION ............................................................................................. 766 

NOTICE OF TRANSCRIPT LODGED (BYRL CINNAMON), 
FILED OCTOBER 19, 2010 ............................................ ' ...................................... 763 

NOTICE OF TRANSCRIPT LODGED (JOANN SCHALLER), 
FILED OCTOBER 18,2010 .................................................................................. 762 

ORDER DENYING MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, 
FILED AUGUST 5, 2010 ....................................................................................... 752 

REPLY TO MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION OF MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION OF DECISION ON APPEAL, 
FILED mLY 13, 2010 ........................................................................................... 743 

INDEX OF RECORD - 4 



-- . 

. . 
• •• _ ... o . 

" .. .. . 



.. ~~-':~--, . -/ sf? ~--' 
l~m~I~~~' ~~.~ ~ ~ • 

. '. -~{/~~.~~ . .. -. .. . 
,', .1- . /2..-a.. . . . ~-~~ , 

.'.' . .. ~ .~~ . . . --~.- ~ .... 

~;_. ' A~_~~~~_ .. 
; .. : . ---:~!!:;U-~.'" '.. -

=.~-.. -~ ..... ~ .. .. .... Z~~· . 
'. . ... ~ ,- ._-- : -,:=:~ ,.- ----.-. ~-

· '. ... . -"~ ' " . .. 
, , " • __ .:. •• -, '.'7'~'~ ' . ~.; - .--:----....... -~-",. .--:-....... -- ' .. _..... ..... .• --_ . - . .... - _ ...... ~ .. . . • • • ..... 

I • ~ 

~ ____ .. _-!t.- ........... ... 
. " .,-

• _ _ __ • • •• N . . ....... , ... t., 

r , 
7---;"1--,' ...... 

---:-.~---: .. - .-. 

--.-.-~.:.- .-.-~~ 
, 

... ... :-" ... --.. ~ .. 
· ... . . ':: 

• _1 · • 

• • .. • '.' ,' , ' # " • • • • ... ... .. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

FEB 282008 

TI-IOfvlAS R. FA/-LOU/ST 
SPOKANE COUNTY 

7 SUPERIOR COURT, STATE OF WASHINGTON, COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

In the Matter of the Limited Guardianship No. .0840 02 s 9 - 6 
of Bill E. McKee. _ 

PETITION FOR LIMITED 
An Alleged Incapacitated Person. GUARDIANSHIP OF BILL E. MCKEE 

AND ESTATE AND A~POINTMENT OF 
GUARDIAN AD LITEM 

I. ALLEGED INCAPACITATED PERSON 

The name. date of birth. age, address of present residence. length of time at residence. post 

office address, and Social Security number of the Alleged Incapacitated Person are as 

follows: 

l.Name: ____ -..'!B~I~L"""L:!....!E~A~R~L~M"""'C~K~E~E~ ________ _,__----

2. Date of Birth! Age: ___ ~6<___~9'"'_1 __________ ~ 

3. Present Residence: _..-::;4u.7..!!.02:!:!..!.!S:L..;. P!;..e:!<!ni!.ld~e~r~L.!!!a~n~e,uS.!Ip;uoUlk~a.u.n~e,t....:W~awsh~i.u.n&,gt!:l<o~n,-,,9:..::9~2~23~ __ 

4. Length of Time at Residence: _---""F-"'e=br"-'u=a""'ry~2~O.><..07"'-">to~pt<_'r.."es=e=n~t'----------

5. Post Office Address: _____________________ _ 

6. Social Security No.: ____-- 8 ___________ _ 

ll. NATURE AND DEGREE OF ALLEGED INCAPACITY 

The nature and degree of the alleged incapacity are as follows: 

PETITION FOR LIMITED GUARDIANSHIP OF BILL E. 
MCKEE AND ESTATE AND APPOINTMENT OF 
GUARDIAN AD LITEM- 1 
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1 1. Nature of Alleged Incapacity: _---=N..J.le~e~d~s~a~ss~i~st~a~n~c~e~in~h~a~n~d~li~n&g~fl~·n~a~n~c:,!,!ia~l~a~n:~a~irUis!...-' _'_ 

2 

3 2. Degree of Alleged Incapacity: _--"D=<.:e~c.:l!lla~r~e~dwc~o~m .... pt<'e""t""e~n~t,..,!!,b!"!,u~t-,,,s:.><:om~e""tI~·m~e~sz..:c~o~n!,!,.fu~s!.Uea.d~_ 

4 when dealing with financial affairs, requiring some guidance. ' 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

ID. DESCRIPTIONN ALUE OF PROPERTY 

The approximate value and the description of the property owned by the Alleged 
Incapacitated Person, insofar as known by the Petitioner, are as follows: 

1. Real Property: 4702 S. Pender Lane, Spokane., Washington 99223 

2. Mortgages, Contracts, and Notes: __ --""R.,."e"-'v-"'e"""rs...,e"-'M~o"""r.!:,ltg~a~g""'e'--------__ 

3. Stocks and Bonds: _______ ---=-N".,o=n=e'--___________ _ 

4. Financial Accounts: ________ N~o:4!n""e ________ ___:.._~ __ 

5. Other Assets or Resources: ___ -,-----<NW.>.<.on""'e""--____ -'--______ _ 

14 There are periodic compensation, pension, insurance, and allowances as follows: 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1. Social Security Benefits: ____ ~$1~,~63..:.:'O!.!,!,.£.:,90~ __________ _ 

2. Pension Income: _______ --"'$"""56.,..,2""'.""6~6 ___________ _ 

3. Supplemental Security Income: _______ N...,o,u.n=e"__ ____________ _ 

4. Other: ___________ -=.N..J.loo!A!n~e"__ ___________ _ 

IV. EXISTING OR PENDING GUARDIANS HIPS 

There [iSj[is not] an existing or pending guardianship action for the Person 
[and][or][and/or] the Estate of the Alleged Incapacitated Person as follows: 

1. State Where Established: ____ ~Id~a~h~o!--___________ _ 

2. Name of [Limited Guardian]: __ ~C~r~a~ig ..... M~c~K~e"'e'-----------

3. Date of Appointment: __ --'-__ .... 2"-"/2"-'-7.w/0~8'--__________ _ 

4. Type of Guardianship: _____ -"'T'-"e""'m""p,.".o .... r-""a~ryl__---------_ 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

5. Duration of Guardianship: ____ -=<.9..>!.O-"d~aO,J..y ..... s-----------

V.NOMINEE 

The name, address, telephone number, date of birth, age, and relationship of proposed 
Limited Guardian of the Alleged Incapacitated Person are as follows: 

1. Name of Nominee: __ --"'M""'a...,u~r'-"e=en~E .... r"""ic""'k .... so~n"'__ ____ _:__-------

2. Address: ______ 4.....,7'-"0=2'-"S= ..... P=en=d""e~r_"L=a=n=e:;L., S=,pll<'o .... k=a_n=e~, W~a=sh=I"""·n~g=to=n"-'9"""9=2..,,2""'3_ 

3. Telephone Number:. __ ...,,(5,,-,,0=9.1-) ..:..44=3<-...;-6=1=2 .... 7 ____________ _ 

4. Date of Birth/Age: __~ /4=6'___'_'. 6""1"--__________ _ 

5. Relationship to Alleged Incapacitated Person: _ .... D"'-!a"-"uQ!g"",h",,te_r_· ______ _ 

. VI. RELATIVES 

The names and addresses, and the nature of the relationship of the persons most closely 
related by blood or marriage to the Alleged Incapacitated Person are as follows: 

RELATIONSHIP 
Daughter 

: 
. __ . _ ... t _ ~ . 

Son 
! ... rsol{'· -_ .. _ .... --... I 
, I -- --_._., ·--r-·-·------·-----···---~ 

I i 
. ! 

19 ; ._._.1-_____ ._ ................. , ... _ ......... - •......•........... '. L._ .. _ ... _._ •. - .. ..... . .... _ ............... ...i 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

VIT. CARE FACILITY 

The name, address and telephone number of the person or facility having the care and 
custody of the Alleged Incapacitated Person and the length of time of said care and custody 
is as follows: 

1. Name: Maureen Erickson 

2. Address: 4702 S. Pender Lane, Spokane, Washington 99223 

3. Telephone: (509) 443-6127 

4. Length of Time at Facility: _---"F'-'e""'b""-r~ua=r .... y'-'2=0"-'0<-<7-'t=o'-&p~r=e...,se=n=t------__ _ 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

VID. REASON FOR LIMITED GUARDIANSHIP 

1. The reason for petitioning for limited guardianship is as follows: _.,.--____ ----
Petitioner has been the sole caregiver for Bill E. McKee since February 2007 

without any assistance from any other family members. She has performed the duties 
of a caregiver in an exceptional manner, which has been confirmed by Mr. McKee's 
physicians who have recommended that Mr. McKee remain in the care of Petitioner. 

2. The interest of the Petitioner in'the appointment is as follows:=-_.,__-____ ----,,--. 
7 Petitioner has been the sole caregiver of Bill E. McKee since February 2007. 

She has cared for him and nurtured him back to health after undergoing open-heart 
8 surgery in .July 2007. Petitioner has been attempting to obtain dentures for Mr. 

McKee for several months to aid him in his nutritional health, 'but has been denied 
9 funds to obtain the dentures by an Idaho court appointed conservator, which is 

causing health issues that are being monitored by Mr. McKee's health care providers. 
10 Mr. McKee is happy with his current surroundings and the care he has been receiving 

, by Petitioner, and requests to remain in her care. The conservator has refused to 
11 provide adequate funding to properly clothe, feed, and provide health care for Mr. 

McKee. Mr. McKee has an income of $2,193.56 monthly from'retirement and social 
12 security, and the conservator will only provide $600 per month to cover all his needs 

such as medications, food, healthcare, etc., The conservator has continued to legally 
13 assault Mr. McKee and Petitioner with legal actions that are running up huge legal 

bills, out of which there are no funds to pay. The conservator has now placed his 
14 Priest Lake, Idaho property on the market for sale to fund her own unnecessary 

activities. This property was given to Petitioner in February 2007, and is not even 
15 part of Mr. McKee's Estate. If Mr. McKee was allowed to have his $2,193.56 income 

per month, it is more than enough to allow him to remain with Petitioner in his 
16 Spokane, Washington home and care for all his needs. Mr. McKee has qualified for 

Medicaid by giving all his prQPerty judiciously to his daughter by court order signed 
17 by .Judge Ellen Clark. The Petitioner wishes to stop the extraordinary expenses on 

the McKee Estate and require the unreasonable, unethical, and immoral actions of 
18 the conservator to cease, allowing Petitioner to obtain access to Mr. McKee's fOOds so 

she can properly care for him and prevent the dissipation of Mr. McKee's property, 
19 which has been given/transferred to Petitioner in order to qualify him for Medicaid. 

20 3. DeSignate whether the appointment is sought as Guardian or Limited Guardian of the 
Person, the Estate, or both: _______ ~ __ ~ __________ _ 

21 Limited Guardian 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

4. Describe all existing Estate planning documents that were previously prepared by the 
Alleged Incapacitated Person, and their potential to serve as an alternative to guardianship: 

Durable General Power of Attorney for all Financial Decisions granted to Garth 
Erickson, Petitioner's son, on: .June 28,2007. Power of Attorney for all Health Care 
granted to Petitioner on .June 28, 2007. Under the direction and advise of Richard 
Sayre, senior estate planning attorney, litigation has been initiated and completed 
resulting in a transfer for consideration all of Mr. McKee's property to Petitioner so 
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that he now qualifies for Medicaid preserving his estate and preventing Government 
Medicaid liens ru:-ainst his estate. Because Petitioner has provided him 24-hour care 
in his own home, application for Medicaid has not been necessary at this time, but he 
is now Medicaid eligible. He also has entered into a Will giving all of his properties to 
Petitioner. 

5. The following activities have been conducted to determine if a less restrictive alternative 
to guardianship is reasonably possible: --: _____________ ___ 

An Idaho Magistrate Court found that a conservator was all that was 
necessary after a long guardianship hearing was held over the objection of counsel on 
the grounds that Mr. McKee was not an Idaho residen4 but a Washington resident. 
However, the attorney for Mr. McKee's two sons went back to the Magistrate Court 
ex parte and on February 27, 2008, and were granted temporary guardianship and 
ordered him removed from his home in Washington and transferred to a nursing 
home or assisted living facility in: the State of Idaho for an evaluation. 

6. Based on this investigation, there is no alternative to guardianship that is appropriate for 
the following reasons: ____________________ _ 

The court in Idaho determined that a guardianship was not appropriate, and a 
Conservatorship that was set up has proved to not be in the best interest of Mr. 
McKee's health and' welfare necessitating the need for a temporary guardianship in 
Washington. A, guardianship in Washington wOuld prevent Mr. McKee's forced 
removal from Washington and placement in a nursing home in Idaho, which is a 
detriment to Mr: McKee's health as well as his estate. 

7. Petitioner [has]lhaS not] [previouslyJ[concurrently] with the filing of this petition. 
presented a Motion to the Court for immediate action under RCW 7.40 to meet any 
emergency needs of Bill E. McKee. 

The Court has [takenJ[been requested to take] the following immediate action(s) with 
respect to meeting the emergency needs of Bill E. McKee: _--::---::=::--::-:-___ ::--_-::-:: 

To grant temporary guardianship in the State of Washington where Mr. 
McKee resides, preventing removal to another state and placement in a nursing home 
contrary to his treating physicians recommendations. 

IX. AREAS OF ASSISTANCE 

1. The nature and degree of the alleged incapacity: ___ -,--________ _ 
Mr. McKee is sometimes confused on financial matters preventing timely 

payments. 

2. The following are specific areas of protection and assistance required:_-::--__ --::---: 
An Order requiring that Mr. McKee's Social Security and retirement checks 

be sent directly to the Petitioner/Guardian to' be used in its entirety for the care of Mr. 
McKee. A Restraining Order preventing the removal of Mr. McKee from the State of 
Washington. 

3. The duration of guardianship should be as follows: ___________ _ 

'Until further order of the Court. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

X. GUARDIAN AD LITEM 

1. If a specific Guardian ad Litem is to be proposed, the name, address, and telephone 
number of the proposed Guardian ad Litem are as follows: 

Name Address Telephone 

2. The reason the specific . Guardian ad Litem is proposed is as follows: 
7 To make a determination that Mr. McKee is receiving proper care in the 

custody of Petitioner. 
8 

3. The knowledge of a relationship of the proposed Guardian ad Litem to parties is as 
9 follows: None at this time until the Guardian ad Litem has done a review of the 

extra legal proceedings that have been brought in Idaho and ascertains the level of 
10 care Mr. McKee has received in his present place of residence in Washington. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

XI. PAYMENT OF FEES 

1. The Petitioner proposes that the filing fee in the amount of $[specify amount} 
should be waived for the following reason: ________________ _ 

The Petitioner is unemployed and is the unpaid 24-hour caregiver of her 
father, the proposed ward of the Court. 

2. The payment of Guardian ad Litem's fees should be provided for as follows: __ 
Monthly payments from Mr. McKee's Social Security and retirement checks 

as set by the Court. 

XII. OTHER 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays for the following relief (select appropriate statements 

from the following): 

1: [Afinding that based on the -initial investigation by the Petitioner, a reasonable 
cause exists for appointing an immediate Temporary Guardian for Bill E. McKee 
pending a report from the Court Appointed Guardian Ad Litem; 

2. [Afinding that based on the initial investigation by ihe Petitioner, a reasonable 
cause exists for appointing a Guardian ad Litem for Bill E. McKee; 

3. [An Order appointing a Guardian ad Litemfor the Alleged Incapacitated Person, 
with such Order to define the duties and authority of the Guardian ad Litem}; 

4. [An Order waiving the requirementfor afilingfee}; 
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1 5. [An Order designating how the Guardian ad Litem'sfees in this matter are to be 
paid]; 

2 
6. [A Restraining Order against the Idaho Conservator Shelley Bruna, the two sons 

3 Jerome McKee and Craig McKee and their spouses, or any other persons acting on their 
behalf, including but not limited to their attorney's, officer's of the law, etc., preventing 

4 the removal of Mr. McKee from Petitioners home in the State of Washington andfrom 
removing him/rom the State of Washington to Idaho as unconstitutionally ordered by 

5 the Idaho Magistrate on February 27, 2008. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Dated this :J.[Pv day of ~2008 
Prepared by: 

11 LIo,. e 
WSB #3245 

12 Attorney for Bill E. McKee 

13 

1"""·~ 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

·26 

27 

28 
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STATE OF WASHINGTON 

County of Spokane 

) 
) 
) 

ss. 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that)latVt(b1 5ht.itm· is the person 

who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that [heJ[she] signed this instrument and 

acknowledged it to be [his J[her] free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in -the 

instrument. 

Dated this .::£7fo day o~, 2008. 

--~~~~~~~~~4-~~--

£A.~~~~~~' residing i.~~t2Z).~~",,--_ 
SION EXPlRES:t)5-0)"o9 
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BU 1!. MCKBB 

sr4' . 
OOl!l{")'y 0 TE OF' I/)AH{) . 

. F SHO$/j(J 
. F"ll.E;·O HE / ss 

2008 FEB 27 pm 
/I 3 18 

" PEGar WlltTl;' 
"I.ER~ 01ST. 

8r ,OOURT 

-~ 

CABS NO .. CV 07 .. 120 

LB'l'l'ERs OFlBMPORMY 
:GUAtmIANSHtP 

CRAIG .MCKBS YJa!S duly 1\WOin'td and qualified. • T~ Gciatdian ~ the 

alJove-..IU1Jncd fneapacltJttcd J4d protected ~monon tlu; 21~ day of .. _ E...e~ 
2.!!OR, bY the C~. 

·TheseJ..etn!til are ~ to C\'j~ the~, 4~0ll;M'~of 

said :rem~ ~n, wfth till! 1bl1owing UmitatloDs: 

1. 'The authOrity of the t~ ~~ ill limitM fA) f;U1l,y !.hose ~ 

~lutely ~, or t\tt! ~ tuiriotiw to me PlUJ'O~~ ward, for the .i.mml:diat.c heattb 

and't\8ibty oftb; ~ WArd Until a ~ili is held, 

2. ",(be :autbc)t{ty ofthcl mJH'latl' ~ ~~t tJe fQr aperiOfJ ofnit\\'!/V (90) 

daysf.tomiheda(ebllW£ I,/'YlIles., r~fM.iNA.f~SIkJ",,1( by Co"tl'O'~' 
Ptz.M 
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P.AMBLA.. D. MMSB"r, P.C. 
Prunm B. Masse, 

. SOO N. Go,,~ Wtq., Suite 600 
Coeu .. d'AWle,1daho SgSI4 
r~pbDqc:CZ08)66~996 
FWim1.1e: (203) 6li4-41b8 
ISB #1351 

.Be DISTRICT COURT 

STA1£ OF IllAHO 
COUNTY OF SHOS~ONE / SS 

. FILED 

2008 He 27 PFl J 18 
PEGGY Wti(fE 

OLERK DI8T. COURT 
SY._. ~~, _~_ 

DEPIIrr 

IN TIm DlSl1UCT c()1.m:l' OF mB m.ST JUDlOlAL oISTlUC1' OF 'l'HS STArn 
OF U1AHO. IN' ANP roR nm COUN'lV O'P SHOSHONE 

IN nm MATIBa OP 'lllE 
GlJ~.lANSHJP OF: 

. BILL E. MCKRB 

CASB WOo CV 1.17 .. 120 

ORDS OOR PJW$ONAL SWlVlCE 
ouTSlf)S OF 11u:. S'l'ATS' 

Upon ~ !.he AffidavJt. For Pmonal S"rvi~ Outsi~ of the S~ and it 

5I4ti6ctorUy appearing from ~ Petition tor Ouatdianshlp flIed h=b1. that a. pcti.tlOl.').ibr 

suardlfillablp ~tl.on ,,"ists inv01ving Sill E.. M4t{ee, and that BillE. McKee Is a ~ 

and (1nIpf:r p.Ut)' to Mid cmlion and is Mt now \VItbb1 f.h= StMt: of ldtiho. aM that SID S. 

M~Kee ca.ntJ.ot be b-ervcd wiflUll thl: StIltt'l of Jdaho. 

'NOW nmiUWORB, [T IS Jrnrumy 01U)JlR.Ep thal setvi~ of Bard Ol1l.l~f 

AppDfnlin,g l'by$iciM. Visib:lx-. and Af.1Dl'Iley ami older i\ppQlnlfag "empomry Ouardian 

mBrY be made UrUJD Bm B. McKee by ~ ooMO~ OlJt.sj/lo offhe Stale l1flduho An Ueu 

of $et'\'lee by .PUbUcRUon. . 
. q.+. 

DA 1'Hll tbiM..;zz dq of' F~brLlI!f.Y~ 200s. 

OlWEJU'OR PERSONAl. ~VlQB 
OU'l"SlDE OF m:R S'rA1'U . 
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PAMELA it MASSBY, P.e. 
Paan:laB. ~y 
SOO N. aov~ Will', Su1.tt: 600 
Coeur 4' Alene. ldahu '3814 
ie~.,: (208) fi64-.6996 
F~le: (2DI) 664410& 
rSJ;t#13S1 

• _ •• W"I' ~~ .... "''''- .. " t'Elge a/7 
l3C DISTRXlf;llktrJ(JJf(r 'HObtlUrtt I .,,, PAGt:; ears? 

ZOOS ff.B 27 Pili J 18 
PEGGY WHO€. 

CLERK Dlsr. cr.iJn; 

BY. ~~.-~ 
DEPUiY 

IN nm l)JBTIDct COURT or~ THB fllR,ST ruDlCJAL D1STlU(,'T Of' TH! STATS 
OF IDAHO> tN AND POD. Tim COUNTY OF SHOSHONE' 

IN nm MA'I'113R OF nm 
't'SMPORAaY GlJAJW~1ttP OFl 

t.P" .... 

CABS NO. CV07 .. 120 

OR.um APpOINTINO TPMPORARY 
GUARDTAN 

PURSuANT to the PBTmON JrOR APPOINTMENT OF TEMPORAllY 

OliARDIAN. prevlousl)r filed ~llt DILL J1 MCKRB i$ an inc:Jl.psclt4tcd pw:s~, bas 120 

~~ an ~ e!.istJ. aDd JlQ.olltm'pot9QJ1 ~ to have Illlfhorltv to dOt in tb~ 

frirti.umBta.n=s. 

THErun70RB, IT IS llBREl\'{ 01t[)]3lWD that ClWG MCl<EU3 be duly 

appolnted a$ t~ OulwlianotBJLL B. MCKIDh. the i~led ~ 

JT 18· J;.'O.t'1llB.R. 01U)BRm> 'IliAT th~ AUthod~ ofthC t~ 0ua1dlan abtdl 

be for a poriod ofttinelY (90) 4a..~ fmIn t1!e date of 1.'1110' ofum Old!:!r. 

'lhe: all. WIIfd slJJIlI be served With noti4tl of 1M 8ppOlntmen1 of ill ftltnpotarY­

Guardiatt witlUn 48 bQImS ot)ntl)' ot'thiS ordm'. 

1'ira ~ qf~ GuatdiIlUShIp ~ indkate tho following: . 

0IU)lUf. A(,POINTINO 
TBMi'oMP.Y (llfAI\DJA'N 
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SUPERIOR COURT, STATE OF WASHINGTON, COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
GUARDIANSHIP AND 
CONSERVATORSHIP OF: 

BILL E. MCKEE 

CASE NO. 

AFFIDAVIT OF BILL E. MCKEE 

I, BILL E. MCKEE, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says: 

1. That I am now and, at all times material hereto, a citizen of the United States, 

resident of the State of Washington, over the age of 18 years, and am competent to 

be a witness herein. 

2. That I was a resident of the State of Idaho for forty years before relocating to 

Washingt<?n State. I don't even intend to go back to Idaho except to visit Maureen 

and her boys at Priest Lake. By the fact .this trial went forward was a huge 

embarrassment to rile. 
,3. The Governmenthas no damned business in my life. I am competent. I 

chose my Powers·of Attorney for when I am not. Who would have believed that 

in this country a.~pmplete stranger could take my entire Social Security and 

retirement and refuse to give me enough money for food and teeth? 

4. My sons, Jerry and Craig, are trying to use the court to undo my right to 

have transferred that property (Osburn, ID; Priest Lake, ID; and Spokane, WA) to 

Maureen. I was competent and my attorney, Peacock, helped me with the 

AFFIDAVIT OF BllL E. MCKEE - 1 
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transfer in January last year (2007). Ask Jerry and Craig if they would like to be my 

. guardian if they have to promise to leave Maureen and her property alone. 

5. Craig has not called me once or come to see me since my last surgery last July 

(2007). 

6. I am going to live with my daughter. She has such a good disposition and 

takes really good care of me and my dog. I have already chosen a retirement home 

in Seattle for when necessary. I don't have long to live and would like to have 

some peace in my life. I would rather be dead than have either Jerry or Craig boss 

me around or take me away from my daughter and her boys. 

7. I want the court to get rid of that woman (Shelley Bruna) who is stealing from 

me and trying to steal from Maureen. I don't trust her and she has caused me to 

suffer. Besides, I live in Washington. She bounces more checks than I do. She has 

made my life helL 

GIVEN under my hand and official seal this~P lJ. day of ;t~rU4r:9 2008. 

" ', 

AFFADAVIT OF BILL E. MCKEE - 2 

Y:/. jJ~ .~ 
~PUBLIC iIlaIldfOfthe State 
of J#;fstll"'~7b'" , residing in.$EbK4NIii 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: G?S·OI-O 1 
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SUPERIOR COURT, STATE O:f WASHINGTON, COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
GUARDIANSHIP AND 
CONSERVATORSI:IIP OF: 

BILL E. MCKEE 

CASE NO. 

AFFIDAVIT OF BILL E. MCKEE 

I, BILL E. MCKEE, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says: 

1. That I am now and, at all times material hereto, a citizen of the United States, 

resident of the State of Washington, over the age of 18 years, and am competent to 

be a witness herein. 

2. That I was a resident of the State of Idaho for forty years before relocating to 

Washingt<:>n State. ldon't even intend to go back to Idaho except to visit Maureen 

and her boys at Priest Lake. By the fact this trial went forward was a huge 

embarrassment to rile. 
. 3. The Governmenfhas no damned business in my life. I am competent. I 

chose my Powers·,of.A.ttorney for when I am not. Who would have believed that 

in this country a. ~.9mplete stranger could take my entire Social Security and 

retirement and refuse to give me enough money for food and teeth? 

4. My sons, Jerry and Craig, are trying to use the court to undo my right to 

have transferred that property (Osburn,lD; Priest Lake, ID; and Spokane, WA) to 

Maureen. I was competent and my attorney, Peacock, helped me with the 
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transfer in January last year (2007). Ask Jerry and Craig if they would like to be my 

guardian if they have to promise to leave Maureen and her property alone. 

5. Cr~g has not called me once or come to see me since my last surgery'last July 

(2007). 

6. I am going to live with my daughter. She has such a good disposition and 

takes really good care of me and my dog. I have already chosen a retirement hom.e 

in Seattle for when necessary. I don't have long to live and would like to have 

some peace in my life. I would rather be dead than have either Jerry or Craig boss 

me around or take me away from my daughter and her boys. 

7. I want the cou~t to get rid of that woman (Shelley Bruna) who is stealing from 

me and trying to steal from Maureen~ I don't trust her and she has caused me to 

suffer. Besides, I live in Washington. She bounces more checks than I do. She has 

made my life hell: 

GIVEN under my hand and official seal this,.2P lJ. day of ::Je/Jraarfj 2008. 

AFFADAVIT OF BILL E. MCKEE - 2 

~jJ~~ 
mrpUBLICiUa11df()~e State 
of W/(SHIJI/(,;n,N ,residing in.$Ebk'./fN1ii 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:&s"o/ .. o1 
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SUPERIOR COURT, STATE OF W ASIDNGTON, COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
GUARDIANSHIP OF: 

BILL E. MCKEE 

CASE NO. 

AFFIDAVIT OF MAUREEN 
ERICKSON IN SUPPORT OF A 
LIMITED GUARDIANSHIP 

14 I, MAUREEN ERICKSON, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says: 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1. That I am now and, at all times material hereto, a citizen of the United States, resident 
of the State of Washington, over the age of 18 years, and am competent to be a witness 
herein. 

2. That I am the daughter of Bill E. McKee, who is 91 years of age, and reside with 
my father at 4702 S. Pender Lane, Spokane, Washington. 

3. I moved to Spokane, Washington from California in 1997 so that he could be close 
to his grandchildren and I could care for him in his advancing years. My mother, 
Natalie Parks McKee, died in 1994, and there were no other family members residing 
full time in the area that could provide the care. I chose the Spokane area as there 
were more opportunities for my children scholastically as well as for their 
involvement in sports. 

4. Since we have moved to the area, my father has spent all holidays with me and 
my children. My children were very active in sports, and my father attended all their 
games,' including my son Garth's games at the University of Washington. During this 
time he resided in the State of Idaho. As of January 2007 he no longer owns any 
property in the State of Idaho and has no interests in the State of Idaho. 
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5. Since February 2007, father has been a' full-time resident of the State of 
Washington, where we have co-resided full time at 4702 S. Pender Lane, Spokane, 
Washington. He is a registered voter in the State of WasNngton, has an ID card issued 
by the State of Washington, and all of his attending physicians reside in the State of 
Washington. . 

6. I take him to all doctor and dentists appointments, have arranged for his surgeries, 
provided him with 24-hour care after his various surgeries (which total 27 months), 
assist him in paying his bills, prepare his meals, wash his dothes, dean his home, care 
for and exercise his dog, do all the marketing, as well as other various chores. 

7. My father had acquired a home is Osburn, Idaho, a cabin at Priest Lake, Idaho, 
and a home in Spokane, Washington. Because of his advanced age and heart 
problems, he and I were afraid he may need to qualify for Medicaid. I was under the 
impression that he could transfer his property to me, which would make him eligible 
for Medicaid. After the transfers in January 2007, I was informed that there was a 5-
year look-back statute in order to qualify for Medicaid. My dad sought the advice of 
Richard Sayre, a senior law attorney, and he advised that if the property had been 
given in valid consideration, it would not be considered a gift and he would quality. 
My dad was anxious to do this prior to his heart surgery that was scheduled for July 
2007. Because my dad had misinformed me of my mother's true wishes, I was 
deprived of my mother's estate of which I was the sole heir. Mr. Sayre advised us 
that litigation to restore my rights would be valid consideration for the transfer of his 
properties, and would therefore qualify him for Medicaid. Litigation was initiated 
and ultimately a judgment was granted passing title of all of his properties to me on 
January 28, 2008. I have assured by counsel that this will qualify my father for 
Medicaid. 

8. While I was attempting to preserve my fathers estate by qualifying him for 
Medicaid, my brother, Jerry McKee, brought a guardianship proceeding in the State 
of Idaho, even though my father was a full-time resident in the State of Washington. 
Objections were made to the courts jurisdiction because my father was a resident of 
the State of Washington, which were denied. The guardianship hearing proceed to 
trial in front of the Magistrate Court in Shoshone County. The Judge ultimately ruled 
that a guardianship was not needed and granted a Conservatorship on October 31, 
2007. 

9. The court interpreted my attempts to preserve the estate and qualify my father for 
Medicaid as attempts to take advantage of my father. This misunderstanding by the 
court was done even though elder law attorney Lynn St. Louis testified Richard Sayre 
is a highly qualified senior law lawyer and estate planner, who was fully competent 
to give proper estate planning advise. I carried out the advise of Richard Sayre in 
order to qualify father for Medicaid and preserve his estate. Unfortunately this was 
interpreted to be me taking advantage of my father. 
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10. Since the appointment of the Conservatorship, the conservator has tried to prevent 
me from preserving my father's Osburn, Idaho and Spokane, Washington homes. 
Because of his lack of funds, both homes were in foreclosure. I took title to the 
Osburn, Idaho home and refinanced it in my own name preventing it from being 
foreclosed on without help, guidance, or aide from the conservator or my brothers. 
The conservator had a lis pendens placed on the property in the middle of the 
refinancing, and a superior court hearing had to occur forcing her to lift the lis 
pendens in order to complete the refinancing. My father's Spokane, Washington 
property was also in foreclosure due to lack of funds, and I sought and was granted a 
reverse mortgage to save it from foreclosure. While pursuing the reverse mortgage 
on the Spokane, Washington home, the conservator attempted to change the title of 
the property from my father to me, preventing him from qualifying. After the 
intervention of my father's attorney, the Idaho court authorized the procedure, which 
stopped the conservator from interfering. 

11. The conservator has continually refused to allow my father to have the proceeds of 
his $2,193.56 per month social security and retirement income, and has declared $600 
per month is enough to provide for him. The conservator has continually ignored my 
requests to provide funds for healthcare, and to meet his nutritional needs. The 
conservator has also been informed that my father needs 24-hour care and that I have 
been providing adequate 24-hour care for his for the past year.· The conservator's 
actions have resulted in the deterioration of my father's health. See attached Exhibit 
A, Letter from Dr. Fuhs dated January 14, 2008. 

12. My father's attorney, Lloyd Herman, wrote the conservator's attorney the last 
week of January 2008, and requested that the conservator acknowledge the doctor's 
letter requesting funds for proper care. The conservator responded with a motion for 
a hearing to receive direction from the court on how she should expend the funds, 
and in additional filed a motion to appoint a full time guardian. The attorney for my 
brothers went to court on February 26, 2008 and applied for and got my brother Craig 
McKee appointed temporary guardian for 90 days, giving him the authority to take 
possession of my father and have him medically examined and placed in an assisted 
living facility. The order does not provide who is going to pay for the costs, and 
basically provides my brother with the legal indicia to kidnap my father. 

13. My brothers have never been involved in the care of my father for the past year, 
nor have they communicated with him. It is clear from his doctor's letter that he has 
received proper care under my supervision and is happy and healthy in his present 
home. I feel that the legal process in Idaho is being used to deprive my father of 
proper care and a safe and healthy place to live in his own surroundings, and request 
that the court grant a limited guardianship in Washington to prevent his removal to 
Idaho, and away from the treatment of his medical providers. 
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DATED thi~ O~"~2008. 

GIVEN under my hand and official seal thi~ Jlvday of ~ 2008. 
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SUPERIOR COURT, STATE OF W ASIDNGTON, COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
GUARDIANSHIP OF: 

BILL E. MCKEE 

CASErI·B400259:.6 

AFFIDAVIT OF MAUREEN 
ERICKSON IN SUPPORT OF A 
LIMITED GUARDIANSHIP 

14 I, MAUREEN ERICKSON, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says: 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1. That I am now and, at all times material hereto, a citizen of the United States, resident 
of the State of Washington, over the age of 18 years, and am competent to be a witness 
herein. 

2. That I am the daughter of Bill E. McKee, who is 91 years of age, and reside with 
my father at 4702 S. Pender Lane, Spokane, Washington. 

3. I moved to Spokane, Washington from California in 1997 so that he could be close 
to his grandchildren and I could care for him in his advancing years. My mother, 
Natalie Parks McKee, died in 1994, and there were no other family members reSiding 
full time in the area that could· provide the care. I chose the Spokane area as there 
were more opportunities for my children scholastically as well as for their 
involvement in sports. 

4. Since we have moved to the area, my father has spent all holidays with me and 
my children. My children were very active in sports, and my father attended all their 
games,· including my son Garth's games at the UniversitY of Washington. During this 
time he resided in the State of Idaho. As of January 2007 he no longer owns any 
property in the State of Idaho and has no interests in the State of Idaho. 
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5. Since February 2007, father has been a' full-time resident· of the State of 
Washington, where we have co-resided full time at 4702 S. Pender Lane, Spokane, 
Washington. He is a registered voter in the State of Washington, has an ID card issued 
by the State of Washington, and all of his attending physicians reside in the State of 
Washington. 

6. I take him to all doctor and dentists appointments; have arranged for his surgeries, 
provided him with 24-hour care after his various surgeries (which total 27 months), 
assist him in paying his bills, prepare his meals, wash his clothes, clean his home, care 
for and exercise his dog, do all the marketing, as well as other various chores. 

7. My father had acquired a home is Osburn, Idaho, a cabin at Priest Lake, Idaho, 
and a home in Spokane, Washington. Because of his advanced age and heart 
problems, he and I were afraid he may need to qualify for Medicaid. I was under the 
impression that he could transfer his property to me, which would make him eligible 
for Medicaid. After the transfers in January 2007, I WaS informed that there was a 5-
year look-back statute in order to qualify for Medicaid. My dad sought the advice of 
Richard Sayre, a senior law attorney, and he advised that if the property had been 
given in valid consideration, it would not be considered a gift and he would quality. 
My dad was anxious to do this prior to his heart surgery that was scheduled for July 
2007. Because my dad had misinformed me of my mother's true wishes, I was 
deprived of my mother's estate of which I was the sole heir. Mr. Sayre advised us 
that litigation to restore my rights would be valid consideration for the transfer of his 
properties, and would therefore qualify him for Medicaid. Litigation was initiated 
and ultimately a judgment was granted passing title of all of his properties to me on 
January 28, 2008. I have assured by counsel that this will qualify my father for 
Medicaid. . 

8. While I was attempting to preserve my fathers estate by. qualifying him for 
Medicaid, my brother, Jerry McKee, brought a guardianship proceeding in the State 
of Idaho, even though my father was a full-time resident in the State of Washington. 
Objections were made to the courts jurisdiction because my father was a resident of 
the State of Washington, which were denied. The guardianship hearing proceed to 
trial in front of the Magistrate Court in Shoshone County. The Judge ultimately ruled 
that a guardianship was not needed and granted a Conservatorship on October 31, 
2007. 

9. The court interpreted my attempts to preserve the estate and qualify my father for 
Medicaid as attempts to take advantage of my father. This misunderstanding by the 
court was done even though elder law attorney Lynn St. Louis testified Richard Sayre 
is a highly qualified senior law lawyer and estate planner, who was fully competent 
to give proper estate planning advise. I carried out the advise of Richard Sayre in 
order to qualify father for Medicaid and preserve his estate. Unfortunately this was 
interpreted to be me taking advantage of my father. 
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10. Since the appointment of the Conservatorship, the conservator has tried to prevent 
me from preserving my father's Osburn, Idaho and Spokane, Washington homes. 
Because of his lack of funds, both homes were in foreclosure. I took title to the 
Osburn, Idaho home and refinanced it in my own name preventing it from being 
foreclosed on without help, guidance, or aide from the conservator or my brothers. 
The conservator had a lis pendens placed on the property in the middle of the 
refinancing, and a superior court hearing had to occur forcing her to lift the lis 
pendens in order to .complete the refinancing. My father's Spokane, Washington 
property was also in foreclosure due to lack of funds, and I sought and was granted a 
reverse mortgage to save it from foreclosure. While pursuing the reverse mortgage 
on the Spokane, Washington home, the conservator attempted to change the title of 
the . property from my father to me, preventing him from qualifying. After the 
intervention of my father's attorney, the Idaho court authorized the procedure, which 
stopped the conservator from interfering. 

11. The conservator has continually refused to allow my father to have the proceeds of 
his $2,193.56 per month social security and retirement income, and has declared $600 
per month is enough to provide for him. The conservator has continually ignored my 
requests to provide funds for healthcare, and to meet his nutritional needs. The 
conservator has also been informed that my father needs 24-hour care and that I have 
been providing adequate 24-hour care for his for the past year.· The conservator's 
actions have resulted in the deterioration of my father's health. See attached Exhibit 
A, Letter from Dr. Fuhs dated January 14, 2008. 

12. My father's attorney, Lloyd Herman, wrote the conservator's attorney the last 
week of January 2008, and requested that the conservator acknowledge the doctor's 
letter requesting funds for proper care. The conservator responded with a motion for 
a hearing to receive direction from the court on how she should expend the funds, 
and in additional filed a motion to appoint a full time guardian. The attorney for my 
brothers went to court on February 26, 2008 and applied for and got my brother Craig 
McKee appointed temporary guardian for 90 days, giving him the authority to take 
possession of my father and have him medically examined and placed in an assisted 
living .facility. The order does not provide who is going to pay for the costs, and 
basically provides my brother with the legal indicia to kidnap my father. 

13. My brothers have never been involved in the care of my father for the past year, 
nor have they communicated with him. It is clear from his doctor's letter that he has 
received proper care under my supervision and is happy and healthy in his present 
home. I feel that the legal process in Idaho is being used to deprive my father of 
proper care and a safe and healthy place to live in his own surroundings, and request 
that the court grant a limited guardianship in Washington to prevent his removal to 
Idaho, and away from the treatment of his medicaI providers. 
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DATEDthi~O~2008. 

GIVEN under my hand and official seal thi..;2l"Jj.. day of ~ 2008. 
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'pok'ane Cardl lo,gy 
Heart and Vascular Hea th 

Improving the Health of Northwest Communities Since 1969 

, Pierre P. Lelmgruber, MD, FAce 
Harold R. Goldber.g, MD, FACC 
Guy E. Katz, MD, FACC 
Bryan E. Fuhs, MD, FACC 
Michael A. Kwasman, MD, FACC 
Braden W. Batkoff, MD, FACe 

January 14, 2008 

Douglas A. Oviatt 
Owens and Crandall 

Darren C. Hollenbaugh, MD, FACC 
John G. Peterson, MD, FACC 
TImothy C. Bishop, MD 
Janice O. Christensen, MD, FACC 
R. Alan Wales; MD, FACC 
Gerhard H. Muelhelms, MD 

1859 N. Lakewood Drive #104 
Coeur diAlene Idaho 83814 

RE: Bill McKee 
(DO  

Dear Mr. Oviatt, 

Philip R. Huber, MO 
!lusan J. Alexander, MD 
Dieter F. Lubbe, MD, FACC 
Mark J . Plrwltz, MD, FACC 
Michael, N. Whlsena'lt, MP; FACC 

Sandra M. Dickey, PA-C 
Kimberly A. Nollette, ARNP 
Cheryl J. Reeves, ARNP 
Joan Corkey.()'Hare, ARNP 
Vera H. Talseth, ARNP 
Nancy L Vitello, PA-C 

I have cared for Bill since about 1992, so I have a perspective on both Bill and his family that 
you may not share. Bill is now unfortunately starting to starve because of the lack 'of teeth. I 
don't understand how the situation has gotten to the point that Bill cannot afford dentures, but it 
sounds like there is a legal problem keeping him from getting dentures and to that end, at least 
from a medical standpoint for him to get enough calories and get them without having to be 
more aggressive, I certainly think it would be to his advantage and I wOl,Jld strongly support 
getting him dentures so that he can chew and eat food. . 

The second thing is bothersome to me. Bill has done quite well considering that he had open­
heart surgery in his 90s and had an aortic valve replaced, and because of this continued loss of 
weight he has gotten weak enough that I think he is going t6 need 24:-hour care in hopes that 
he will recover. I honestly think tnat he is going to need somebody with him and I would 
certainly like to keep him in the home, itw8s one of the reasons that we have tried so hard to 
keep him upright and doing well. 

In my experience, Maureen Erickson has done a very nice job of caring for her father. Every 
time he is here he is well groomed and well kept, and over time had been brought back from' 
what used to be life threatening. ' I think had he been allowed to have teeth and eat he Would 
even be doing better than he is right now. On a pragmatic level, I am wildly comfortable that 

, the surgery' was quite successful.. He is certainly lucid. He is still hard of hearing and I don't 
think aortic valve surgery has ever helped with hardness of hearing, but outside of that he is 
doing quite' well. 

Downtown Office 
9tOW. 5"'Ave., Sulte'300 
Spokane, WA 99204 
(509)455·8£20 ' 
Fax (509) 838-4978 

Valley Office 
1215 N. McDonald Rd., Suite 202 
Spokane, WA 99216 
(509) 922-0136 , 
Fax (509) 922·7976 

North Office 
318 East Rowan, Suite 240 
Spokane, WA99207 
(509) 482·2025 
Fax (509) 48,2'~ 6 

Coeur d'Alene Office 
700 Ironwood Dr., Suite 214 
Coeur d'Alene, 1083814 
(208) 292·1600 
Fax (208) 292·1610 

Lewiston Office 
2315 8th Street,Grade 
Lewiston, ID 83501 
(208) 746·1383 ext 6641 
Fax (208) 298:-0727 



RE: Bill McKee 
1/9/2008 
Page 2 

A practical side of this is very straightforward. Because of the problems that have occurred with 
getting things paid for, he has'not gotten teeth which would help him eat and get better. I 
honestly am at the pOint where I am disgusted by the fact that his weight loss can be traced 
very cll3arly to the lack of caring and compassion on the conservators part, Ms. Bruna, to 
provide adequate funds for replacement teeth. Again, I have seen Bin for many years and I 
have a perspective on this that I am almost willing to tell you that I think every step along the . 
way that from wnat I can. observe Ms. Erickson has made choices that are better for Bill than 
almost anybody else involved in his care. 

Please feel free to contact me. I will certainly state that to you in either peposition or in a phone 
call, whichever you need, but at this time I certainly am asking if you could expedite Bill getting' 
teeth and money for food, as well as looking for 24-hour care so that he may remain in his 
home, which would be his wish. I think that would be the right thing to do in this situation. 

Sincerely, 

tJ-~ 
13ryan E Fuhs, MD FACC 

BEF 1/9/08 
jbf 1/14/08 
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SUPERIOR COURT, STATE OF WASHINGTON, COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
GUARDIANSHIP OF: 

BILL E. MCKEE 

CASE NO. 

AFFIDAVIT OF BRYAN E. FURS, MD 
FAce 

14 I, BRYAN E. FURS, being first du1y sworn on oath, deposes and says: 
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1. That I am now and, at all times material hereto, a citizen of the United States, 
resident of the State of Washington, over the age of 18 years, and am competent to be 
a witness herein. 

2. That I am the treating physician of Bill E. McKee, and have cared for him since 
about 1992. In early spring 2007, I referred him to Dr. Nisco who went on to perform 
open heart surgery and replaced an aortic valve in July 2007. The surgery was quite 
successful and he has recovered nicely under the care of his daughter, who not only 
provided 24-hour care leading up to the surgery, but has provided 'around the clock 
care since that time and has been actively involved in his rehabilitation. 

3. Mr. McKee needs dentures to allow him to chew and properly digest his food. He 
also needs additional food supplements to provide him with the calories his body 
requires to gain weight. He is now unfortunately starting to starve because of the 
lack of teeth, and the lack of funds to purchase the necessary food his system requires. 
I honestly am disgusted by the fact that his weight loss can be traced very clearly to 
the lack of caring and comp~ssion on the conservator's part, Ms. Bruna, to provide 
adequate funds for his care. 
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4. I have seen Mr. McKee for several years and I have a perspective on his condition 
that I am willing to testify to that I think every step along the way at from what I can 
observe Maureen Erickson has made choices· that are better for Mr. McKee than 
almost anybody else involved in his care. He is always well groomed and well kept, 
and over time has been brought back from what used to be a life threatening 
condition. I honestly think that he is going to continue to need somebody with him 
24-hours per day and I would certainly like to keep him in the home with his 
daughter. It was one of the reasons that we have tried so hard to keep him upright 
and doing well. 

5. I believe that if Mr. McKee is forced from his current home, he will suffer 
medically, physically, .and mentally, which will certainly have an impact on his 
longevity. It would also be detrimental to his condition to remove him from the care 
of his treating physicians who are so well schooled on the history of his health care 
needs. 

DATED this Lday of .~a..--rl! h ,2008. -----

GIVEN under my hand and official seal this £ day of ~ 2008. 
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MICHAEL K. BRANSTETTER 

Michael F. Peacock 
. 123 McKinley Avenue 
Kellogg, ID ·83837 

Re: Jerry McKee 

Dear Mike: 

HULL & BRANSTETTER 
CHARTERED 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
416 RIvER STREET 

P.O. BOX 709 
WALLACE, 1D83873-0709 

July 27, 2005 

) 0 . v6 .H.J HULL (1888-1975) Jf« - . ALDEN HULL (1919-1984) 
PIATT HULL (1914-1992) 

TELEPHONE: (208) 7 52-1154 
FAX: (208) 752-0951 

I have been retained by Jerry McKee and he has" forwarded me your letter of 
July 6,2005. You may communicate with me inthe future on the matters set forth 
in your letter of July 6,2005. 

Please forward me a copy of the holographic Will as soon as possible. 
Would you also provide me with some explanation of how~ where and when the 
holographic Will was located and who found it. I will then forward that to Jerry for 
his response. 

Thank you. 

Very truly yours, 

ETTER CHARTERED 

By:_L----"--"'..:::.--=-_______ _ 
Michael K. Branstetter" 

MKB/pwk 
cc: Jerry McKee 
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MICHAEL K. BRANSTETTER 

Michael F. Peacock 
123 McKinley Avenue 
Kellogg, ID 83837 

t 
I 

HULL & BRANSTETTER 
CHARTERED 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
416 RIVER STREET 

P.O. BDX709 
WALLACE;ID 83873-0709 

February 3,2006 

H.J HULL (1888-1975) 
ALDEN HULL (1919-1984) 
PIATT HULL (1914-1992) 

TELEPHONE: (208) 752-1154 
, .. ,FAX: (208) 752-0951 

Re: Bill McKee":" OFFER OF SETTLEMENT WITHOUT PREJUDICE 

Dear Mike: 

This is a follow up to our recent telephone conversation concerning the 
above-matter. You asked that I provide you'with further details. This is an Offer of 
Settlement to resolve all matters in controversy between my client, Jerry McKee, 
and your client. 

Your client has made a number of claims concerning the North Fork River 
Property. Jerry disputes that any of her claims are valid but in an effort to resolve 
all matters he has authorized me to make the following offer in settlement of all 

- matters between everyone. . 

Jerry will sell the NorthFork River property. The property mayor may not 
need to be appraised and Jerry will arrange for that if necessary. That expense will 
be part of the selling expenses. The net proceeds of the sale will be divided in half. 
Jerry will keep one-half (1/2) and before distribution of the other one-half (1/2) to 
Bill, the following shall be repaid to Jerry from those proceeds: 

• One-half (112) )f all property expenses incurred since January I, 2002 - this 
includes taxes, insurance and selling expenses. 

• One-half (112) of the capital gains taxes generated by the sale - federal and 
state. 

• One-half (1/2) of the income from the 2002 timber sale. All of those 
proceeds were previously given to Bill and Maureen. This amounts to a 
deduction of $5,500.00. 

• Reimbursement for all expenses paid by Jerry for Bill since January I, 2002 
to the time of settlement - This can be documented and amounts to 
approximately $66,000.00. 
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Michael F. Peacock 
February 3, 2006 
Page 2 

• All gift taxes that may due as a result of this gift to Bill, if indeed it is 
labeled as a gift. 

Jerry will add ,me-half (112) of all rent received on the property for the last 
three (3) years to the amount due Bill and/or Maureen. This amount is 
approximately $675.00. 

Jerrydisagrees that any parties have any legal interest or claim to the North 
Fork property and this offer is simply to grand some peace to his father. This is an 
offer of settlement and may not be used for any purposes except in consideration of 
the offer. Please let me know your clients' response. 

Very truly yours, 

HULL & BRANSTETTER CHARTERED 

~ By: . 
ichael K. Branstetter 

MKB/pwk 
cc: Jerry McKee 
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MICHAEL F. PEACOCK 
Attorney at Law 

May 16, 2006 

From: Michael F. Peacock 

To: Mike Branstetter 

RE: McKee - Erickson 

123 McKinley Ave. 
Kellogg, ID 83837 
208-783-1231 
Fax 208-783-1232 

your client's response wasn't what I'd call "documentation". Does he have any receipts? Bill 
says he doesn't think he paid a10t of this because he (Bill) still had money from the sale of. 
property at that time. 

Maureen will be sending me her expenses soon, though I think she feels like neither of them . 
should claim value for paying their father's expenses or care or lodging, 
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LYN ST. LOUIS: 

BY MR. ROSE: 

Called as a Witness for Bill McKee, 

Having First Been Duly Sworn, 

Testified as Follows, to-wit: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

Q. Please state your name please? 

A. My name is Lyn St. Louis. 

Q. And spell your last name please? 

A. Just like the city. S-T-.-L-O-U-I-S. 

Q. And your profession? 

A. I am an attorney in the state of Washington, where 

I was admitted to practice in 1985. 

Q. And would you give us a brief synopsis of your, 

what you have done in the course of your legal career thus 

far? 

A. I graduated from the University of Washington with 

my Juris Doctor in 1985. I took the bar and was admitted to 

the bar that year in the state of Washington. My Bar Number 

is 15348. For the first approximately, 12 years, I worked 

at a law firm, Lease, Mark, Cook, Martin & Patterson in 

Seattle, Washington, doing primarily insurance defense. 

When I, in 1996, I and four other partners from that firm 

formed our own firm, Gardner, Bond, Trabolce, St. Louis & 

Clement in Seattle. Which was a firm of approximately 15 

lawyers about 40 staff. Last year, well, let me back up 
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1 a little bit. During my time at Gardner, Bond I did not 

2 only litigation but transition my practice to elder law and 

3 in the early 2000's began focusing on elder law. Last year, 

4 I left Seattle to move to Spokane and opened up my solo 

5 practice, the Law Office of Lyn St. Louis, and my practice 

6 is primarily focused on elder law. 

7 Q. Do you belong to any professional organizations? 

8 Dealing with elder law? 

9 A. I do. The National Academy of Elder Law Attorneys 

10 is the pre-eminent organization for those attorneys 

11 interested in practicing in elder law which encompasses not 

12 only a estate planning but also the issues that effect the 

13 elderly population, social issues, legal issues, and I 

14 joined the National Academy of Elder Law Attorneys, I 

15 believe it was in 2004. I have been very active in the 

16 organization since that, since joining I have attended at 

17 least two national conferences every year. I have, I was 

18 elected to the Board of the Washington Chapter of the 

19 National Academy of Elder Law Attorneys. I am currently the 

20 President Elect of the Washington Chapter of Elder Law 

21 Attorneys. 

22 

23 me? 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Have you come to meet Bill McGee, McKee, excuse 

Yes, I have. 

And when did you meet Mr. McKee approximately? 
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A. It would have been the week prior to June 25, is 

when, if you don't mind, I have notes that I could refer to 

to give you specific date. r first met Bill McKee on 

June 21, 2007. 

Q. And what was the purpose of that meeting? 

A. The purpose of that meeting was to assist Bill 

with his legal estate planning matters in terms of his 

13 Q. And were some documents prepared by you for Mr. 

14 McKee? 

15 A. Yes, I prepared for him his durable power of 

16 attorney for finances, durable power of attorney for health 

17 care decision, his health care directive or living will and 

18 his last will. 

19 Q. Did you, clarify for us this durable power of 

20 attorney for finances. That is something that r don't think 

21 that we are familiar with or we don't have here in Idaho. 

22 A. Well, I don't know what the term is in Idaho, but 

23 I am sure you have some legal document that has that same 

24 effect. What it does, is it empowers the attorney in fact, 

25 someone, an agent, that Bill appoints to make financial 
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decisions for him, to assist him. It does not take away any 

of his powers to make those decisions but it does allow 

another individual to also make or act for him that attorney 

in fact, is, does have a fiduciary obligation to act only in 

Bill McKee's best interest. 

Q. Now, in the course of preparation of these 

documents, did you meet with Mr. McKee? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And could you give us an indication of how much 

time you spent with Mr. McKee? 

A. Well, it was over the course of an initial 

meeting, a follow up conversation and then two subsequent 

meetings. So in total, maybe and speaking with Bill, was 

certainly over an hour, an hour and half ... No, it was 

probably closer to a two hour time frame in total. 

Q. Were you aware that, or after you got to meet Mr. 

McKee, were you aware that this proceeding was going on? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, I was. 

And what knowledge did you have of this 

20 proceeding? 

21 A. Well, I was aware of this proceeding by a phone 

22 call from another attorney in Spokane, Carol Hunter, to whom 

23 a Maureen Erickson (phonetic) had gone to seek assistance 

24 with the guardianship and Carol had referred Bill McKee to 

25 me because she considered Maureen to be her client and thus 
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1 would not be able to assist Bill in that, because of the 

2 conflict, the potential conflict of interest. So, Carol 

3 Hunter who is an esteemed elder law attorney called me and 

4 stated that the, Bill McKee, was subject to a guardianship 

5 in Idaho but that she believed that in her opinion that 

6 powers of attorney documents could be drafted and would I 

7 meet with him and accept him as my client. So, that is how 

8 Bill came to me. 

9 Q. Did the fact that this guardianship was 

10 proceeding, did that raise any flags for you? 

11 A. Indeed. Indeed. 

12 Q. What type of concerns were you ... 

13 A. Well, obviously if there is a guardianship 

14 pending, there is a good faith belief that Bill is in need 

15 of a guardian. Otherwise, this suit would not have been 

16 filed. And so, the question that I needed to determine, was 

17 whether or not I would be able to draft any documents for 

18 him. If a client does not have competency or legal capacity 

19 under the law, my ethical duties would have prohibited me 

20 from preparing these documents. 

21 

22 

23 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Did you do anything to assess Bill's competence? 

What I did, yes, I did was, initially ... 

Okay. Were you guided by anything in assessing 

24 Bill's competence? 

25 A. I was guided by my knowledge that I have obtained 
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1 as an elder law attorney. The issue of diminished capacity 

2 is a prevalent matter when you are working in elder law. It 

3is something that you are always looking out for as 

4 obviously as everyone ages, the elderly population, you 

5 know, there's dementia, there's diminished capacity. So, I 

6 have been trained through seminars as to diminished 

7 capacity. Through that training, I was aware of a book 

8 published by the American Bar Association, Commission on Law 

9 and Aging, and the American Psychological Association 

10 together published a book called Assessment of Older Adults 

11 with Diminished CapacitY ... A Handbook for Lawyers. So, this 

12 is a book that I turned to in the situation where I am 

13 concerned that there might be diminished capacity. 

14 Q. SO what did you do with Bill and how did it fit 

15 into the criteria that you were being guided by? 

16 A. One of the key things that when you are meeting 

17 with a client who may have diminished capacity is to meet 

18 with them alone. It is not unusual for a family member to 

19 drive the elderly client to my office, many elderly people 

20 don't drive. So, his daughter, Maureen Erickson, drove him 

21 to my office and initially my meeting was with both of them 

22 so that Bill would become comfortable with a new place, 

23 being in a lawyer's office which lots of people are very 

24 uncomfortable in lawyer's offices. But after the initial 

25 greeting, you know, how are you, you know, that sort of 
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thing, then you need to ask the family member to leave and 

meet solely with the elder client so that I can have an one 

on one with him and do what, it is not a medical assessment 

by any means, I am a lawyer, not a doctor. But to do an 

assessment nonetheless as to whether or not he is 

understanding what is going on. What sort of level of 

capacity does he have. 

Q. And what did you do with Bill? 

A. Well, I met with Bill and this would have been 

on June 21, for quite some time after the initial meeting 

where he, Maureen and I met. And I asked him lots of 

questions. Bill is quite a talker and was very willing to 

tell me a lot of things about his past, where he was born, 

where he grew up. I asked him about his children. I asked 

15 him about where he worked. I asked him about the 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

guardianship. There were, I spent at least 20 minutes just 

kind of sitting back and listening to what he was telling me 

about his history and, you know, getting a sense of where he 

was at mentally. 

Q. Was there anything in that or did he, was he able 

to respond to your various questions about his background 

and his past? 

A. He was. He was. One of the things with, you 

24 know, elderly clients is that they can often talk to you 

25 about, you know, where they were born, where they grew up, 
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1 their first job, those sorts of things. Those are really 

2 set and clear in their minds. But, he was also clear on 

3 what was going on currently. He could identify for me who 

4 the president was. He could tell me what the date was. He 

5 could tell me where he lived and that he lived with Maureen 

6 and that he had been living with her since sometime around 

7 the beginning of the year. He was familiar with the 

8 guardianship ·proceeding and that his son, Jerome, was 

9 seeking guardianship over him. He was well aware, oh, and 

10 beyond that, here is a man who is needing to undergo a 

11 serious medical surgery, a heart valve replacement, he knew 

12 that that was coming up. He knew that he needed a heart 

13 valve replacement. He was definitely aware of what was 

14 going on in my opinion. There were some particular, I have 

15 to give you the cavia (phonetic), I am not a medical doctor 

16 but I have dealt with enough elderly people that there are 

17 some tests that I do to find out, you know, how with it is 

18 the client. And I did some of those with Bill as well. 

19 Q. And what did you do? 

20 A. Well, one of the tests is you ask the client to 

21 count backwards from a hundred subtracting sevens. My 

22 husband laughs at me because he says that he can't even do 

23 that and he is no where near elderly. But I asked Bill to 

24 do that and he counted back 100, 93, 86, 79, 72, then he 

25 said 66, and said what am I subtracting? And I said, seven. 
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1 And he said, 59 and 53. Well, you can see that that is not 

2 absolutely perfect but initially it was and that mental 

3 acuity I thought was significant. It's not all by itself, 

4 it just one little piece. But that coupled with the other 

5 information he was able to provide me did impress me. I 

6 asked him another question about well, when he had retired. 

7 He told me he had lots of jobs. He told me about various 

8 jobs, working at Boeing. He told me that he never flew for 

9 Boeing but he had been a pilot. I asked him well, when did 

10 you retire? And he kind of looked and he struggled with 

11 that. He couldn't tell me initially and then he said, well, 

12 it must of been 65. I was born in '16, so 1981. If you 

13 seen what he did, he did, he did another mathematical 

14 calculation. He must have been age 65, he said, when he 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

retired if he was born in '16, that means he retired in 

1981. Again, he is demonstrating the acuity of his mental 

faculties by that sort of process. 

Q. Did you know or did he tell you what his 

profession was? 

A. Well, he told me that he had worked for Boeing. 

He didn't, I didn't ask him a lot of questions about what 

his jobs were thereafter. He stated that he was on the road 

a lot. He traveled. That his wife got used to that. But I 

did not ask him as to what his what they were over the 

years, his professions. 
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Q. 

A. 

Did you learn that he was an engineer? 

He said that he worked for Boeing: So; I should 

have known that from, well, he worked for Boeing. 

Q. I am sorry, I didn't mean to interrupt you. 

A. Oh, no, that's fine. But he clearly an 

(inaudible) in his brain. How that was working, the 

mathematical. 

Q. Was there any other questioning that you did to 

give yourself an idea as to his competence? 

A. Weil, I asked him about the guardianship 

proceeding. And, you know, he did exhibit quite a bit of 

animosity towards Jerome and towards the fact that this 

guardianship was pending. He also told me that, about the, 

I think he said, two occasions where he was kidnaped. He 

said pirated and he explained to me that he had been driven 

to the airport by his daughter-in-law from Sandpoint to the 

airport in Spokane and felt th'at he was being compelled to 

go. He told the daughter-in-law that he didn't want to go 

further. He told me that he got on the airplane, went to 

Salt Lake City. At which time, he got off there and that 

his son, Craig, at his request, drove him back to Spokane. 

This, a lot of the conversation, he clearly had the 

animosity towards his son, Jerry and, not so much towards 

Craig, but Craig in that he was, Bill said siding with 

Jerry. 
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Q. Did Bill recall some other, or was there, did you 

discuss other animosities that Bill held towards Jerome? 

MS. MASSEY: Objection, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Basis? 

MS. MASSEY: Outside the scope of this witness' 

testimony. She testifying to his ... 

THE COURT: I am inclined to agree. I think she is 

testifying to matters that go beyond the competency question 

that seemed to me to be hearsay from Mr. McKee at this time 

as well. I would ask you to ask another question, Mr. Rose. 

Q. All right. Was there any discussion with Bill 

about recent property transactions he may have made? 

A. Yeah, there were. A lot of the time I spoke with 

Bill was about, you know, what properties did he own and he 

did describe that he had in the past given or transferred 

property to Jerome and that he had asked that that be 

17 returned. He told me that he had transferred the Priest 

18 Lake property to Maureen and that Jerome wanted that 

19 property but he did not know why Jerome would want that 

20 property. He thought Jerome was set financially and did not 

21 need it. He did spend quite a bit of time telling me about 

22 a safe deposit box and monies that were in the safe deposit 

23 box. 

24 MS. MASSEY: Again, your Honor. I am going to object. 

25 We are back to outside of the scope of what she is 
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1 testifying to. 

2 THE COURT: Mr. Rose, how do you respond to that? 

3 MR. ROSE: Well, there are statements of Bill that we, I 
, 

4 think are treating as statements of a party to the action. 

5 There are statements that show that Bill has knowledge of 

6 his effects and recollection of what is going on. 

7 THE COURT: I think for that purpose, basically, for 

8 establishing Mr. McKee's ability to articulate the issues 

9 and the property and the subject, whether that goes to 

10 whether he's in need. of a conservator or a guardian is 

11 appropriate. So, I am going to overrule the objection and 

12 allow Ms. St. Louis to testify to those issues. So, go 

13 ahead. 

14 A. And what Bill told me was that he was, he felt 

15 strongly that there was a safe deposit box that had 

16 basically been raided by Jerome. That there was $150,000.00 

17 in that. That there was a collection in that. I didn't 

18 take detailed notes as to exactly what was in there. Part 

19 of it was, I didn't really care as much about the details. 

20 I was simply going for the point of, you know, assessing 

21 whether he knew what was going on. And that, his 

22 conversations about, you know, what assets he had and what 

23 he had transferred helped confirm my conclusion that he did 

24 understand what was going on. He was and did have legal 

25 capacity to execute the documents that he wanted such that, 
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1 you know, the powers of attorney and the health care 

2 directive for his upcoming surgery. 

3 Q. Additional property transfers you discussed with 

4 Bill, you discussed, you mentioned the Priest Lake and now 

5 the safety deposit box. Did you discuss anything about an 

6 Osburn home or Spokane home? 

7 A. He believed, yes, I did, and he believed that he 

8 had transferred those properties to Maureen is what I 

9 understood. 

10 Q. Did you discuss any of the reasoning behind these 

11 transfers? 

12 A. No, I did not. I do know from his prior estate 

13 planning documents that he brought with him that his 2004 

14 will did give everything to Maureen. So, that, giving 

15 property to Maureen would be consistent with his prior 

16 despotitive (phonetic) scheme. I am sorry, I need to, your 

17 question, if did I discuss, I was aware that either Bill or 

18 Bill and Maureen had consulted with another elder law 

19 attorney in Spokane for purposes of Medicaid planning. 

20 Because I was aware of that I did not want to delve too far 

21 into that aspect of elder law because I knew that there was 

22 already another attorney, highly qualified, to be addressing 

23 the Medicaid planning issues. 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

And who is that other attorney? 

That is Dick Sayre of Sayre and Sayre. 

577 
-17-



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

iO 

11 

i2 

13 

14 

15 

Q. And you indicated that, or does that person have 

any experience in the area to the best of your knowledge? 

A. Well, in Spokane, Dick is considered the elder 

law attorney in terms of his level of knowledge and his 

level skills. And, in fact, if I were to, I can count on 

one hand the top elder law attorneys in Washington and he 

rates right up there. 

to ... 

Q. And what type of assistance is he providing? 

MS. MASSEY: Objection, your Honor, she can't testify 

THE COURT: I will overrule if she knows what assistance 

he is providing either her through conversations with Mr. 

McKee or otherwise. I will allow her to answer that. 

A. Through conversations with Bill and with Dick 

Sayer I did call Dick to let him know that Bill had come to 

16 see me. Was Dick doing the Medicaid estate planning or 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Medicaid planning and he told me that he was doing so. 

Which Medicaid planning is to, planning that one does to 

make one available or eligible for long term care paid by 

DSHS in the state of Washington. 

Q. Is that a common method for, is that a common 

thing that elder folks do from what you have seen in your 

practice? 

A. Medicaid planning is something that you always 

would consider in terms of what your goals are. So, that is 
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common Medicaid planning. 

Q. And ... 

A. Now, I have to say that not all estate planning 

attorneys would know that but elder law attorneys would. 

Q. Okay. Now, have I missed anything on what went 

into your considerations on ... 

A. Yes ... 

Q. In making Bill ... 

9 A. I don't know if you have missed it. I think I 

10 have just been ... 

11 MS. MASSEY: Objection, your Honor, leading the witness. 

12 THE COURT: I am going to overrule. I will allow her to 

13 answer the question. Go ahead. 

14 A. With a client with potential diminished capacity 

15 you don't want to get just one snap shot of them, you know. 

16 I wanted to make sure that Bill understood what it was in 

17 the terms of powers of attorney what they did and his health 

18 care directive. So the next day, after I had met with him, 

19 I called him on the phone and I know that Bill is hard of 

20 hearing and that makes it difficult to communicate; but I 

21 was able to communicate with him. I called him, I asked, 

22 Maureen answered the phone and I asked that, I didn't mean 

23 to be rude, but I asked that she put Bill on the phone and I 

24 spoke with him. And I went through the normal pleasantries 

25 when you call somebody, how are you doing, that sort of 
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1 thing. And then after a couple of minutes of that, I asked 

2 Bill do you understand what a power of attorney is. And he 

3 said yes, it gives others the right to use my signature. 

4 Maureen has had that power for years. That is consistent 

5 with the fact that in 2005, I believe, it was either 2004 or 

6 2005, he had executed a power of attorney giving Maureen 

7 financial power of attorney. And I asked him about who he 

8 would like to be his attorney in fact to make those 

9 decisions and he said that Maureen had done it for years so 

10 she would be good. But he also referred to Garth, his 

11 grandson, and said that, you know, Garth is a business man. 

12 Garth has financial acumen, he did not use that word, but 

13 he's financially quite capable and that Garth would be good 

14 for that. And he told me that he wanted, would like to live 

15 with Maureen and that they were considering going to Seattle 

16 and to be near the boys and that that would be comfortable 

17 for him. I asked him about the medical power of attorney 

18 and he said that Maureen would be best for that because she 

19 helps me. And he had previously told me about the fact 

20 that, what she does for him. You know, she does what, I 

21 guess, a daughter would do. He says he does things okay on 

22 his own, but Maureen does help with food and with his 

23 laundry and that sort of thing. So, then I got the sense 

24 that he understood the powers of attorney and it was totally 

25 consistent with my conversation the next day, nothing had 
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1 changed. He understood what the powers of attorney were, 

2 who he was giving them to, and what it would empower them to 

3 do. So, I was comfortable with that. So then I go on and I 

4 ask him, tell me, let's talk about the health care 

5 directive, do you remember what that is. And the terms, 

6 health care directive, no he didn't pick up, yeah, this is 

7 what it is. But when I said, this tells the doctor what you 

8 want them to do and he told me, yeah, I am having a surgery 

9 and I said okay, so let's go down this road, Bill. If you, 

10 after that surgery, you know, you don't come out of it, 

11 you'll never come out of it, and you will always been in 

12 that state where you'll never wake up and you would just, 

13 you know, a feeding tube or some artificial means to keep 

14 you alive, is that what you want? He was adamant, no, I 

15 don't want that. Does not want a feeding tube. He says I 

16 don't want nothing fake-a-roo. So, it was clear to me that 

17 he understood that the fact that he is having a surgery, he 

18 is undergoing a serious procedure and he did not want any 

19 artificial means to support if there was no hope of him ever 

20 recovering. So, then again I asked him the date. He did 

21 not give the date right. It was the 22~ and he said it was 

22 the 27th. He says, well, I don't have a calendar in front 

23 of me when I corrected him. He said that it is summer. He 

24 said that the president was George Bush. I sense that he 

25 was clearly with it and understanding me during that 
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1 conversation. So, that was my second interaction with Bill. 

2 Q. Did you have another one? 

3 A. Urn, hum. On June 25, Bill came to my office. 

4 Maureen drove him, I think I didn't have, I had very little 

5 conversation with Maureen. I asked her to stay in the lobby 

6 and then I met with Bill and I went over all of his 

7 documents with him to make sure that he, again, to make sure 

8 that he, I see that he has that level of understanding what 

9 these documents are. He understood that the powers of 

10 attorney, the health care directive, but he was confused by 

11 the will. I had prepared a will for him because of a prior 

12 conversation having to do with a "kidnaping" where he 

13 believed that he may have signed a document or a will that 

14 was inconsistent with giving everything to Maureen, that 

15 that may have been something that he did in the past. So, I 

16 had prepared a will for him and this was the first 

17 opportunity he had seen the will was on this Monday, 

18 June 25, and he did not want to proceed at that time because 

19 he hadn't had an opportunity to review these documents. So, 

20 that was completely understandable to me. He's, is the 

21 first time that he had seen it, said okay, take this home 

22 and come back later this week and if you want to sign them 

23 at that time, then we'll do that. 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

And did he come back? 

On Thursday, June 28, he came back and again I met 

582 
-22-



1 with Bill. Maureen, again, was asked to wait in the lobby. 

2 He again appeared competent. He understood what date it 

3 was. He didn't give me any indication of any confusion and 

4 at that time, again, I went over the same sort of thing. 

5 You have to go over it and over it again to, I just did that 

6 to make sure. He understood the powers of attorney, the 

7 health care directive, who he wanted to appoint and he 

8 signed them. After that, I sat down with him and I went 

9 over the will with him. And he got hung up on the fact that 

10 the will mentions Jerome and Craig, doesn't give anything to 

11 them, but it says that I have three children. You know, 

12 Jerome, Craig and Maureen. And that upset him that he 

13 didn't want their names anywhere in the will. I explained 

14 to him that it needed to be in the will if it was going, you 

15 have to name who, you know, who your children are and he 

16 said to me that, you know what, I have done a will in the 

17 past, it gives everything to Maureen. I don't need a new 

18 will at that time. So, he did not sign the will at that 

19 time. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Did he later? 

He did. 

And when was that? 

Well, that happened actually on July 3. I was not 

24 there are the office so my office mate, Darr Grewy 

25 (phonetic), who is an estate planning attorney was one of 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

the witnesses to the will at that time. 

Q. SO, in consideration of your legal ethics in pre­

paration of these documents and obtaining the client's 

signature, did you believe that Bill was competent? 

A. I did. But again, I am lawyer, and went through 

all of these assessments but to make sure that I wasn't off 

base, I didn't think I was, but I also wanted and requested 

the medical documentation that would confirm my belief that 

he was competent and so I obtained medical documentation in 

addition to my own meetings with Bill. 

Q. 

A. 

And what medical documentation did you review? 

That was the affidavit of Terry Spohr which I 

13 believe was filed in this matter. I have the, a Brian Fuhs, 

14 F-U-H-S, MD, letter of March 9, 2007; Robert Wygert, MD, 

15 letter of March 8, 2007; and an April 9, 2007, consultation 

16 report from Steven Nisko, MD, who I stand is the heart 

17 surgeon and to whom I spoke directly as well. 

18 

19 

20 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

You did speak directly with the heart surgeon? 

I did. 

And did you have discussion about Bill's 

21 competence with the heart surgeon? 

22 A. I did. 

23 Q. And what was that discussion? 

24 A. Well, Dr. Nisko stated to me that, in his belief, 

25 that, you know, that Bill had been competent, was competent, 
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1 was able to give in,formed consent for the surgery. So, it 

2 is what he had previously written but I also directly 

3 received that information from Dr. Nisko. I do want to 

4 point out that that was subsequent to the signing of the 

5 documents, that I actually spoke with Nisko, so as not to 

6 mislead the court on that. 

7 Q. You indicated that, I wanted to clarify, whose, 

8 who did Bill appoint to be his financial guardian? 

9 A. Garth, his grandson. 

iO Q. And at what point and time would that financial 

11 guardianship document come into play? 

i2 A. It is an immediate power of attorney comes into 

13 play immediately at the time of signing which is June 28, 

14 2008. 

15 MR. ROSE: I believe that is all of the questions that 

16 I have, your Honor. 

17 THE COURT: Thank you. Ms. Massey, questions of Ms. St. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Louis? 

MS. MASSEY: Yes, your Honor. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MASSEY: 

Q. Ms. St. Louis, you said, in total you spent about 

two hours with Bill, is that correct? 

A. That would be, actually, that is an underestimate 

because when I was looking back I saw that my last meeting 
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1 with him was an hour, the meeting before that was an hour. 

2 I spent about 15 minutes on the phone with him and then 

3 maybe 30 minutes initially meeting with him alone, 30 to 

4 40 minutes. So, it is a little bit over a hour, closer to 

5 three hours rather than two hours. 

6 Q. In your experience practicing elder law have you 

7 seen clients who presented well, you knew who they were and 

8 where they were but yet suffered from poor judgement? 

9 

10 

11 

12 ment. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Did you say elder clients? 

Yes. 

Elder as well as younger clients with poor judge-

In your experience, you have seen clients who 

14 presented well, knew who they were, knew where they were who 

15 were vulnerable? 

16 

17 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

In your experience, have you seen clients who 

18 presented well, who were being exploited? 

19 A. NOw, that is a tougher question to answer. 

20 Because when you are making a determination of whether they 

21 are being exploited you need a much bigger view point. That 

22 wasn't my, that wasn't where I was coming from. I was 

23 looking at does he understand what is in front of him right 

24 now. So, I certainly allow for the possibility that 

25 somebody who is competent and understands things may be 
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1 exploited unbeknownst to what I am able to see of their 

2 life. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

l4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. The picture thqt you got in three hours? 

A. Correct. Correct. 

Q. Do you do a lot of guardianships, Ms. St. Louis? 

Do you practice ... 

A. I do guardianships as well. 

Q. Okay. Have you seen guardians hips granted when an 

elderly client presented well but perhaps their reasoning 

skills and their judgement skills were poor? 

A. I really can't answer that question because as you 

know there is so much more that goes into whether a 

guardianship would be granted. I don't know Idaho standards 

but in Washington, you know, we look at are there lesser 

restrictive alternatives to the guardianship. What other 

things can be in place to protect the person if they are 

vulnerable, if they are being exploited. So, I really can't 

answer that question based on how it is posed. 

Q. Well, let me ask you this. When, in your 

experience, do you normally represent a petitioner or the 

proposed (inaudible) or have you done both? 

A. Both. 

Q. Okay. And do you generally like to see more 

extensive testing than mini mental status exam? Do you like 

to see a cognitive assessment? Or perhaps a pyscho-social 
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1 eval? 

2 A. In a guardianship you certainly need to have the 

3 medical assessment by a medical doctor who would offer an 

4 opinion as to the level of competency. Definitely. And 

5 obviously I don't have that. That is one of the reasons 

6 that I turn to the other, to the medical information to 

7 (inaudible) what my conclusion had been. But again, I am 

8 not, I wasn't doing a guardianship. I am looking at whether 

9 this gentleman had the legal capacity to execute those 

10 documents and I concluded that, in fact, he did have that 

11 capacity. 

12 Q. Okay. When you were meeting with Mr. McKee or 

13 talking with Mr. Mckee, did you look at any of his financial 

14 records? His financial, bank statements? Anything of that 

15 sort? 

16 

17 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Did you realize that Mr. McKee's fund were co-

18 mingled with those of his daughter's? 

19 A. I don't know if I would say co-mingled, I would 

20 not have been surprised by that. But I again, I did not 

21 look at any of his bank accounts nor his daughter's bank 

22 accounts. 

23 Q. And Ms. St. Louis you testified that you do some 

24 Medicaid estate planning, is that correct? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. Are you familiar with the Medicaid eligibility 

2 rules in Washington? 

3 

4 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Okay. If there is a resource transfer of less 

5 than fair market value is there a penalty period for that? 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

Are there exemptions to those resources? 

Yes. 

What are those exemptions? 

An exemption would be from a single person they 

11 can transfer their house to a care giver child who has lived 

12 with them for two years and because of that assistance they 

13 have been allowed to stay in the home. Again, we are 

14 talking about a gift for less than fair market value. A 

15 transfer to a sibling who has an ownership interest in the 

16 home is another exempted, a transfer to a disabled child or 

17 to a minor a child is exempted from the gifting penalty. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q. Is there an exemption for a transfer to an adult 
. 

child for less than fair market value because of guilt? 

A. Not that I know of. 

Q. Thank you. So, if property was transferred to an 

adult child for less than fair market value for a reason 

23 other than one of those that you listed, would an elderly 

24 person be Medicaid eligible for long term care? 

25 A. Under your scenario, where it is a gift and that 
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1 is the key to your scenario, that, there is not an exemption 

2 then there will be a penalty period that is imposed upon the 

3 date of the application for however many months the penalty 

4 period would run depending on the divisor. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Q. 

perty? 

A. 

Q. 

St. Louis? 

A. 

Depending on the fair market value of the pro-

Urn, hum. 

What is the divisor in Washington right now, Ms. 

It is $199.00 per day. 

11 MS. MASSEY: That is all I have, your Honor. 

12 THE COURT: I have a couple questions, Ms. St. Louis 

13 before I give Mr. Rose another chance. The documents that 

14 you had prepared for Mr. McKee, the power of attorney, the 

15 financial power of attorney for Garth, and the medical power 

16 of attorney for Maureen, are those both documents that are 

1 7 designed to survive incompetency? 

18 A. Indeed, they are durable powers of attorney. 

19 Q. (By the Court) Okay. So that would apply to a 

20 financial one as well as the, what I am more familiar with, 

21 the durable power of attorney for health care purposes? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. Okay. So, do they use those frequently in the 

24 state of Washington? As opposed to getting into 

25 conservatorships and guardianships? 

590 
-30-



1 
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3 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Absolutely. A. 

Q. All right. And if you found in your practice 

that the durable powers of attorney for financial matters, I 

guess, the surviving contest by family and other relatives 

to your experience? 

A. Yes. As long as their was competency when the 

document was drafted. 

Q. Okay. And they are respected by business en­

tities, banks, and everyone else? For instance, if Garth 

were in a position to sell property or conveyor to obtain 

Mr. McKee's assets and inventory those things and do the 

things that would be expected of him. Under that banks and 

other entities would respect the power of attorney? 

A. Yes, under law they are required to. Some banks 

are more problematic and usually all it takes is a letter to 

their counsel saying that under our statute when can take 

you to court for not recognizing it. 

Q. Okay. 

A. So they are recognized. If they are, in parti-

cular, if they are more recent. Staler ones, older ones are 

more problematic with a bank. A recent document, 

particularly, when it is notarized and I have these 

witnesses, well, it will be recognized. 

THE COURT: All right. I am going to give Ms. Massey a 

chance to ask Ms. St. Louis, did you have any other 
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1 questions in light of my questions of this witness? 

2 MS. MASSEY: Yes, thank you. 

3 THE COURT: Okay, go ahead. 

4 Q. Ms. St. Louis, are there circumstances where you 

5 have seen a durable power of attorney for finances or health 

6 care that later, in your opinion, a guardianship and 

7 conservatorship was needed to supercede those? 

8 A. I know that there are such cases. I haven't 

9 personally seen that but I am aware of them. 

10 Q. Okay. In what circumstances, you haven't seen 

11 them, but you are aware of them? 

12 A. Well, usually that is when you involve Adult 

13 Protective Services because there is some sort of 

14 . exploitation involved where there is the attorney in fact is 

15 in breach of their fiduciary obligation and taking advantage 

16 of the principal. 

17 Q. Thank you. In your practice have you seen adult 

18 children who have coached an elderly parent? 

19 A. You are getting to the question of undue in-

20 fluence and that is something that I always look for when a 

21 child brings an adult or an elderly person into the office. 

22 And that is why I meet with them alone and that is why I 

23 meet with them time and time again, maybe when they are not 

24 expecting it such as a phone call. You know, as human 

25 nature is that we are all susceptible to influence. The 
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14 

15 

16 
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18 
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20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

question is whether it is undue influence. And so that was 

as Bill's attorney that is who I am looking out for. And so 

that I what I was looking for particularly with his 

daughter, Maureen, who brought him to me. So that was a 

consideration, yes. I didn't conclude from my interactions 

that there existed undue influence but I certainly was aware 

that that could be an issue. 

Q. Have you seen elderly clients who were unduly 

influenced by an adult child that perhaps,the child didn't, 

wasn't with the elderly client when you met with them but 

there would have been repercussions from that child had they 

left th~ office and didn't do what that child had wanted 

them to do? 

A. No, but I am sure that that happens. I mean just 

the nature of family dynamics that I wouldn't been surprised 

to find that. When you are talking about undue influence, 

you are balancing what is their vulnerability, their 

susceptibility, you know. How vulnerable are they. And 

when you find that somebody is competent, you know, the 

higher their strength, their mentation, their cognitive 

skills, the less susceptible they are to that sort of 

influence. 

Q. Ms. St. Louis, in your practice when there is one 

child who has primary control of an elderly parent and has 

isolated that parent from the other children, does that 
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1 raise red flags for you? 

2 A. Isolation, if it is imposed by the child certainly 

3 does. Isolation that is a choice of the parent is another 

4 matter. Sometimes parents don't care to interact with 

5 certain other children. 

6 MS. MASSEY: I have no further questions, your Honor. 

7 THE COURT: Okay, thank you, Ms. Massey. Mr. Rose, any 

8 redirect questions? 

9 MR. ROSE: Just a few, your Honor. 

10 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

11 BY MR. ROSE: 

12 Q. In your working with Bill, was there anything to 

13 suggest that he was being exploited? 

14 A. No, there wasn't and I would ask this question 

15 many times without Maureen in the room, do you trust 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Maureen? Do you trust Garth? 

Q. And what was Bill's response? 

A. He trusts them. 

Q. Was there anything to suggest that he might 

this vulnerable adult as Ms. Massey was referring to? 

A. You know, he is 90 years old. He was frail 

22 physically. He was able to get up and around. He was 

be 

23 mentally competent. You know, but again, you know, in all 

24 fairness, my, what I was able to see is just this slice of 

25 the picture. I wasn't able to go home with them and see 
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8 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

what goes on or see what goes on at other times. So, I 

can't comment, but in terms of what I saw, no, there was 

nothing. I just don't want to suggest that I know 

everything because the court and the witnesses here have 

much greater knowledge of, on a lot of other areas that I 

don't have. 

Q. In regards to this Medicaid issue, the exemptions 

for transfer that Ms. Massey spoke of were dealing with 

exemptions without fair value, is that correct? 

A. Correct, yes. 

Q. There are other exemptions when there is fair 

value? 

A. Well, if the transfer is for market value, if 

there is no gift component to it that would not trigger any 

penalty. 

Q. SO a settlement of the dispute say between 

Maureen and Bill for value would not interfere with his 

ability to collect Medicaid? 

A. Correct. 

20 MR. ROSE: That is all I have, your Honor. 

21 THE COURT: Ms. Massey, anything further for this 

22 witness? 

23 MS. MASSEY: Yes, your Honor. 

24 

25 
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RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MASSEY: 

Q. Ms. St. Louis, if there was a dispute between 

Maureen and Bill, in your opinion, would it be in Bill's 

best interest to appoint her as a power of attorney? 

A. For what, what does the dispute concern? 

Financial? Q. 

A. Garth does, Garth is his attorney in fact for 

financial not Maureen. 

Q. If a client is in a dispute with an adult child, 

I guess, in terms of Medicaid eligibility for a 

reimbursement for their care or may be property that they 

thought they were entitled to, is it your opinion that that 

adult child would act in that parent's best interest? 

A. Well, that's a tough one to answer. The attorney 

in fact owes a fiduciary duty to the principal to act in the 

principal's best interest and not in their own best interest 

would be my response to that. So, your posing a question 

where there would be a dispute, I presume, would make 

impossible to act in the best interest. And, I need to back 

up. Not only in their best interest but as, when it comes 

to health care, it's, you know, you need to act according to 

the wishes of the principal, as you know the wishes of the 

principal to be. 

Q. Have you seen in your practice, have you seen 

596 
-36-



1 adult children who held power of attorneys for health care, 

2 power of attorneys for finances that did not act in their 

3 parents' best wishes? 

4 A. I have not seen that personally though certainly 

5 that is the concern always with the power of attorney is 

6 that it could be misused. 

7 THE COURT: Is that it then Ms. Massey? 

e MS. MASSEY: Yes, your Honor. 

9 THE COURT: All right, Mr. Rose, anything further? 

10 MR. ROSE: No, your Honor. 

11 THE COURT: All right. May Ms. St. Louis be excused 

12 today? 

13 MR. ROSE: Yes. 

14 MS. MASSEY: Yes. 

15 THE COURT: All right, Ms. St. Louis, you are free to 

16 go. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

MR. ROSE: Thank you. 

MS. ST. LOUIS: Thank you, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Next witness, Mr. Rose? 

MR. ROSE: Call Garth Erickson. 

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Erickson, I will have you 

22 come forward and be sworn in. 

23 

24 

25 

597 
-37-



IJU/ ;::U/2008 02 :15 FAX 208664888'" HAROLDBSMITH 

1 LLOYD A. HERMAN 
LLOYD HERMAN & ASSOCIATES, P.S. 

2 213 N. University Road 
Spokane Valley, W A 99206 . 
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3 (509) 922-6600 * fax (509) 922-4720 
ISB#6884 By:_(2=-I.-J:=_--+,OEPun 

4 Attorney for Bill McKee 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

1.9 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF mE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 
SrA TE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNIY OF SHOSHONE 

IN TIfE MAITER OF THE 
GUARDIANSHIP AND 
CONSERVATORSHIP OF: 

BILL MCKEE, a protected person. 

) 

~ 
~ CASE NO. CV 07·120 
) 
) ORDER TERMINATING 
) CONSERVATORSIDP 

~ 
) 

--~---------------~-----~ 
Th.e Court, having heard the arguments of counsel and viewed the evidence presented, 

orders the following: 

ORDER 
• I 

1. The cOl1$ervatorsWp over the finances of Bill E. McKee is terminated pursuant 

20 to the suggestion of the Washington court. 

21 2. The guardianship over the person of Bill E. McKee shall remain under the 

22 jurisdiction of the courts of the State ofWashlngton. 

23 3. The conservator, Shelley Bruna, disclaims any interest in any properties owned 

24 
by Bill McKee in Idaho and Washington. 

25 
4. The conservator, Shelley Bruna, shall immediately tum over all funds 

26 
27 belonging to Bill McKee to his attorney, Lloyd A. Herman, as well as any property she may 

28 
ORDER TERMINATING CONSBRVATORSHTP - 1 
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I have in her possession including) but not limited to, the keys to the cabin at Priest Lake and 

2 Bill McKee's will. 

3 

4 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

5. Maureen Erickson and Bill McKee shall notify the Social Security 

As a result of the termination of the Conservatorship, the conservator, on 

behalf ofBiJI McKee) and Maureen Erickson on her own behalf, agree to dismiss with 

prejudice the action in Shoshone County, CV 07-477. 

7. As a result of the termination of the Conservatorship, the conservator, on 

15 behalf of Bill McKee, and Maureen Erickson. on her own behalf. agree that the Kootenai 

16 County action, CV 08-1329 against Maureen Erickson shall be djsmissed with prejudice. 

17 8. This court hereby permits all outstanding transfers ofBiIl McKee'S real 

~003 

18 property in the State of Idaho to Maureen Erickson including, but not limited to, the transfer 

19 

20 

21 

22 

of the Priest Lake State Lease Lot #226 pursuant to State Lease Transfer documents now in 

the possession of Craig Thompson of the Department of Lands-

9. Bill McKee, Maureen Erickson and her three children agree to sign a Release 

23 and Hold Harmless agreement against Shelley Bruna for any actions taken while she was 

24 acting as the conservator of Bill McKee's estate. 

25 

26 

27 

28 

10. Bill McKee agrees to pay to Shelley Bruna the amount of$2,000. Payments of 

two hundred fifty dollars ($250) per months will commence one year from the date of this 

ORDER TERMINATING CONSERVATOR.SHIP - 2 
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1 order, without interest, and shall be secured by Deed of Trust on the home located. at 4702 S. 

2 Pender Lane, Spokane, Washington. 

3 

4 
DONE IN OPEN COURT this _ day of June, 2008. 

5 

6 

7 MAGISTRATE PATRICK MCFADDEN 

8 

9 Presented by: 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

.s. 

By; 
Lloyd A. H WSBA#3245 
Washington Attorney for Bill McKee 

Approved as to Form. and Content: 

By: 
John 1. Rose, Jr.,ISB #2094 
Idaho Attorney for Bm McKee 

By:~_ 
Douglas Oviatt. ISS #7536 
Attorney for Shelley Bruna, Conservator 
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CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

""/-h 
I hereby certify that on the t5l..CJ of June, 2008, I caused a true and correct 

~I.II.II 

6 copy of the foregoing ORDER TERMINATlG CONSERVATORSHIP by method indicated 

7 below ~ and addressed to the following individuals: 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Lloyd A. Herman 
Lloyd Hennan & Associates, PS 
213 N. University Road 
Spokane, W A 99206 

John J. Rose, Jr., 
Law Offices of John J. Rose, PC 
708 W. Cameron Avenue 
Kellogg, 10 83837 

Douglas A. Oviatt 
Owens & Crandall, PLLC 
1859 N. Lakewood Drive, Suite 104 
Coenr d' Alene, ID 83814 

Deputy Clerk 

__ US Mail 
__ Ovemight 
__ Personal Service $I 7.;1. 0 

K Facsimile 1-509-922.-6600 

__ us Mail 
__ Ovemight 
__ P.ersonal Service 

v Facsimile 1-208-786-8005 

__ US Mail 
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(Copy Receipt) 

SUPERIOR COURT OF 
WASHINGTON 

COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

In the Guardianship of: 

B(LL E. McKEE 

An Incapacitated Person 

'.. .'..,., ~' . 

(Clerk's Date Stamp) 

CASE NO. 08-400259-6 

ORDER APPOINTING 
o LIMITED 
·X I FULL GUARDIAN OF PERSON AND/OR 
UiIMITED 
o FULL GUARDIAN OF ESTATE 

CLERK'S ACTION REQUIRED 

CLERK'S INFORMATION SUMMARY 
Due Date for Initial Personal Care Plan and Inventory: 
Due Date for Receipt(s) of Funds in Blocked Account(s): 
Due Date for Report and Accounting: 
Due Date for Filing Fee: . 
The Clerk Shall Notify the Auditor of Loss o(Voting Rights Yes 0 No X . 
X Certified Professional Guardian 0 Non· Professional Guardian (training required) 

THIS MATTER came on regularly for hearing on a Petition for Appointment of 

Guardian or Limited Guardian of BILLE. "McKEE . , the Alleged 

Incapacitated Person. 

o The Alleged Incapacitated Person was present in Court; 
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o The hearing was conducted outside of the courtroom at the location of the Alleged 

Incapacitated Person; 

o The Alleged Incapacitated Person's presence was waived for good cause shown other 

than mere inconvenience, as set forth in the file and reports in this matter; 

The Guardian ad Litem was present. The following other persons were also present at the 

hearing: Tim Mackin, Guardian Ad Litem; Art Toreson, Attorney for Maureen 
Erickson; Lloyd Herman, Attorney for Bill McKee; John Munding, 

-Attorney for Jerome and Craiq McKee; and Maureen Erickson. 
The Court conSIdered the wntten report 01 the UuardIan ad Litem and the MedicaV 

Psychological/ARNP Report, the testimony of witnesses, remarks of counsel, and the documents 

filed herein. Based on the above, the Court makes the following: 

I. 
FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Notices: All notices required by law have been given and proof of service as required by 

statute is on file. Notice, if required, was provided to the Regional Administrator of DSHS 

pursuant to RCW 11.92.150, but DSHS neither appeared at this hearing nor responded to the 

Petition. 

2. Jurisdiction: The jurisdictional facts set forth in the petition are true and correct, and the 

Court has jurisdiction over the person and/or estate of the Alleged Incapacitated Person. 

3. Guardian ad Litem: The Guardian ad Litem appointed by the Court has filed a report with 

the Court. The report is complete and complies with all requirements ofRCW 11.88.090. 

4. Alternative Arrangements Made By The Alleged Incapacitated Person: 

o The Alleged Incapacitated Person did not make alternative arrangements for assistance, such 

as. a power of attorney, prior to becoming incapacitated. 

X The Alleged Incapacitated Person made alternative arrangements for assistance, but such 

arrangements are inadequate in the-following respects: _____________ _ 

Bill McKee apointed his daughter Maureen Erickson to handle matters 
concerning his healthcare. 
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D ______________ has been acting in a fiduciary capacity for the 

Alleged Incapacitated Person and should NOt continue to do so for the following reasons: 

A conservator was appointed by the Idaho Court to handle Mr. McKee's 
financial matters. The con'servatorship has since been terminated and 
transferred to the Washington Court for further management. A hearing 
has been set for September 19, 2008 to address this matter. 

5. Capacity: The Alleged Incapacitated Person, _ Hi II E. McKee 

X incapable of managing their personal affairs 

o incapable of managing their financial affairs 

________ :, IS 

X the Alleged Incapacitated Person is in need of a full Guardianship over the 

X person D estate 

o the Alleged Incapacitated Person is capable of managing some personal andlor financial 

affairs, but is in need of the protection and assistance of a limited Guardian of the 

D person D estate, 

in the areas as follows: Mr. McKee requires assistance with his daily needs, 

food preparation, transportation, and medkal decision making. 

6. Guardian: The proposed Guardian is qualified to act as Guardian of the Person andlor 

Estate of the Incapacitated Person. Proposed Guardian's address, phone numbers and email 

address are as follows: 

Address: 4702 S. Pender Lane, Spokane, WA 99224 

*Telephone #(s): Business _________ Personal 509-443-6127 

E-mail address: None 

7. Guardian ad Litem Fees and Costs: 

D The Guardian ad Litem was appointed at 0 County 0 estate expense and shall submit a 

motion for payment of fees and costs pursuant to the local rules. 

The Guardian ad Litem has requested a fee of $ ________ for services rendered and 

reimbursement of $ for costs incurred while acting as Guardian ad 

To be addressed at the next court hearing. 
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Litem. Fees in the amount of$ and costs in the amount of$ -------------- ---------
are reasonable and should be paid as follows: 

o $ by the Guardian from the guardianship estate and/orD 

$ _____ by ____________________ for the following reason(s): 

8. Bond: The assets of the Alleged Incapacitated Person: 

X Total less than three thousand dollars ($3,000) and no bond is required. 

o Exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) and should be placed in a blocked account with an 

insured financial institution or bonded, unless the guardian is a bank or trust company. 

o Are to be held by a nonprofit corporation authorized to act as Guardian, and the Court waives 

any bond requirement. 

9. Right to Vote: The Alleged Incapacitated Person X is D is not capable of exercising the 

right to vote. 

II. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. That BILL E. McKEE ____ is an Incapacitated Person within the meaning 

ofRCW Chapter 11.88, and a 

X Full D Limited Guardian of the Person andlor 

D Full D Limited Guardian of the Estate should be appointed; and that 

. Maureen Erickso.~ ___ is a fit and proper person as required by RCW 11.88.020 to be 

appointed. Guardianship of the Estate is pending before this court. 

2. That the powers of the Guardian and the limitations and restrictions placed on the 

Incapacitated Person should be as follows: 

D The right to vote is revoked. 

D Other: ____________________ '--____ _ 

m. 
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ORDER 

It is hereby order~d: 

1. Prior Power of Attorney: .Any Power of Attorney of any kind previously executed by the 

Incapacitated Person: 

X is not canceled 

o is canceled in its entirety 

o is canceled in its entirety except for those provisions pertaining to health care. 

2. Appointment of Guardian: __ Maureen Erickson is appointed as 

X Full 0 Limited Guardian of the Person and/or 

o Full 0 Limited Guardian of the Estate of , and 

the powers of the Guardian and the limitation and restrictions placed on the Incapacitated Person 

shall be as set forth in Conclusion of Law 2. 

3. Letters of GuardianshiplLimited Guardianship: The Clerk ofllie Court shall issue letters 

of X Full 0 Limited Guardianship of the Person and/or 

o Full 0 Limited Guardianship of the Estate to _~ __________ " upon the 

filing of an oath, 

X Verification of Completion of Mandatory Guardian Training or an order waiving trajning, 

o Guardianship bond in the amount of $ or X bond is waived. . . 

o The following account(s) shall be accessible to the Guardian and all other accounts shall be 

blocked and a receipt of Funds in Blocked Account (Form #37) shall be filed with the court no 

later than 30 days from the date of this order: 

Ifbond is waived, the Guardian is required to report to the Court if the total assets of the 

Incapacitated Person reaches or exceeds Three Thousand Dollars. Pursuant to RCW 11.88.100, 

the Guardian of the Estate shall file a yearly statement showing the monthly income of the 

Incapacitate~ Person if said monthly income, excluding moneys from state or federal benefits, is 

over the sum of Five Hundred Dollars per month for any three consecutive months. 
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4. Report of Substantial Change in Income or Assets: Within 30 days of any substantial 

change in the Estate's income or assets, the Guardian of the Estate shall report to the Court and 

schedule a hearing. The purpose of the hearing will be for the Court to consider changing the 

bond or making other provision in accordance with RCW 11.88.100. 

5. Inventory: Within three months of appointment, the Guardian of the Estate shall file a 

verified Inventory of all the property of the Incapacitated Person, which shall come into the 

Guardian's possession or knowledge, including a statement of all encumbrances, liens and other 

secured charges on any item. A review hearing upon filing of the inventory 

o is required D is not required. 

6. Disbursements: On or before the date the Inventory is due, the Guardian of the Estate shall 

also apply to the Court for an Order Authorizing Disbursements on behalf of the Incapacitated 

P~rson as required by RCW 11.92.040. 

7. Personal Care Plan: The Guardian of the Person shall complete and file within three (3) 

months after appointment a Personal Care Plan which shall comply with the requirements of 

RCW 11.92.043(1). 

8. Status of Incapacitated Person: Unless otherwise ordered, the Guardian ofthe Person shall 

file an annual report on the status of the Incapacitated Person that shall comply with the 

requirements ofRCW 11.92.043(2). 

9.. Substantial Change in Condition or Residence: The Guardian of the Person shall report to 

the Court within thirty (30) days any substantial change in the Incapacitated Person's condition, 

or any change in residence of the Incapacitated Person. 

10. Designation of Standby Guardian: The Guardian shall file a written designation of a 

standby Guardian that complies with the requirements ofRCW 11.88.125. 

11. Authority for Investment and Expenditure: The authority of the Guardian of the Estate 

for investment and expenditure of the ward's estate is as follows: ______ ~ __ _ 

12. Duration of Guardianship: This Guardianship shall continue in effect: 
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o until ___________ [date]; OR 

X until terminated pursuant to RCW 11.88.140; 

o the necessity for the Guardianship to continue shall be periodically reviewed. 

13. DischargelRetention of Guardian ad Litem: 

o The Guardian ad Litem is discharged; or 

X The Guardian ad Litem shall cont~ue perfonning further duties or obligations as follows: 

Investigate and prepare a report regarding the estate of Bill McKee. 

Monitqr the finandal matters until further order of the Court. 

14. Notice of Right to Receive Pleadings: The following persons are described in RCW 

11.88.090(5)(d), and the Guardian shall notify them oftheirrightto file with the Courtand serve 

upon the Guardian, or the Guardian's attorney, a request to receive copies of pleadings filed by 

the Guardian with respect to the Guardianship: 

1\!ame 

Address 

15. Guardian Fees: 

o DSHS cases: The Guardian is allowed such fees and costs as permitted by the Washington 

Administrative Code in the amount of$. ________ per month as a deduction from the 

incapacitated person's participation in the DSHS cost of care. Such fees are subject to court 

review and approval. This deduction is approved for the initial twelve month reporting period 

and ninety days thereafter, from the date of this order to . The Guardian 

may petition for fees in excess of the above amount only on notice to the appropriate DSHS 

Regional Administrator per WAC 388.71; OR 

o Non-DSHS cases: The Guardian shall petition the Court for approval of fees. The Guardian 

may advance itself $ per month subiect to Court review and approval. 

16. Guardian ad Litem Fee: The fees and costs will be presented to the Court 
. after the hea..ring on September 19, 2008. o Fees and costs are approveuas ftlaSUliaOltl; VK 

o The Guardian ad Litem fees and costs are approved as reasonable in the total amount of 

$ _________ , They shall be paid from D the Guardianship estate assets, 
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D Spokane County, OR 0 other source(s) as follows: ____________ _ 

17. Legal Fees: The legal fees and costs of _________ are approved as 

reasonable in the amount of $ , and shall be paid from the 

o Guardianship estate assets OR 

o other source(s) as follows: _____________________ _ 

...... __ . __ ._-
18. Guardian's Report: The Guardian's report shall cover the 

X 12 (twelve) month 0 24 (twenty-four) month or 0 36 (thirty-six) month 

period following the appointment. The Guardian's report is due within 90 days of the end of the 

reporting period and shall comply with the requirements ofRCW 11.92.040(2). 

~ 
DATED AND SIGNED IN OPEN COURT THIS \0 DAY OF SEpTE.t'\eeR It 20~ 

Presente~ by: 
// 

/ . rL:--~ 

./t 

JUdg~,itnM: 
GREG SYPOLT 

Arthur H. Toreson, Jr. 

Printed Name ofP~titioner/Attomey, 
WSBNCPG # 5842 

li:~ N. University Road· S:pQkane'Valley, WA 99206 
Address City, State, Zip Code 

509-922-4666/509-:-927-6768 toresonlaw@aol.com 
*Telephone!Fax Number Email Address 

*Under GR 22 (b) (6), parties' personal telephone nnmber(s) are confidential information. If you 
do not want your personal phone number(s) on this public form, complete form #S2-Sealed 
Confidential Information and file in the confidential file. 

Copy received and approved by: 
Guardian Ad Litem 

#lO-ORDER APPOINTING GUARDIAN OF PERSON AND/OR ESTATE 

cdPY 
PAGE 8 OF 9 
Revised 3/0<5 



50 
LLOVD HERMAN 

69/e4/2068 11;31 

FRCM : TArT LA\. OF!=' 1 CE FAX NO. .: 50932545'79 

. 071;;U/2aea 15: 2;:1 SEl99224na LLOYD H~t-I 

L ' By: •. =...::.v.",t-;;;.=-----=~::_:_::_:_--
l.Joyd A. er1l18.1), WSBAl3248 . 
Attorney foi 8lll E. MclCrJC 
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(Copy Receipt) 

SUPERIOR COURT OF 
WASHINGTON 

COUNTY OF SPOKANE 

In the Guardianship of: 

BILL E. McKEE 
An Incapacitated Person 

(Clerk's Date Stamp) 

CASE NO. 08-400259-6 

ORDER APPOINTING 
DLIMITED 
D FULL GUARDIAN OF PERSON AND/OR 
DLIMITED 
[gJ FULL GUARDIAN OF ESTATE 

(ORAPGD) (CLERK'S ACTION REQUIRED) 

CLERK'S INFORMATION SUMMARY 
Due Date for Initial Personal Care Plan and Inventory; 
Due Date for Receipt(s) of Funds in Blocked Account(s): 
Due Date for Report and Accounting: 
Due Date for Filing Fee:. 
The Clerk Shall Notify the Auditor of Loss of Voting Rights Yes D No [gJ 
[gJ Certified Professional Guardian D Non Professional Guardian (training-required) 

THIS MA ITER came on regularly for hearing on a Petition for Appointment of 

Guardian or Limited Guardian of OCTOBER 3, 2008, the Alleged Incapacitated Person. 

o The Alleged Incapacitated Person was present in Court; 

o The hearing was conducted outside of the courtroom at the location of the Alleged 

Incapacitated Person; 
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o The Alleged Incapacitated Person's presence was waived for good cause shown other 

than mere inconvenience, as set forth in the file and reports in this matter; 

The Guardian ad Litem was present. The following other persons were also present at the 

hearing: Arthur Toreson, Attorney for Maureen Erickson; Tim Mackin, Guardian Ad Litem; 

Lloyd Herman, Attorney for Bill McKee; John Munding, Attorney for Jerome and Craig McKee; 

and Maureen Erickson, Guardian ofthe person for Bill E. McKee. 

The Court considered the written report of the Guardian ad Litem and the Medical! 

Psychological!ARNP Report, the testimony of witnesses, remarks of counsel, and the documents 

fil ed herein. Based on the above, the Court makes the following: 

I. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Notices: All notices required by law have been given and proof of service as required by 

statute is on file. Notice, if required, was provided to the Regional Administrator of DSHS 

pursuant to RCW 11.92.150, but DSHS neither appeared at this hearing nor responded to the 

Petition. 

2. Jurisdiction: The jurisdictional facts set forth in the petition are true and correct, and the 

Court has jurisdiction over the person and/or estate of the Alleged Incapacitated Person. 

3. Guardian ad Litem: The Guardian ad Litem appointed by the Court has filed a report with 

the Court. The report is complete and complies with all requirements ofRCW 11.88.090. 

4. Alternative Arrangements Made By The Alleged Incapacitated Person: 

o The Alleged Incapacitated Person did not make alternative arrangements for assistance, such 

as a power of attorney, prior to becoming incapacitated. 

o The Alleged Incapacitated Person made alternative arrangements for assistance, but such 

arrangements are inadequate in the following respects: ___ _ 

o has been acting in a-fiduciary capacity for the 

Alleged Incapacitated Person and should NOT continue to do so for the following reasons: 
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S. Capacity: The Alleged Incapacitated Person, Bill E. McKee, is 

o incapable of managing their personal affairs 

[8J incapable of managing their financial affairs 

[8J the Alleged Incapacitated Person is in need of a full Guardianship over the 

o person [g/ estate 

o the Alleged Incapacitated Person is capable of managing some personal and/or financial 

affairs, but is in need of the protection and assistance ofa limited Guardian of the 

o person 0 estate, 

in the areas as follows: ----
6. Guardian: The proposed Guardian is qualified to act as Guardian of the Person and/or 

Estate of the Incapacitated Person. Proposed Guardian's address, phone numbers and email 

address are as follows: 

Address: 223 Overlake Drive E, Medina, WA 98039 

*Telephone #(s): Business 206-860-9330 Personal 206-399-8302 E-mail address: 

garth@arboretummortgage.com 

7. Guardian ad Litem Fees and Costs: 

[gJ The Guardian ad Litem was appointed at [;gl County 0 estate expense and shall submit a 

motion for payment of fees and costs pursuant to the local rules. 

The Guardian ad Litem has requested a fee of $1,187.49 for services rendered and 

reimbursement of $~ for costs incurred while acting as Guardian ad Litem. Fees in the 

amount of$1,187.49~~osts in the amount of$ are reasonable and should be paid as 

follows: 

0$ by the Guardian from the guardianship estate and/orcgJ $1,187.49 by Spokane 

County for the following reason(s): 

8. Bond: The assets of the Alleged Incapacitated Person: 

[g] Total less than three thousand dollars ($3,000) and no bond is required. 

o Exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000) and should be placed in a blocked account with an 

insured financial institution or bonded, unless the guardian is a bank or trust company. 
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o Are to be held by a nonprofit corporation authorized to act as Guardian, and the Court waives 

any bond requirement. 

9. Right to Vote: The Alleged Incapacitated Person (gl is D is not capable of exercising the 

right to vote. 

ll. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. That Bill E. McKee is an Incapacitated Person within the meaning ofRCW Chapter 11.88, 

and a 

o Full 0 Limited Guardian of the Person and/or 

[8J Full 0 Limited Guardian of the Estate should be appointed; and that Garth Erickson is a fit 

and proper person as required by RCW 11.88.020 to be appointed. 

2. That the powers of the Guardian and the limitations and restrictions placed on the 

Incapacitated Person should be as follows: 

D The right to vote is revoked. 

DOther: __ _ 

ID. 

ORDER 

It is hereby ordered: 

1. Prior Power of Attorney: Any Power of Attorney of any kind previously executed by the 

Incapacitated Person: 

[gj is not canceled 

D is canceled in its entirety 

o is canceled in its entirety except for those provisions pertaining to health care. 

2. Appointment of Guardian: Garth Erickson is appointed as 

o Full D Limited Guardian of the Person and/or 

[8J Full 0 Limited Guardian of the Estate of Bill E. McKee, and the powers of the Guardian 

and the limitation and restrictions placed on the Incapacitated Person shall be as set forth in 

Conclusion of Law 2. 
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3. Letters of GuardianshiplLimited Guardianship: The Clerk of the Court shall issue letters 

of 0 Full 0 Limited Guardianship of the Person and/or 

C8J Full 0 Limited Guardianship of the Estate to Garth Erickson, upon the filing of an oath, 

C8J Verification of Completion of Mandatory Guardian Training or an order waiving training, 

o Guardianship bond in the amount of $ or C8J bond is waived. 

o The following account(s) shall be accessible to the Guardian and all other accounts shall be 

blocked and a receipt of Funds in Blocked Account (Form #37) shall be filed with the court no 

later than 30 days from the date of this order: 

Ifbond is waived, the Guardian is required to report to the Court if the total assets of the 

I ncapacitated Person reaches or exceeds Three Thousand Dollars. Pursuant to RCW 11.88.100, 

the Guardian of the Estate shall file a yearly statement showing the monthly income of the 

Incapacitated Person if said monthly income, excluding moneys from state or federal benefits, is 

over the sum of Five Hundred Dollars per month for any three consecutive months. 

4. Report of Substantial Change in Income or Assets: Within 30 days of any substantial 

change in the Estate's income or assets, the Guardian of the Estate shall report to the Court and 

schedule a hearing. The purpose of the hearing will be for the Court to consider changing the 

bond or making .other provision in accordance with RCW 11.88.100. 

S. Inventory: Within three months of appointment, the Guardian of the Estate shall file a 

verified Inventory of all the property of the Incapacitated Person, which shall come into the 

Guardian's possession or knowledge, including a statement of all encumbrances, liens and other 

secured charges on any item. A review hearing upon filing ofthe inventory 

o is required C8J is not required. 

6. Disbursements: On or before the date the Inventory is due, the Guardian of the Estate shall 

also apply to the Court for an Order Authorizing Disbursements on behalf of the Incapacitated 

Person as required by RCW 11.92.040. 

7. Personal Care Plan: The Guardian of the Person shall complete and file within three (3) 

months after appointment a Personal Care Plan which shall comply with the requirements of 

RCW 11.92.043(1). 

# I O-ORDER APPOINTING GUARDIAN OF PERSON AND/OR ESTATE 

616 

PAGES OF8 
Revised 3/08 



8. Status of Incapacitated Person: Unless otherwise ordered, the Guardian of the Person shall 

file an annual report on the status of the Incapacitated Person that shall comply with the 

requirements ofRCW 11.92.043(2). 

9. Substantial Change in Condition or Residence: The Guardian ofthe Person shall report to 

the Court within thirty (30) days any substantial change in the Incapacitated Person's condition, 

or any change in residenc~ of the Incapacitated Person. 

10. Designation of Standby Guardian: The Guardian shall file a written designation of a 

standby Guardian that complies with the requirements ofRCW 11.88.125. 

11. Authority for Investment and Expenditure: The authority of the Guardian of the Estate 

for investment and expenditure of the ward's estate is as follows: To pay for his housing needs, 

medical needs, personal care and entertainment. 

12. Duration of Guardianship: This Guardianship shall continue in effect: 

o until [date]; OR 

[8J until terminated pursuant to RCW 11.88.140; 

o the necessity for the Guardianship to continue shall be periodically reviewed. 

13. DischargelRetention of Guardian ad Litem: 

[8J The Guardian ad Litem is di~charged; or 

o The Guardian ad Litem shall continue performing further duties or obligations as follows: 

14. Notice of Right to Receive Pleadings: The following persons are described in RCW 

I 1. 88.090(5)(d), and the Guardian shall notify them oftheir right to file with the Court and serve 

upon the Guardian, or the Guardian's attorney, a request to receive copies of pleadings filed by 

the Guardian with respect to the Guardianship: 

John D. Munding, Attorney for Jerome McKee and Craig McKee 
Name 

The Davenport Tower, P.R. 2290, 111 S. Post Street, Spokane, WA 99201 
Address 

15. Guardian Fees: 

o DSRS cases: The Guardian is allowed such fees and costs as permitted by the Washington 

Administrative Code in the amoUnt of $ ___ per month as a deduction from the 
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incapacitated person's participation in the DSHS cost of care. Such fees are subject to court 

review and approval. This deduction is approved for the initial twelve month reporting period 

and ninety days thereafter, from the date of this order to . The Guardian may petition 

for fees in excess of the above amount only on notice to'the appropriate DSHS Regional 

Administrator per WAC 3'88.71; OR 

[gJ Non-DSHS cases: The Guardian shall petition the Court for ~pproval offees. The Guardian 

may advance itself $0.00 per month subject to Court review 'and approval. 

16. Guardian ad Litem Fee: 

o Fees and costs are approved as reasonable; OR 

rg) The Guru:-dian ad Litem fees and costs ,are approved as reasonable in the total amount of 

$1, 187.49. They shall be paid from 0 the Guardianship estate assets, 

rg) Spokane County, OR, 0 other source(s) as follows: __ _ 

17. Legal Fees: The legal fees and costs of ___ are approved as reasonable in the amount 

of $ , and shall be paid from the 

o Gu~dianship estate assets OR 

o other source(s) as follows: __ _ 

18. Guardian's Report: The Guardian's report shall cover the 

[gj 12 (twelve) month 0 24 (twenty-four) month or 0 36 (thirty-six) month 

period following the appointment. The Guardian's report is due within 90 days of the end of the 

reporting period and shall comply with the requirements ofRCW 11.92.040(2). 

ATTACHMENTS: Court transcript from hearing Qn October 3,2008. 

tr' L ~ IF 
DATED AND SIGNED IN OPEN COURT THIS _ DAY OF Y\A V' ,2008. 
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122 N. University Road 

Address 
509-922-4666/509-927-6768 

*TelephonelFax Number 

Arthur H. Toreson, Jr. 
Printed Name of Petitioner/Attorney, 
WSBAlCPG # '5"' 1f '12-
Spokane Valley, WA 99206 

City; State, Zip Code 
toresonlaw@aol.com 

Email Address 

*Under GR 22 (b) (6), parties' personal telephone number(s) are confidential information. If you 
do not wa.nt your personal phone number(s) on this. public form, complete form #S2-Sealed 
Confidential Information and file in the confidential file. 

Copy Received, Approved as to Form and 
Content, Notice of Presentment Waived: 

By: ____________ _ 

John D. Munding, WSBA#21734 
Attorney for Jerome McKee and Craig McKee 

By:_~~~~~~----'---
Lloyd A. an, WSBA#3248 
Attorney for Bill E. McKee 

By: ___________________ ---

Timothy J. Mackin, WSBA#6459 
Guardian Ad Litem for Bill E. McKee 
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122 N". University Road 

Address 
509-922 -4666/509-927 -6768 

*TelephonelFax Number 

Arthur H. Toreson, Jr. 
Printed Name of Petitioner/ At!orney, 
WSBAlCPG # ,1f '12-­
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3 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
October 3, 2008 

THE COURT: Good afternoon. Thanks very much. Please 

4 be seated. Counsel, once again, this is In Re: The 

5 Guardianship of Bill McKee, 08-4-00259-6. Mr. Toreson is 

6 here. Mr. Herman's h~re. The guardian ad litem, 

7 Mr. Mackin, is here. And Mr. Munding is here. And, then, 

8 we have. some folks in the back. So, have I indicated 

9 everybody's appearances, Counsel? 

10 MR. MUNDING: Yes, your Honor. 

11 MR. TORESON: Yes, your Honor. 

12 THE COURT; So, you're here to determine, I believe, 

13 Counsel, who should be appointed guardian for Mr. McKee 

14 half of his guardianship, so to speak. And I have here 

15 before me, Mr. Mackin, an Amended Affidavif of Time. I 

16 had the originals from the last go around. And, so, has 

17 this changed from last time? 

18 MR. MACKIN; Your Honor, it added a little bit of time; 

19 but it -- it probably doesn't matter because it's County 

20 paid. And it's already maxed out. And I think, maybe, 

21 the one I gave you last time didn't reflect that there's a 

22 maximum that the County pays. So--

23 But, if we ever get to the point where we're going 

24 present an order to the Court, I have to have Leanne sign 

25 off on that part of the order that references the County 
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1 paid. She has to do a little accounting to make sure that 

2 my math is correct --

3 THE COURT: Sure. 

4 MR. MACKIN: -- and that sort of thing. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. All right. So, Mr. Toreson, do you 

6 want to go first? 

7 MR. TORESON: Good afternoon. If that's an invitation 

8 or a direction, I'll certainly follow it, your Honor. 

9 Thank you. You've identified the parties. I would 

10 identify my client, Maureen Erickson, is seated in the 

11 court. She's here today. Mr. McKee is not. 

12 First of all,_ I want to thank -- I don't want to miss 

13 thanking Mr. Mackin for his service. He has done 

14 journeyman efforts here. And he and I was speaking. It's 

15 probably one of the longest guardianships that I've ever 

16 been involved in and I think, perhaps, for him as well. 

17 And, even though I'm working pro bono, he is here, sort 

18 of, as a captive person and will be not fully compensated 

19 for his time.- So, I think he is owed the thanks of the 

20 Court as well as the parties and counsel. 

21 Second of all, I'd thank the Court for its patience on 

22 this case and agreeing to continue the last hearing 

23 because of my personal issue. I had a funeral of a close 

24 friend that I had, obviously, not planned. And, so, I 

25 appreciate the Court's rescheduling that. 
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1 If I might, your Honor, this has corne some distance 

2 from the time of the original filing; followed the 

3 appointment of a person in Idaho following a trial over 

4 there last year, a conservator, which is a little 

5 different than here. But the guardianship was denied 

6 there and a conservator was appointed. And -- and, 

7 ultimately, a guardianship was filed here because we 

8 determined that Mr. -- and the Court determined that 

9 Mr. McKee was, actually, a resident of Washington. And, 

10 so, a guardianship was deemed appropriate here. 

11 And, ultimately, according to the current Court's 

12 recommendations and the settlement between Idaho counsel, 

13 that conservatorship over there has been terminated. 

14 And, finally -- I won't say, "finally." That seems 

15 like we're all done, and we're not. The Court has 

16 appointed my client, Maureen Erickson, as the guardian of 

17 the person of Mr. McKee, which I would say would be 

18 appropriate and is appropriate and recognizes the reality 

19 that he has lived with her for a substantial period of 

20 time. And she's devoted, ,essentially I her full efforts to 

21 caring for her father to the exclusion of her being able 

22 to work because it really is a 24-7 responsibility. And 

23 she has received no compensation for that. 

24 Since the conservatorship in Idaho is terminated and 

25 you -- I'm sure you read that in the documents that we,re 
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1 provided -- that I'm not speaking for Mr. Herman. We are 

2 not related on this other than our goals seem to be 

3 aligned; that his office, who is -- as he represents 

4 Mr. McKee -- has been handling the money since then and 

5 ,and had been, apparently, doing so in a -- from what I can 

6 see, a responsible fashion in taking care of all of his 

7 expenses. 

8 So, we're here today to talk about the appointment of a 

9 guardian of the estate; that is, the person to handle the 

10 money for Mr. McKee. 

11 As background, your Honor -- and I'm sure you~re --

12 you've 'read all this and -- and are well familiar with it. 

13 But, if you don't mind, I might just take a minute to kind 

14 of bring a little recollection and for the record --

15 THE COURT: That's fine. 

16 MR. TORESON: -- Mr. McKee had, at one time, owned a 

17 substantial amount of property. Some property in Canada 

18 that was sold and the money allegedly taken by one of his 

19 sons. That's the subject of litigation in Idaho. 

20 He had some other property and some cash, which all the 

21 cash is long gone before these matters carne to attention 

22 here or in Idaho. And, also, prior to all of this, the 

23 determination was made on the recommendation of Dick 

24 Sayre, who's well recognized in the Spokane Bar and Bench, 

25 as the expert on qualifications for Medicaid that the 
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1 determination was made that, to qualify Mr. McKee for 

2 Medicaid, he would have to be bereft of -- virtually, 

3 bereft of his assets. 

4 And, so, consistent with the Will that Mr. McKee and 

5 his deceased wife made, giving all of their assets to 

6 their daughter, an arrangement was made whereby, actually, 

7 those were gifted. But, subsequently, in order to qualify 

8 for Medicaid as -- and not being a gift but being done as 

9 a result of a court action, a lawsuit was brought. And 

10 that was settled and approved by Judge Ellen Clark here in 

11 Spokane to -- to allow -- not allow, to require that those 

12 .assets be distributed by -- from Mr.· McKee to his 

13 daughter. And I know Mr. Herman will comment on this 

14 further, but I'm just kind of highlighting it to -- by 

15 Court Order rather than by gift. 

16 So, that has done two things: It not only transfers 

17 those properties prior to any guardianship actions being 

18 convened; but, also, to qualify him for Medicaid' as was 

19 determined by Mr. Sayre. 

20 So, we stand here today that Mr. McKee is fully 

21 qualified for Medicaid as a 90-plus-year-old man in 

22 somewhat frail health. The expectation that he may have 

23 to go into skilled nursing home care in the near future or 

24 in sometime in the future. I won't say, "near;" but, 

25 certainly, not in the far future is very likely if he does 
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1 not die prior to that.- But he seems to have enough 

2 constitution to be able to continue. 

3 And -- and other than the ability of his daughter to 

4 care for him, which we all understand those are difficult 

5 assignments to be the full-time care for someone who is of 

6 limited physical ability, when that time comes, he is 

7 prepared for and qualified -- fully qualified for the 

8 Medicaid in a legal, appropriate fashion. 

9 So, now we corne to the question of: What are we going 

10 to do with respect to dealing, then, not with those assets 

11 because, in -- in my opinion, I would suggest to ~he Court 

12 that that's appropriate, that all of those issues are 

13 resolved. And, in fact, I think the Court commented 

14 briefly about that; and I think Mr. Mackin commented 

15 briefly about that in his report. But, simply, dealing 

16 with, approximately, $2,000 a month that Mr. McKee 

17 receives from retirement, Social Security, et cetera. 

18 Certainly, not a great amount of money in today's society 

19 to be able to care for a person. But, particularly, in 

20 light of the fact, as we've addressed in previous 

21 hearings, about getting his dentures, which had not 

22 occurred prior while he was in the conservatorship but 

23 now, according to his declaration in Mr. Herman's 

24 pleadings, that has begun. And, apparently, the work for 

25 it's been done. I don't think it's been paid for yet. 
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1 So, that's good news. 

2 My client, initially, petitioned to be named the 

3 guardian of the person and the estate. And the Court has 

4 already, as I say, ordered that she be the guardian of the 

5 person; and she is serving in that role. 

6 We're now, then, addressing here today, as far as I 

7 understand, the issue -- only the issue of guardianship of 

8 the estate. 

9 To me, it's not a big issue because he doesn't have 

10 much -- he has, virtually, no income -- resources; and he 

11 only has a monthly income stream that is of a modest 

12 amount. 

13 My client, given the recommendation of the guardian ad 

14 litem, has deferred, on her request, to be named as the 

15 guardian of the estate and, in fact, has endorsed that her 

16 son -- her oldest son, Garth, who is a mortgage banker 

17 here in Spokane, who is well employed, not a felon, and is 

18 willing and able to serve -- essentially, without fee 

19 because of his love for his grandfather, to serve in the 

20 role of the guardian of the estate. He is, certainly, 

21 bright enough to be able to handle that responsibility 

22 and, certainly, has the compassion and love of his 

23 grandfather to be able to do that in a loving and 

24 appropriate fashion. 

25 So, I guess I'm a little bit concerned about why we're 
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1 even arguing about whether we should have a professional, 

2 paid guardian appointed to do this when, in fact, there 

3 really isn't the money to do. that. This is amply 

4 demonstrated by the conservatorship that went on for about 

5 a year. When that was completed, there were unpaid bills 

6 that are now as documented that have resulted in lawsuits 

7 for collection -- I think it was about $8,000 and that 

8 the guardian -- or the conservator, Ms. Bruna, was, of 

9 course, wanting to be paid. And I don't begrudge her 

10 wanting to be paid; but we can take that issue off the 

11 table, your Honor, by simply appointing Mr. Garth Erickson 

12 as the guardian of the estate. 

13 I have the utmost respect for Mr. Mackin, and I -- I 

14 think his quality of work -- his work on this case has 

15 been excellent. And I guess I -- I have one problem only 

16 and that is -- and, maybe, this was just because of all of 

17 the allegations that have been made why we need a 

18 guardian-- a professional guardian of this rather modest 

19 amount of mont~ly money that -- that is the -- the 

20 resource available to Mr. McKee. 

21 I have no questions about the skills, ability, 

22 qualifications of Lin O'Dell. She's a fine lawyer, and I 

23 know that her skill -- her experience as a registered 

24 nurse before she was a lawyer and her qualification to be 

25 a guardian is -- they're unimpeachable. 
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1 I just don't think that this is a case where her skills 

2 are needed," and nor do I think it's fair to her to be able 

3 to have to not be able to fully compensate her for her 

4 services. Because, if she's fully compensated, then, I 

5 believe that something is going to interfere with the 

6 ability to pay for Mr. McKee's ongoing needs. 

7 So, my client has withdrawn her request to be named as 

8 the guardian of the estate. She has endorsed the 

9 appointment of her oldest son, Garth, to do that. He has 

10 his own -- he has no -- doesn't owe his money any money. 

11 I mean, there's no financial tie other than just the 

12 filial love that he has. But his -- he would understand 

13 -- he does understand that his responsibility -- his first 

14 and only responsibility, if appointed, would be to his 

15 grandfather. 

16 So, I would suggest, your Honor, that, with all due 

17 respect to Mr. Mackin's recommendation, that it's 

18 appropriate that Mr. Garth EricKson be appointed as the 

19 guardian of the estate and that this matter can be 

20 concluded. 

21 THE COURT: All right. Thanks. 

22 MR. TORESON: Did you have any questions, your Honor? 

23 THE COURT: No, I don't Mr. Toreson. Mr. Herman. 

24 MR. HERMAN: Your Honor, I -- I think that a little bit 

25 of history review here is necessary in order to have us in 
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1 an -- accurately where we're at- today. There's quite a 

2 bit of history that's involved in this struggle that's 

3 been going on. And -- and I think it's important that we 

4 consider that and that background and history as part of 

5 your decision here today. 

6 The -- my client made out Wills in '07, left his estate 

7 to his daughter. They, basically, reiterated the Wills we 

8 made out in 1994 where he agreed and his wife agreed at 

9 that time to leave all of his estate to his daughter. 

10 After those Wills were made out and my client's wife 

11 passed away, he chose not to disclose those Wills and 

12 at least the mother's Will that left her half of the 

13 estate to his daughter. He chose not to disclose that. 

14 He admits that in affidavits and depositions, and he 

15 proceeded to handle the estate on his own. Property was 

16 sold in Canada, which she would have, based on her 

17 mother's Will, owned half of. Transfers were made to 

18 North Fork Coeur d'Alene property, extremely valuable 

19 property, to his son. And these were all done by 2000 

20 the year 2000-2001. 

21 The money from the Moyie Springs sale of the property 

22 has disappeared. My client has brought litigation against 

23 his son because he believes they went into his safety 

24 deposit box and took it out. That's still in litigation 

25 in Idaho. 
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1 He's asked that the lake property -- the North 

2 Coeur d'Alene property be returned. There's been 

3 negotiations over that. I've supplied you some of the 

4 letters and negotiations, letters of offers by the son to 

5 sell the property and divide the proceeds after he'.s 

6 reimbursed for certain things. 

7 One of the interesting parts of that offer is that he 

8 wants charged against him the cash they got out of the 

9 sale of the timber on the property. And the history 

10 behind that is that, because Mr. McKee believed that half 

11 that property was his --

12 THE WITNESS: Mr. Munding, do you have 

13 MR. MUNDING: Yes, your Honor. I hate to interrupt 

14 counsel while he's in the middle of argument, but we're 

15 here today on who should be appointed as the guardian of 

16 the estate for Mr. Bill McKee; not to argue caSes that are 

17 pending in Idaho; malign my clients; reference documents 

18 that have no foundation or bearing or relevance on this. 

19 We should focus on the task at hand. And I'd ask that the 

20 Court keep comments within that realm. Thank you. 

21 THE COURT: Well, I'm pretty familiar with the history 

22 and the background, Mr. Herman. And Mr. Toreson gave us a 

23 good outline a moment ago. And I've read --

24 MR. HERMAN: Well, I think, your Honor, what I want to 

25 do is get -- there's ascertains made by Munding against 
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1 the chosen guardian of the person (sic), Garth Erickson. 

2 He's insinuating there's -- there's skulldUggery going on. 

3 And I want to get the Court to the point so that you know 

4 the history behind it and what has really happened. 

5 And the skullduggery he's alleging is going on that 

6 somehow Garth Erickson has a conflict and shouldn't be 

7 appointed, I think, that should be accurately -- accurate 

8 history should put him in a place that he's in. And he's 

9 in that place because of what happened, and he stepped up 

10 to prevent the loss of the property. And that's where I'm 

11 going, your Honor. I think that's critical for the Court 

12 to hear. 

13 THE COURT: Sure. I recall from the Idaho papers that 

14 Judge McFadden seemed to take the view that Garth should 

15 not be in a -- and I don't mean any disrespect by not 

16 using the last names -- but that it was not appropriate. 

17 I'm not quite sure why he reached that conclusion. So, if 

18 you want to get into that and explain that to me as you 

19 understand it, that would be helpful. 

20 MR. HERMAN: Well, your Honor, I think that whatever 

21 Judge McFadden had to say is gone over the wayside. That 

22 guardianship has been dismissed. It never should have 

23 been brought in the first place because my client wasn't 

24 even a resident of Idaho when it was brought. 

25 In any case, he said he was too closely related to his 
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1 mother; and he felt that that would be a conflict. But--

2 THE COURT: So, that was -- that was it in a nutshell, 

3 then. 

4 MR. HERMAN: That was it in a nutshell. And the Court 

5 has already gone against McFadden's finding that Maureen 

6 shouldn't be guardian of the person. You've already 

7 appointed her. 

8 So, I think what the judge was doing in Idaho is not 

9 really important to the Court here. What I think is 

10 important is that the judge understand that Garth Erickson 

11 is in the position he's in now because of trying to save 

12 property for the -- in the estate rather than being 

13 somehow in collusion with his mother to take property from 

14 his father (sic), which is what Mr. Munding is making 

15 accusations of. And I think the Court should know that 

16 there's -- there is litigation going on here between my 

17 client and his sons over substantial interest in cash or 

18 property, and there's bad feelings all around. And people 

19 are going to say bad things about people who are in 

20 each other in l~tigatibn. 

21 I think that's important for the Court, on balance, to 

22 know that this is this isn't -- since they're so 

23 anxious to bad mouth my client, his decisions with his 

24 daughter, the Court should know that there's litigation 

25 going on brought on by themselves, their own actions, and 
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1 "-- and -- in order for you to have a balanced decision 

2 here as to what the facts are. 

3 What I'm working up towards is is that once my 

4 client decided to deed his property to his daughter, 

5 pursuant to his Will, which he did in '07, wh~m, a 

6 guardianship was started "in Idaho. 

7 Now, during that guardianship, injunctions were ~- were 

8 and lis pendens were filed on the property in Osborn. 

9 That property was marketable. There was a sale in place. 

10 All that got thrown out. The sale was for $180, $190,000, 

11 which would have brought excess cash to my client. He did 

12 -- he put it in his daughter's name. She put it on the 

13 market. The sale was in place. And, once the 

14 guardianship -- the conservatorship was granted, the 

15 conservator brought litigation to stop that sale~ 

16 And -- and the result of that is, is that the property, 

17 which had been saved by Ms. Erickson by getting a 

18 temporary loan because it was way in default, the -- that 

19 sale was prevented. 

20 So, what happened is that the new loan that was got on 

21 gotten on the property to save it from foreclosure was 

22 due. And the only means in which Ms. Erickson had to 

23 prevent it from being forfeited again is she transferred 

24 title to her son, and he was able to get a loan up to a 

25 certain amount, which paid off the old mortgage. And 
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1 that's why he's in the position he's in today. She turned 

2 to him for help. There's no collusion going on. It's 

3 still. an effort to try to save that property, which never 

4 would have been put in that position if the conservator 

5 hadn't slapped a lis pendens on that property and blown 

6 off the sale that occurred back in 2007. And that's why 

7 he's in that position today. 

8 What's really important, I think, is that, when the 

9 Wills were made out in 2007, my client appointed his 

10 daughter as guardian of his person and the durable power 

11 of attorney and his grandson as guardian of his estate, 

12 gave him power of ~ttorney. That's a well-recognized 

13 procedure. It was done under advice of counsel. It was 

14 done in '07 as part of an estate plan that he did. And 

15 testimony was heard from the lawyer who did that at that 

16 time in the hearing. I provided it to the Court. She 

17 felt 

18 THE COURT: That was Ms. St. Lewis (phonetic), right? 

19 MR. HERMAN: Right. And she felt that he wasn't under 

20 any undue influence when he made those selections. 

2.1 THE COURT: And the statute expresses preference for 

22 that person to remain in that role as durable power of 

23 attorney to remain as 

24 MR. HERMAN: Right. And I think that what's happened 

25 is this Cou~t has honored that appointment in appointing 
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1 Ms. Erickson as his as his guardian of the person. And 

2 I -- and what we're what my client is asking is that 

3 you fulfill his request in his -- in his durable power of 

4 attorney to appoint Garth Erickson as his -- to be power 

5 of attorney over his estate. 

6 I've gone to the trouble to recite the statute, the 

7 reasons for it that support that. And I think we -- the 

8 Court needs to take into consideration my client's 

9 consistent desires of how he wants his estate handled, 

10 despite whatever litigation went on, whatever decisions 

11 were made by other courts or whatever, which are, 

12 basically, not in existence at this point because those 

13 things have been dismissed. And I think that the Court 

14 has an obligation to look at that appointment. 

15 Mr. Erickson lives in Seattle. Mr. Toreson said, 

16 "Spokane;" but he meant to say, "Seattle." He's a 

17 mortgage broker over there. He's got an extremely close 

18 relationship with his grandfather. There's an affidavit 

19 by Garth Erickson as to his relationships and things that 

20 his grandfather did for him, how he is more than willing 

21 to do this at this time. There's an affidavit from my 

22 client, the close relationship he's always had with his 

23 grandson, the fact that he helps him out, he visits him, 

24 he sees him, he spends time with him, and he's willing to 

25 serve without" a fee, as does the power of attorney --
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1 durable P9wer of attorney provides and to look after his 

2 grandfather's property needs. 

3 We've got such a limited estate here I just think it's 

4 appropriate to leave things the way they were set up in 

5 2007 by my client. And he's made it clear that's his --

6 what his desires are. 

7 And Garth Erickson is well qualified, wants to do it 

8 for his grandfather, and I think should be appointed by 

9 this Court. The statutes provide for that appointment to 

10 stay if place, unless there's some reason to disqualify 

11 him -- substantial reason to disqualify him. 

12 We have such a small amount of money to deal with, by 

13 the time the payments are made on the house, the lights, 

14 the phone, the insurance, the association payments, 

15 there's just hardly any money left. And, so, there isn't 

16 any need to have some professional look over those things. 

17 Most of that $2,200 is used up by just maintaining the 

18 home in which he leaves. And I think that it's -- it's 

19 just really out of the realm of necessity to have somebody 

20 else appointed. 

21 Why the brothers, the sons, want to have it some other 

22 way? I don't know. But they were very successful in 

23 getting the last conservator to start all kinds of 

24 litigation, which, in effect, resulted in using up his 

25 income for things other than his needs. Half of that --
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1 most of that 'litigation is now res judicata or been 

2 collaterally estopped from any further action. There's 

3 good reasons for why things were done. And -- and, so, 

4 I -- it doesn't evert make sense why they would want their 

5 father to have to spend money on a professional guardian 

6 over $2,200, unless they're going to try another end gain 

7 here and try to get the new appointee to start the same 

8 litigation that they got the other appointee to do. 

9 So, I think it's just -- just really unnecessary; and 

10 it's just a waste of. 

11 Thank you, your Honor. 

12 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Herman. Mr. Munding. 

13 MR. MUNDING: Thank you, your Honor. John Munding, law 

14 firm of Crumb and Munding, on behalf of Bill McKee -- or 

15 on behalf of Craig McKee and Jerome McKee, the adult 

16 children of Bill McKee. 

17 The Court has been advised why we are here today, 

18 although it has heard an extensive history through 

19 argument, not fact. Disagree with the argument of 

20 Mr. Herman, especially, his attacks and commentary on 

21 events, including circumstances surrounding my clients' 

22 actions and outcome in the Idaho court. I'm not going to 

23 spend a lot of time rebutting that because, again, it is 

24 simply argument of counsel and there's not much factual 

25 basis to it. I don't think it's appropriate to bring it 
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1 up here. 

2 But what is important are the interests of Bill McKee. 

3 That is all my clients have ever wanted. I think we've 

4 addLessed that in our paper as to why we believe that 

5 Mr. Mackin's recommendations to this Court of an 

6 independent guardian -- somebody who is trained, has 

7 experience. Lin O'Dell is a nurse. She's been around the 

8 community. She's well respected. She doesn't appear to 

9 be somebody driven by money. I've known her myself. She 

10 looks out for the interests of her ward, and that is what 

11 we're here about today is Bill McKee. 

12 And notably absent from this courtroom -- it's easy to 

13 submit an affidavit, but where is Bill? 

14 Second, where is Garth? I don't want to attack Garth. 

15 I don't know him. He has submitted a very short 

16 affidavit. It's obvious he played sports in his youth. 

17 That should be admired. He, apparently, is employed. But 

18 he's not here to be cross examined or to be questioned by 

19 the Court as to his qualifications. Yet, we do have 

20 findings from a prior Court that are binding. They were 
, 

21 made by a judge in Idaho that there was a conflict, and it 

22 was not appropriate for him to be conservator. 

23 THE COURT: I tried to examine that record, as I 

24 discussed earlier with, I think, Mr. Herman. And, apart 

25 from the family relationship, he -- Garth being the son of 
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1 Ms. Maureen Erickson -- what was the basis for the 

2 conflict as far as the Court was concerned vis-a-vis 

3 Garth? 

4 MR. MUNDING: I believe it was -- and, again, I'm going 

5 hindsight and was not a part of that proceeding; but I 

6 have reviewed the record and the Findings of Fact so I 

7 must make an assumption. But there were negative findings 

8 towards Ms. Erickson about her influence upon Bill. And 

9 that's in the record. It's not an assertion of John 

10 Munding, as Mr. Herman stated. It's an assertion by an 

11 Idaho Court. 

12 THE COURT: I recall that, but how does that --

13 MR. MUNDING: Well--

14 THE COURT: How does that 

15 MR. MUNDING: It -- it creates a conflict, and that 

16 brings us 'up to today: Serving two masters. You have 

17 your mother on one point, who has asked this Court from 5 

18 to $7,000 a month for the care of Bill. Yet, on the other 

19 hand, you have a son who's obligation to both his mother 

20 and his. grandfather and would be torn in the middle. 

21 And I believe that that is where the Court in Idaho, as 

22 well as we'd request this Court, to step in and say, "You 

23 know, this cries out for an independent." It doesn't mean 

24 it has to be forever. But, at least, right now that makes 

25 the most sense because the independent guardian would only 
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1 be serving one master; and that would be the guardian 

2 looking out for the interests of the ward. Nobody else 

3 would have influence on that. 

4 THE COURT: How are we going to pay Ms. O'Dell? 

5 MR. MUNDING: She would be paid -- I'm glad that the 

6 Court asked that question because this is something that 

7 really hasn't been addressed. We do have a situation here 

8 where the only income is $2,200 a month. Yet Mr. Toreson 

9 referenced Mr. Sayre's advice in prior planning. 

10 That's why I took this (indicating) dollar out. 

11 Apparently, three or four years ago, Bill McKee had a lot 

12 of assets. Assets, when liquidated, turned into dollars. 

13 These dollars had to go somewhere. They're gone. So, we 

14 have a man now who doesn't even have dentures yet he had a 

15 lot of these (indicating) early on. 

16 And they did it for Medicare qualification. Medicare 

17 or Medicaid, whatever it may be, is funded by the federal 

18 government or the state government off of taxes, which 

19 comes from you and I. And yet these dollars (indicating) 

20 -- they're gone. Where did they go? We don't know. But 

21 that's history. 

22 But the problem with that planning -- there's a lot of 

23 problems with it. But, again, that's not why we're here 

24 today. But the end result is that money's gone. So, the 

25 taxpayers are burdened with this. Poor Mr. Mackin has to 
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1 reduce his rates, not because he had an insolvent person 

2 from the beginning. No, that person was made insolvent to 

3 qualify for medical treatment. And that's -- that's fine. 

4 Everybody needs medical treatment. But there was money to 

5 pay for it prior and now it's just gone. 

6 So, what do we do about Ms. O'Dell? She's simply 

7 managing $2,200 and making sure that ~he expenditures are 

8 used for Bill's care and not for other people's 

9 litigation, not for other people's living expenses, but 

10 Bill's. 

11 We heard about association dues. That must mean that 

12 the house where Bill is residing is in some type of 

13 neighborhood that has association maintenance dues and 

14 fees. Well, why would Bill be saddled with those? He 

15 could have simply stayed in Idaho at a full care facility 

16 that would have been fully funded. But, no, Ms. Erickson 

17 chose to have hi~ here; and that's fine. Reside at his 

18 house, that's fine. But Bill shouldn't be saddled with 

19 assoc~ation dues. That's not an appropriate expense. 

20 We pointed out a Starbucks charge. Again, we need some 

21 adult supervision to manage this money. It's not that 

22 sophisticated. Her fees, I would imagine, would be very 

23 minimal. And she would take them out of there. But the 

24 savings in supervision will reduce expense and put an end 

25 to this because we will have an independent guardian. She 
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1 doesn't work for my clients. She won't work for 

2 Ms. Erickson. She will look out for the interests of Bill 

3 McKee. 

4 And, if she determines at some point that she is no . 

5 longer necessary or it can be a direct deposit or 

6 something, that's her decision. But, again, we have some 

7 controls in place. We have responsibility. We have 

8 answers to the Court. And, most importantly, it's going 

9 . to put an end to all this litigation. And it's time. 

10 Thank you. 

11 THE COURT: Thanks, Mr. Munding. Mr. Mackin, can I 

12 hear from you? And I've read your report. Thanks so much 

13 for that thorough report. 

14 MR. MACKIN: All right. Thank you. If the Court -- I 

15 don't really have anything to add unless the Court wants 

16 me to expound on some issue. 

17 THE COURT: Well, one question I would have is in 

18 reference to this statute that was cited by 

19 Mr. Lloyd Herman; and he's reprinted part of it, I -- I 

20 think, in his memo. And it says, "The Court shall make an 

21 appointment in accordance with the principal's most recent 

22 nomination in a durable power of attorney, except for good 

23 cause and disqualification," and that most recent 

24 appointment is -- appears to be the one from 1997 where 

25 Garth Erickson was appointed. 
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1 MR. MACKIN: Well, let me just --

2 THE COURT: So, what's your take on that? 

3 MR. MACKIN: A couple things. The statute, under 

4 11.88, also directs the Court that the Court should try to 

5 find the least restrictive alternative that is available. 

6 And, so, that dovetails with what you're talking about. 

7 But I guess, in looking at that 2007 appointment, what 

8 bothers me about that appointment is it took place right 

9 in the middle of a pending conservatorship -- guardianship 

10 proceeding in Idaho. Mr. McKee was taken to a lawyer when 

11 he had a guardian or I guess it's not a guardian ad 

12 litem but --

13 THE COURT: Conservator? 

14 MR. MACKIN: Well, he hadn't had the conservator 

15 appointed yet. The -- the guardianship was started in 

16 about February or March of 2007. The -- and there was, I 

17 think, a visitor -- I think they call them a "visitor" 

18 rather than a ~'guardian ad litem" -- was appointed by the 

19 Idaho Court. And, in about June, I think, the power of 

20 attorney was created in Washington. And, in about 

21 September, the conservatorship was established in Idaho. 

22 So, you wouldn't, typically, find that happening in 

23 Washington if there was a guardianship pending. The 

24 Court, probably, wouldn't give weight to that --

25 THE COURT: Because of the timing. 
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1 MR. MACKIN: Yeah, because of the timing because, 

2 ultimately, the Court determined that this gentleman was 

3 incapacitated from the standpoint of being able to manage 

4 his own affairs. 

5 But I think you can maybe set that aside and -- and 

6 look at the issue of -- just under 11.88 of: Is there a 

7 less restrictive alternative that's available that would 

8 be -- better serve the needs of the incapacitated person? 

9 THE COURT: "Less restrictive" meaning the neutrality 

10 of the nominee to be the guardian? Is that what you mean? 

11 MR. MACKIN: No. What I meant was, when you impose 

12 this guardianship of the estate, you're taking away 

13 someone' s civil rights. So, the statute says, "Look, is 

14 there something less than taking away their civil rights 

15 you can do?" And, if there's an existing power of 

16 attorney, then, you may be able to -- to utilize that, if 

17 that works for this person. 

18 And, when I made my recommendation, I made my -- the 

19 only name on the table at that point was Maureen Erickson. 

20 But -- and I don't know Garth Erickson. And I -- so, I 

21 don't -- I don't have anything positive or negative to say 

22 about him. 

'23 But, I guess, what bothers me about this whole thing 

24 from the very beginning is that I -- I think, looking back 

25 over not just the last couple years but a long period of 

IN RE: 
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1 time, there was a gradual increase in Mr. McKee providing 

2 for his daughter. 

3 And it troubles me that we have a gentleman that had a 

4 house in Osborn, Idaho. He had a leasehold -- a valuable 

. 5 leasehold on Lake Pend Oreille. And Dick Sayre says, "If 

6 there is a legitimate way to transfer that property by way 

7 of a judgment," well, I don't understand how anything more 

8 than the mother's one-half share of the Osborn house and 

9 the Lake Pend Oreille property ever got transferred to 

10 Ms. Erickson in this -- this judgment because it doesn't 

11 make sense given what the allegation was that he had 

12 the -- Bill McKee had denied his daughter her mother and 

13 his wife's share of the estate when she died in the early 

14 '90s. 

15 I think what developed over time was a dependence by 

16 Maureen Erickson on her father. And it -- it further 

17 bothers me that there's this valuable asset that still 

18 exists, being a leasehold in on Lake Pend Oreille that 

19 really could -- could fund this this gentleman's 

20 existence for as long as he had left to live. 

21 AB.d, so, I again, when I wrote my report, I didn't 

22 have the issue of Garth Erickson as the guardian before 

23 me. But I -- I share the same concerns that Mr. Munding 

24 has. I think that there -- there is a conflict there. I 

25 think Garth Erickson is the heir of his mother's estate. 
\ 
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1 Garth Erickson bought the Osborn property. And, in 

2 -looking at the numbers, there seems to be -- aside from 

3 the current economic state of affairs but, at the time he 

4 bought it, there seemed to be equity so that he could sell 

5 it and turn around and make a little bit of money. 

6 Again --

7 THE COURT: It was listed for about lBO, and I think he 

B bought it for 12B? Does that -- does that sound right? 

9 MR. MACKIN: I think so. But, again, why you know, 

10 I -- I think in the rush of Maureen Erickson to preserve 

11 the estate for herself, the whole issue of "What about 

12 Mr. McKee" -- and I can remember the second time that I 

13 met with him I asked him '~What property do you own?" Keep 

14 in mind this is in the spring of 200B. And he said, "You 

15 .know, I'm really not sure what I own." 

16 So, it's a real tough situation because, on the one 

17 hand, Maureen Erickson has really devoted herself to her 

·lB father. Her father is very devoted to her. But I can't 

19 help but think, you know, if the issue is: What's in his 

20 best interest, why did we get to where we are today? It 

21 doesn't seem like it would have been necessary to have him 

22 lose ail of his property. I don't know. 

23 So -- and I don't have an answer for how do we pay 

24 Lin O'Dell when there's only $2,200 a month. I think 

25 THE COURT: Well, what would you expect her charges 
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1 would be? 

2 MR. MACKIN: Well -- and this is just a guess. And I 

3 asked her to be here, but she couldn't. I I would 

4 think they're going to be 150 to 250 a month, something 

5 like that. 

6 But, you know, on the other hand, if there's a bunch of 

7 phone calls or there's a -- you know, it could be more 

8 than that. It shouldn't be. 

9 But -- but nothing has been simple about this matter 

10 from the very beginning. And, so, I -- I think any 

11 decision the Court's going to make is going to be 

12 "imperfect. But"that's, in a way, the nature of 

13 guardianship anyway. You're never going to have a perfect 

14 situation. So 

15 THE COURT: Do you think it would be helpful at all for 

16 you to have any additional time to meet and/or talk and 

17 get further information about Mr. Garth Erickson? 

18 MR. MACKIN: No. I'm assuming -- I'm assuming that 

19 he's a capable person and would get the bills paid. I 

20 don't think that's really going to add anything. 

21 THE COURT: What about a bond requirement for him? 

22 Have you thought about that? 

23 MR. MACKIN: Well, I think -- I think, on the bonding 

24 issue, I don't know that I -- there's -- there's so little 

25 money involved that doesn't even -- I don't think I -- I 
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1 don't think I would bond him. I guess it would be --

2 THE COURT: Well, we still have these assets out here 

3 that have not been resolved. 

4 MR. MACKIN: Well, you don't have those assets because 

5 those assets are in the name of Maureen Erickson now. 

6 THE COURT: Well, I thought I heard there was still 

7 ongoing litigation. 

8 MR. MACKIN: Yeah, I guess there is a potential asset 

9 in the lawsuit against the sons. But I -- I -- if that --

10 you know, if that ever came to fruition, I guess, a bond 

11 could be set for those aspects. But the other -- you 

12 know, the house is gone and the -- the lease is now in 

13 Maureen Erickson's name. So, I wish I had some simple 

14 answer. But it's a tough situation, your Honor. 

15 THE COURT: All right. Thanks very much, Mr. Mackin. 

16 Well, Counsel, we hadn't had any testimony from 

17 Ms. O'Dell, which I assume she would say the same things, 

18 in general, that have been said here by others. 

19 We haven't had testimony from Mr. Garth Erickson. And 

20 anybody could have called him, I think, to amplify on 

21 his -- his stance on this matter. The evidence that does 

22 exist is in the form of his declaration of September 22nd. 

23 And, indeed, it's correct that the assets are few right 

24 now, substantially reduced from what they were and through 

25 this convoluted train of events that has happened. And 
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1 that's the situation that presents itself as we speak 

2 today. 

3 And I see the point of the perception of conflict of 

4 interest on Mr. Erickson's part -- Garth Erickson - as 

5 outlined by Mr. Munding and ~r. Mackin because of the 

6 family relation and, perhaps, being torn between one's morn 

7 and one's granddad. And Mr. Erickson does outline some of 

8 the history that he's had with his granddad. 

9 He has indicated that he's done a lot of things gratis 

10 for his grandfather through the years. And I'm reminded 

11 of the fact that, in terms of the current status quo where 

12 Mr. McKee is residing -- Mr. Bill McKee -- that he is, 

13 certainly, elderly, as said. That's quite evident here 

14 stating the obvious. He is happy where is he. I don't 

15 think there's any question about that. He's got his dog 

16 there. Given his nature and variety of medical problems, 

17 he does need full-time care. 'Yes, he could get that in 

18 a -- in a care facility; but he wouldn't have his dog 

19 there. And it's unknown how much time Mr. -- Mr. Bill 

20 McKee has remaining. 

21 I'm trying to balance all of these factors, Counsel; 

22 and I would believe that the interests of the brothers are 

23 sincere in looking out for their dad's welfare, as Jerry 

~4 and Craig McKee. And I would believe they'll continue to 

25 want to keep some close contact, as best they can, on the 
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1 situation. 

2 So, in that sense, it puts Garth Erickson in a 

3 difficult spot, to be sure. 

4 There's no doubt but that Ms. Lin O'Dell could do a 

5 super job as a guardian. And she's most definitely 

6 independent here, has excellent qualifications, not the 

7 least of which is her medical background. 

8 We have little funds available. The Court, in 

9 considering all these matters, does see that the funds are 

10 extremely limited. 

11 So, Counsel, I am appointing Garth Erickson as the 

12 guardian. 

13 MR. TORESON: Thank you. 

14 MR. MACKIN: Your Honor, one thing -- I think 

15 Mr. Erickson, in order to comply with the local rules, is 

16 going to need to take the guardianship training program. 

17 Ordinarily, he would have -- he would have done that prior 

18 to this time. So, he's probably going to -- in order to 

19 not get this bounced back by the Monitoring Program, he's 

20 going to need to complete that training program. 

21 MR. TORESON: Not a problem, your Honor. 

22 T~E COURT: Right. So, that should happen right away, 

23 Counsel. And the Court signing a new order would, 

24 obviously, be conditioned on that obligation. 

25 MR. TORESON: Thank you, your Honor. 
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THE COURT: Is there anything else right now? 

MR. TORESON: I've got another hearing. 

THE COURT: You bet. So do I. 

MR. HERMAN: Thank you, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Have a good weekend. 

(COURT RECESSED) 

(END OF REQUESTED PROCEEDINGS) 
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Most of the affidavits and briefing submitted hi support of the Amended Motion 

for Reconsideration assert facts that the community property agreement between Bill McKee and 

Natalie Parks McKee was revoked by mutual holographic wills. There has never been produced 

any writing (including any purported holographic will) signed by Bill McKee. Petitioner, 

Maureen' Erickson, had plenty of time and opportunity to present these matters to the Court 

during the evidentiary hearing which took place on March 16~ 2007 and she failed to do so. The 

property the subject of the original Motion for Partial Distribution is not as a matter of law part 

of the estate of Natalie Parks McKee. Insufficient showing has been mad.e to grant the Amended 

Motion for Reconsideration and the motion is denied. 

The Court also denies the Amended Motion for Reconsideration on grounds that it 

was not timely. The original Motion for Reconsideration was filed within the time limits set 

forth in Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 11(a)(2)(B), but that motion was not properly noticed for 

hearing by the Petitioner. Bringing the amended motion 27 months after the Court ruled and 

after the original Motion for Reconsideration was filed is unfairly prejudicial to Jerome McKee. 
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LAW OFFICE OF 
JOHN J. ROSE, JR., P.C. 
708 West Cameron Avenue 
Kellogg, Idaho 83837 
Phone: (208) 783-3501 
Fax: (208) 786-8005 

ISB # 2094 

Attorney for Plaintiff 

STATE OF iDAHO 
COUNTY OF SHOSHONE / SS 

FIL::C 
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PEGGY WHiTE 
CLERK DIST. COURT 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

BILL E. McKEE, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

JEROME McKEE and MINA 
McKEE, husband and wife, 

Defendant. 

Plaintiff alleges: 

] 
] 
] 
] 
] 
] 
] 
] 
] 
) 

No. CV 2007- ~(p 1 
FEE CATEGORY A. 1. 
FEE $88.00 

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND 
FOR JURY TRIAL 

1. That at all times material hereto the plaintiff was a resident 

of Osburn, Shoshone County, Idaho. 

2. That at all time material hereto the defendants were residents 

of Bonners County, Idaho and Louisiana. 

3. The Court has jurisdiction of this matter because the acts 

complained of began in Shoshone County, Idaho. 

1. COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
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4. On August 30, 2005, the plaintiff was a lessee of safety 

deposit box number 106, at Bank of America, Osburn, Idaho. The 

plaintiff had $150,000.00 in United states currency stored in said 

safety deposit box and other valuable documents. 

5. On August 30, 2005, the defendants entered into the 

plaintiff's safety deposit box # 106 and took possession of 

$150,000 United States Currency and other valuable documents 

belonging to the plaintiff, without authority of the plaintiff, and 

without instituting legal proceedings. 

6. On August 30, 2005, the defendants removed the plaintiff from 

his home in Osburn, Idaho against his will, and removed the 

plaintiff to Bonner County, Idaho. 

7. On approximately August 31, 2005, the defendants continued to 

hold the plaintiff against his will. As a result thereof, the 

plaintiff sickened from the mental distress caused by the 

defendant's conduct and required hospitalization. The plaintiff's 

sickening continued and subsequent hospitalization was required. 

8. From approximately August 31, 2005 through September 3, 2005, 

the defendants held the plaintiff against his will in Bonners 

County, Idaho, at the defendants Idaho place of residence. 

9. On approximately September 3, 2005, the defendant, Mina McKee, 

removed the plaintiff to Spokane, Washington and Salt Lake City, 

Utah. Mina McKee was aided and abetted by the defendant, Jerome 

McKee, and acted as an agent of Jerome McKee. The removal of the 

2. COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
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plaintiff was against the plaintiffs will. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION - CONVERSION 

10. The plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 9. 

11. The defendants tortiously converted the plaintiff's 

$150,000.00 and valuable documents from his safety deposit box. 

12. The plaintiff has suffered damage in the amount of $150,000.00 

United States currency together with the value of such other 

personal property as may be shown at trial. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION - FALSE IMPRISONMENT 

13. The plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 9. 

14. The defendants unlawfully and maliciously imprisoned and 

restrained and deprived the plaintiff of his liberty, against the 

plaintiff's will, and without any legal authority to do so by 

taking advantage of the plaintiff's'old age, holding the plaintiff 

against his will, incommunicado, and forcible removing the 

plaintiff from the State of Idaho. 

15. As a direct and proximate result of the false imprisonment by 

the defendants of the plaintiff, plaintiff has suffered bodily 

harm, general damages, and special damages in an amount in excess 

of $10,000.00 to be proven at trial. 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION - INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF MENTAL DISTRESS 

16. The plaintiff re-alleges paragraphs 1 through 9. 

17. The defendants' conduct of removing the plaintiff from his 

home, holding the plaintiff against his will, and removal of the 

3. COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
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plaintiff from Idaho was extreme and outrageous conduct and caused 

the plaintiff to sicken and suffer severe emotional distress. As 

a direct and proximate result of said conduct the plaintiff 

suffered general and special damage in a amount to be proven at 

trial. 

Wherefore the plaintiff prays for judgment against the 

defendants as follows: 

1. Judgment in the amount of $150,000.00 together with such 

further amounts as shown at trial for conversion of the plaintiffs 

personal property. 

2. Judgment against the defendants for false imprisonment of 

the plaintiff. 

3. Judgment against the defendants for intentional infliction 

of emotional distress. 

4. For such further relief as the Court or Jury deems just 

and equitable. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

The plaintiff requests a trial by jury consisting of twelve 

persons. 

DATED this ~')- day of August 2007. 

4. COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
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Charles R. Dean, Jr. 
Dean & Kolts 
111 0 West Park Place Suite 212 
Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814 
(208) 664-7794 / Fax (208) 664-9844 
ISB #5763 

Attorney for Defendants 

DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

BILL E. McKEE, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

JEROME McKEE and NINA McKEE, 
husband and wife, 

Defendants 

------------------------------

) Case No.: CV 07-469 
) 
) DEFENDANT'S ANSWERS PLAINTIFF'S 
) FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
) PROPOUNDED TO DEFENDANT JEROME 
) MCKEE 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Defendant Jerome McKee responds to Plaintiffs First Set of Interrogatories Propounded 

to Defendant Jerome McKee as follows: 

INTERROGATORIES 

INTERROGATORY NO.1: Identify each person who assisted in the preparation of your 

responses to these interrogatories other than in a purely clerical role. 

ANS WER: Responding defendant, his wife and counsel. . 

INTERROGATORY NO.2: Please state i,fyou were present at a meeting at your parents 

home in Osburn, Idaho in 1994, and if so, please state: 

a. Who all was present at the meeting; 

b. The purpose of the meeting; and 
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ANSWER: Responding defendant accompanied Bill McKee on three occasions when he 

entered his box. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 13: If the preceding interrogatory is in the affirmative, please 

state: 

a. each date you entered the safety deposit box located at Bank of America in 

Osburn, Idaho; 

b. all persons who entered the safety deposit box at Bank of America in Osburn, 

Idaho with you; 

c. whether you entered the safety deposit box at Bank of America in Osburn, Idaho 

without Bill McKee being present; and whether you remained in the sa£ety 

deposit box at Bank of America in Osburn, Idaho by yourself or with another 

person without Bill McKee being present in the safety deposit box. 

ANSWER: It is physically impossible for anyone to be in the safety deposit box, alone 

or with someone else. To respond to what Maureen's counsel appears to be asking, however, 

responding defendant accompanied Bill McKee and his wife to the safety deposit box on the 

three occasions in 2004 and 2005 referenced on the signature cards plaintiff produced. Bill was 

present each time and orchestrated the opening and inspection of the box. Responding defendant 

was never present, nor could he be under bank policy, without Bill. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 14: Describe in detail each. and every item witnessed by you 

to be contained in the safety deposit box belonging to Bill McKee: 

ANSWER: The first time responding defendant recalls seeing what he assumed to be the 

original of what Maureen had reported to be Natalie's holographic will, Craig's birth certificate 

and Jerry's baptismal certificate. There were other papers in the box that responding defendant 
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cannot recall. Onthe second occasion, the original holographic will was missing and had heen 

replaced with a copy. Most, ifnot all, of the other documents noted on the first visit were also 

present. Onthe third occasion, the only thing in the box was anuttsealed envelope containing 

silver certificates with face values of$25-$30.00. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 15: State whether you removed any items from Bill McKee's 

safety deposit box located at Bank of America in Osburn, Idaho with or without Bill McKee's 

knowledge .. 

ANSWER: Responding defendant removed nothing from the box. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 16: Describe in detail each and every item you removed from 

Bill McKee's safety deposit box located at Bank of America in Osburn, Idaho. 

ANSWER: Not applicable. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 17: State whether you removed items belonging to Bill 

McKee from his residence. in Osburn, Idaho with or without his permission. 

ANSWER: Responding defendant removed nothing from the home. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 18: Describe in detail each and every item you removed from 

Bill McKee's residence in Osburn, Idaho and where the item(s) were removed from, i.e., safes, 

storage areas, bedrooms, etc., and where each item is currently located. 

ANSWER: Not applicable. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 19: Did you or anyone acting on your behalf have a new will 

prepared for Bill McKee in 1999? If so, please identify each and every person you contacted, and 

the substance of the new will you wanted prepared. 

ANSWER: -No. 
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Charles R. Dean, Jr, ISB # 5763 
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DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF 
NATALIE PARKS McKEE: 

Deceased. 

) Case No.: CV 06-40 
) 
) JEROME McKEE'S BRIEF ON APPEAL 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

----------------------------,) 

INTRODUCTION 

Apparently believing that filling pages of paper with numerous, completely baseless 

accusations that find no support in the record on appeal will fool this Court into losing focus or 

prejudice its thinking, appellant Maureen Erickson ("Maureen") violates the most basic rules of 

appellate procedure in her brief and ignores the true basis for Judge McFadden's decisions. 

Respondent, Jerome McKee ("Jerry") will not address every one of the falsehoods contained in 

Maureen's brief. Instead, he will note only those falsehoods that bear on the decisions made by 

Judge McFadden and her procedural failures in this appeal. 

OBJECTION AND MOTION TO STRIKE 

An appeal from the magistrate's division to the district court is governed by the same 

standards and is to be decided in the same manner as if the appeal were to an appellate court 

(IRCP 83(u)(1)). Except as otherwise provided in any of the subsections ofIRCP 83, the 

appellate rules of the Supreme Court also apply (ld). 

Respondent's Brief - 1 



Two standards/rules that hallmark appellate procedure in Idaho and undoubtedly every 

other state in the Union appertain to this matter. First, an appellate court cannot consider matters 

outside the record on appeal (Lamar Corp. v. City of Twin Falls, 133 Idaho 36,40 (1999); State 

v. Congdon, 96 Idaho 377 (1974); Bergh v. Pennington, 33 Idaho 726, 727 (1921)). In an appeal 

from the magistrate's division, the clerk's record on appeal is the court's file in the proceeding 

from which the appeal is taken (IRCP 83(n)). 

Maureen's brief asks presents this Court with numerous exhibits that are outside the 

record. The Court will note from the actual clerk's record that Maureen's "Amended Motion for 

Reconsideration" appended 25 exhibits (Exhibits A through Y). Her brief on appeal attaches 57 

purported exhibits. The first 25 are the same as in her motion to Judge McFadden, except that 

more pages are added to Exhibit 14 than were in its corresponding Exhibit N in the proceedings 

below. Of the 32 additional exhibits, only 5 (Exhibits 32,33,39,47 and 55) can be found in the 

clerk's transcript on this appeal. The other 27 new exhibits are outside the record and cannot be 

considered by this Court under the authority cited above. 1 

Jerry accordingly moves to strike Exhibits 26-31, 34-38, 40-46, 48-54, 56 and 57. 

Throughout her brief, Maureen references and premises argument on those exhibits. Any factual 

claim or argument based thereon, especially the thoroughly argumentative and completely 

misleading "Significant Factual Chronology", should either be stricken or totally disregarded by 

this Court.2 

I Jerry further objects to those exhibits on the grounds that none of them are properly authenticated. Mr. Herman 
simply attaches them to his affidavit saying that they are true and correct copies. No foundation exists for him to 
make such representations or to establish the authenticity thereof. 
2 For example, if the Court looks at the entry for 2/28/07 it will note the absurd claim a guardianship proceeding was 
initiated to keep Bill McKee from testifYing (at what is unclear). That proceeding was initiated because Maureen 
was stealing her father blind to the point that he was virtually a pauper, a fact that Judge McFadden so found in that 
proceeding. However, getting into what the truth is in that case reflects the rationale for restricting the scope of 
what can be considered on appeal (i.e. the record in the proceedings below). 
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Second, and in the same vein, an appellate court cannot consider arguments raised for the 

first time on appeal (Johannsen v. Utterback, 146 Idaho 423,429 (2008); Dominquez ex reI 

Ramp v. Evergreen Resources, Inc., 142 Idaho 7, 14 (2005); Bouten v. HF Magnuson Co., 133 

Idaho 756 (1999». Including exhibits not presented to Judge McFadden, Maureen necessarily 

raises arguments not presented at the trial court level. Maureen brief is replete with arguments 

not presented to Judge McFadden (see e.g. pages 23 and 24 of her brief) and thus should not be 

considered in this appeal. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. Procedural Matters. While the probate proceeding will be discussed in more 

detail below, it is important to keep in mind what truly happened in that proceeding and what was 

actually before Judge McFadden to decide. 

1. Motion For Partial Distribution. On January 24, 2006, almost 12 years 

after her mother's death, Maureen secretly initiated this proceeding. Maureen's clear objective 

was to secure an order from the court awarding her an interest in a 37-acre parcel ofland on the 

North Fork of the Coeur d'Alene River her parents had previously owed jointly with Jerry and 

his wife before Jerry could discover what she was doing.3 No other reason existed to file the 

petition probating her mother's estate. Doing so was otherwise a wasted effort, since Maureen 

had by then exhausted virtually every other asset her parents owned. 

Jerry fortunately discovered Maureen's scheme and appeared in this proceeding. 

He was thus entitled to notice when Maureen filed her motion for partial distribution one year 

later on January 7, 2007. Jerry opposed the motion by filing a motion to dismiss the proceeding 

3 In March of 2000, almost 6 years after his wife's death, Bill quitclaimed his half interest in that property to Jerry 
and his wife, Mina. Doing so was consistent with the provisions of a will he executed in 1999 that was drafted at 
Bill's request by attorney Nancy McGee. 
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based on the statute of limitations for probating a will (3 years from the date of death) and by 

raising in direct opposition the fact that Natalie McKee's purported holographic will was 

trumped by a Community Property Agreement recorded years earlier (Maureen's Exhibit 7). 

In response to the motion to dismiss, Maureen concocted a claim that her father 

had defrauded her by keeping the will's existence from her until she discovered it in August of 

2004.4 Judge McFadden accordingly ruled that he did not have to decide the statute of 

limitations issue to deny Maureen's motion for partial distribution based on the existence of the 

Community Property Agreement and the fact that the North Fork Property was not part of 

Natalie's estate since Bill McKee had deeded it to Jerry and his wife in March of2000. Both 

Jerry's motion to dismiss and Maureen's motion for partial distribution were therefore denied. 

Important to keep in mind in that procedural background is the following: 

a. The motion for partial distribution was Maureen's. She chose that 

that procedure. For some reason, Maureen did not file an action as the personal representative of 

her mother's estate to declare the Community Property Agreement null and void or to set aside 

the deed from Bill to Jerry and his wife. 

h. The motion was not a substitute for an action to set aside the 2000 

deed from Bill to Jerry and his wife since (a) that relief was not requested in the motion and (b) 

all necessary parties were not before the court (i.e. Jerry's wife). Judge McFadden's ruling that 

the real property at issue was not part of the estate and thus not something he could order 

distributed is accurate not only as a matter oflaw, but as a matter of fact. 

c. The proceeding Maureen initiated was also not an action for fraud 

or any other action in which damages could be awarded. 

4 The Court will note from Jerry's affidavit in opposition to the motion for reconsideration that it was Maureen who 
disclosed its existence to him in 2002. She had had the will from the outset and probably scripted it for her mother. 
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d. Judge McFadden's ruling that the Community Property Agreement 

prevailed over the purported will in the absence of a writing signed by both Bill and Natalie 

McKee rescinding that agreement is absolutely correct as a matter of law based on the evidence 

presented in 2007 (See IC § 6-503). 

e. The motion was not one to be decided on a summary judgment 

standard even if there had been conflicting evidence presented on the determinative issue. 

Instead, Maureen's motion had to be denied if she could not convince Judge McFadden that it 

was more probable than not that the property was still part of the estate and available for 

distribution. 

2. Motion For Reconsideration. Also important to keep in focus is the 

grounds upon which Judge McFadden denied Maureen's motion for reconsideration. Aside from 

the timing issue (with which this Court has already disagreed) and the obvious prejudice to Jerry 

in responding to a motion to reconsider 27 months after the fact, Judge McFadden denied the 

motion on two other, unassailable grounds: 

a. Maureen did not make a sufficient showing based on admissible 

evidence that the Community Property Agreement had been mutually rescinded. Either Judge 

McFadden correctly found that most of what Maureen presented was inadmissible or, for very 

good reason, was not credible (see irifra). 

b. Maureen had presented nothing in her motion to establish that the 

real property subject to the motion for partial distribution was part of the estate of Natalie 

McKee. 
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STATEMENT OF FACTS 

Natalie Parks McKee died in 1994. She was survived by her husband Bill McKee, sons, 

Jerry and Craig McKee, and daughter, Maureen. 

After having exhausted virtually all of her father's estate on herself and her family in the 

10 years following Natalie's death, Maureen turned her attention to Jerry as her next source of 

funding (see Affidavit of Jerry filed in opposition to motion to reconsider). In 2005, she hired 

attorney Michael Peacock to threaten Jerry with litigation ifhe did not voluntarily return the half 

interest in the acreage on the North Fork of the Coeur d'Alene River that Bill McKee had deeded 

to Jerry and his wife in 2000,5 years earlier and almost 6 years after the death of his wife. 

In January of 2006, while negotiating with Jerry and Mr. Branstetter, and obviously 

thinking that they could sneak something past Jerry and his attorney, Maureen verified as true an 

Application for Informal Probate that Mr. Peacock prepared that affirmatively averred that 

Natalie had no heirs or children other than herself and her father. No notice of the 

Application was accordingly sent to Jerry, his brother or Mr. Branstetter. Maureen and her 

counsel thus hid from the Court when seeking her appointment that she, in fact, had two 

brothers, brothers she did not want to know about this proceeding. 

Maureen waited a year to file her motion for partial distribution. When Jerry responded 

with a motion to dismiss the probate based on the statute of limitations, Maureen knew she had a 

problem. She was attempting to probate a will 9 years after the statute had expired. Based on 

her experience as literally a professional litigant, Maureen knew she would have to come up with 

a claim of fraud in order to argue tolling. Since she controlled her father both mentally and 

physically, he would sign anything put in front of him. He therefore supported her in her claim 

that he had kept the existence of his wife's will from her until she discovered it in his safety 
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deposit box in 2004. While Judge McFadden felt he could not resolve the statute of limitations 

issue without a full evidentiary hearing in light of those claims, he correctly held that Maureen 

had presented no evidence to show that the Community Property Agreement had been rescinded 

by mutual agreement of Bill and his wife or that the North Fork property was an asset of 

Natalie's estate. 

After mulling over Judge's McFadden's ruling for several years, Maureen concocted a 

new fairytale. She knew that she would have to present a writing signed by Bill before Natalie's 

death from which she could argue mutual rescission. What better than a holographic will signed 

by her father? Maureen knew, however, that she could not make that claim because she had 

already executed a number of affidavits detailing how she found her mother's will in her father's 

safety deposit box that made no mention of one signed by her father. Claiming she saw a will 

signed by her father in 2004 when she found supposedly found her mother's will would not only 

be inconsistent with those affidavits, but would not support a claim for "newly-discovered" 

evidence. The solution - have her son Dirk who was not constrained by earlier affidavits testify 

by affidavit that he was with his mother, that while his mother was off copying her mother's will 

he saw one signed by his grandfather and that he did not mention his finding to her until 

recently.s That solution, however, did not avoid the fact that Maureen could not produce a copy 

of that will, a problem she sought to avoid by making the preposterous and wholly unsupported 

claim that Jerry must have found and destroyed it. For very good reasons (detailed below), 

Judge McFadden unquestionably found Maureen newly concocted claim not credible when he 

ruled that Maureen had not made a sufficient showing to grant her motion for reconsideration. 

5 Dirk's affidavit (Exhibit 15) was the cornerstone of Maureen's motion for reconsideration. 
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ISSUES ON APPEAL 

1. May this Court consider matters outside of the record on appeal or arguments not 

presented to the magistrate's court? 

2. Is a motion for partial distribution presented to a magistrate's court sitting in 

probate the proper procedure for setting aside a Community Property Agreement or a deed? 

3. Maya magistrate's court sitting in probate order the distribution of an asset that is 

not an asset of the decedent's estate? 

4. Maya court on motion set aside an agreement or deed when all indispensable 

parties are not before it? 

5. Maya court consider "evidence" that is not admissible when evaluating a motion 

for reconsideration? 

6. Is a court required to grant a motion for reconsideration premised on "evidence" it 

does not believe is credible? 

7. Can a court infer prejudice under the circumstances of this case? 

8. Notwithstanding the foregoing, are Maureen's claims nevertheless barred by the 

statute of limitations? 

ARGUMENT 

A. Maureen's "Summary Judgment Standard" Argument Is Wholly Misplaced. 

Maureen wastes pages of her brief (18-20 and the last paragraph of 24) arguing about Judge 

McFadden's supposed failure to apply the standards applicable to summary jUdgment motions 

when ruling on the motion to dismiss. In support, she cites case law imposing the same rules 

applicable to summary judgment motions when the trial court is ruling on a motion to dismiss 

where factual issues are involved. Maureen, however, has the record dead wrong. 

676 
Respondent's Brief - 8 



Maureen is either completely confused or is attempting to misdirect this Court. Judge 

McFadden did, in fact, apply a summary judgment standard of review when ruling on Jerry's 

motion to dismiss. He denied that motion because he perceived that there was a factual issue as 

to whether or not Natalie's will had been concealed from her based on her perjured affidavit. 

Maureen thus prevailed on that motion since judge McFadden refused to dismiss the probate 

because of her claim the statute of limitations had been tolled as a result of the fraud claim she 

manufactured. 

What is at issue in this appeal is not the motion to dismiss, but Maureen's motion for 

partial distribution. Judge McFadden also denied that motion because, as a matter of law, the 

provisions of Natalie's purported will did not supersede the Community Property Agreement and 

the property at issue was not an asset of Natalie's estate at the time the motion was filed. 

Absolutely no authority exists to suggest that such a motion is governed by summary judgment 

standards. Based on what was presented in both the original motion and in support of Maureen's 

motion for reconsideration, Judge McFadden simply ruled that insufficient evidence was before 

him to grant her motion. 

Maureen's entire argument concerning the burden of proof and the standard by which 

Judge McFadden's decision on her motions are to be gauged are thus completely inapplicable 

and meaningless. 

B. Maureen Ignores The Fact The Property Is Not An Asset Of The Estate. As a 

matter of public record, any interest Natalie McKee may have had in the North Fork property 

passed to her husband, Bill, upon her death either pursuant to the Community Property 

Agreement. Bill deeded the halfinterest he and Natalie had owned to Jerry and his wife Mina in 
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March of2000. From March of2000 through today's date, record title to the property is stands 

in the join names of Jerry and Mina McKee. 

Maureen filed a motion for partial distribution (presumably under IC 15-3-505 even 

though the probate was not supervised). For some reason, even though she had received letters 

appointing her as the personal representative of her mother's estate, Maureen apparently chose 

not to file an action to set aside the deed or to seek a declaration that the Community Property 

Agreement was null and void. She could have done so at any time within the applicable statute 

oflimitations (now long past), naming both Jerry and his wife. Judge McFadden correctly 

recognized both in ruling on the original motion and on Maureen's motion for reconsideration 

that the property Maureen wanted him to order distributed was not an asset of the estate as a 

matter aflaw. He was accordingly powerless to grant a motion to distribute an asset the estate 

did not own. 

Maureen completely ignores in this appeal the fact that she failed to take timely action to 

bring the property into the estate, that a motion for partial distribution is not the vehicle for doing 

so (especially when not all interested parties are before the court (IRCP 19(a)(1)), and that Judge 

McFadden could not grant a motion to distribute an asset the estate did not own. Accordingly, 

even if Judge McFadden had concluded sufficient evidence existed to question the validity of the 

Community Property Agreement, he could not legally have granted Maureen's motion. Nothing 

Maureen raises in her appeal changes that fact or questions the validity of Judge McFadden's 

ruling on both motions. 

c. Judge McFadden Correctly Found Maureen's Purported Evidenced Insufficient. 

In addition to again finding that "[t]he property the subject of the original Motion for Partial 

Distribution is not as a matter oflaw part of the estate of Natalie Parks McKee", Judge 
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McFadden also found that an "insufficient showing" had been made to warrant granting of the 

motion for reconsideration. 

When considering a motion for reconsideration based on a claim of newly discovered 

evidence, a court is required to limit its consideration only to evidence that admissible (Shelton v. 

Shelton,2008-ID-lOOl-100». In light of the language of his ruling, Judge McFadden clearly 

considered what Maureen presented in her motion for reconsideration and found the same either 

inadmissible or not worthy of belief. A simple review of the exhibits before him explains why6: 

1. Exhibit 1: This letter purportedly from Bill to Maureen's lawyer (notably 

dated more than a year before her motion for partial distribution) is clearly inadmissible and not 

probative. It is not properly authenticated (Mr. Herman is incompetent to do so), is hearsay not 

subject to any exception and is not testimony presented under oath. 

2. Exhibit 2: This letter purportedly from Bill to Jerry is clearly 

inadmissible. It is not properly authenticated (Mr. Herman is incompetent to do so), is hearsay 

not subject to any exception and is not testimony presented under oath. 

3. Exhibit 15. The affidavit testimony of Dirk Erickson, Maureen's son, 

about the contents of a will he claims to have seen in 2004 (while not credible, see infra) is 

inadmissible hearsay and violates the best evidence rule. 

The only even remotely admissible testimony that Maureen presented was the deposition 

testimony of her father in May of2007, less than a month after Judge McFadden's formal order 

denying her motion for partial distribution (26 months before Maureen's motion for 

reconsideration). That testimony from a confused, 91 year old man does state that both he and his 

wife signed wills at the same time. Again, while not worthy of belief (see infra), that testimony if 

6 Jerry will address only those exhibits, which Maureen claims are or present evidence of a contemporaneous 
holographic will by her father, not the myriad of others that contain mind-boggling inadmissible hearsay like the 
affidavits Jack Rose, Maureen and her sons. 
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read closely does not support Maureen's claims on her motion for reconsideration. Bill McKee 

was asked about the contents of his wife's will, not his ("What did she say in your will, as best 

you can remember", Maureen Exhibit 11, pg 24). Nowhere does Bill recite what was supposed to 

be in the one he signed. The answer he gives to that question clearly reflects his confusion since it 

was clearly inaccurate as to even the contents of his wife's will. 

Thus, the only admissible evidence before Judge McFadden on Maureen's motion for 

reconsideration is the confused, equivocal testimony of Bill McKee. That evidence was far from 

sufficient to overcome the recorded Community Property Agreement even if doing so would 

return the property to Natalie's estate. 

Moreover, Judge McFadden had very good reason to question the accuracy of Bill's 

deposition testimony and the veracity of the belated assertions made by Dirk Erickson. As to Bill, 

Judge McFadden undoubtedly noted that the testimony his attorney led him to give in a rehearsed 

deposition (noticed by Mr. Rose) was: 

1. Belied by the two affidavits he executed in this action in 2006 and earlier 

in 2007 (Maureen Exhibits 4 and 6). In both affidavits, Bill mentions his wife's will, but never 

states that he also signed one. The second affidavit given in opposition to the motion to dismiss 

goes into far greater detail, describing a supposed meeting among family members while his wife 

was dying in 1994 (one that never actually occurred) and his supposed intent to revoke the 

Community Property Agreement. If Bill had actually signed a holographic will himself, that fact 

would have been presented front and center. 

2. Inconsistent with the fact that Bill did, in fact, execute a will that gave 

virtually his entire estate to Maureen, but one that did not cut out Jerry or his brother Craig. 

Judge McFadden had before him a will (Exhibit 5 to Jerry's affidavit) that was prepared without 
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input from, or even the knowledge of, any of his children. All on his own, Bill consulted 

attorney Nancy McKee in 1999 and executed a will she drafted that left everything except the 

North Fork Property and $5,000 to Maureen. That will bequeathed the real property to Jerry and 

the money to Craig (see affidavit of Nancy McGee). Judge McFadden clearly recognized that 

either that was the will Bill was thinking of or that he had been induced to say something in his 

deposition that was untrue. 

As to Dirk Erickson, Judge McFadden obviously recognized that both he and his brother 

had lied to him before on behalf of their mother as to other matters. Aside from the "you-have­

got-to-be-kidding-me" nature of Dirk's assertion he found a will in his grandfather's safety 

deposit box when his mother was out of the room in 2004 and did not tell her about it for years, 

Judge McFadden knew: 

1. The affidavit testimony by both Dirk and his brother Garth that they had 

participated in a family meeting in 1994 at which the family agreed after discussion that the 

parents' estate would be left to Maureen since she was most in need is obviously perjured. Aside 

from the fact that Jerry denies any such meeting ever took place, the testimony of Garth and Dirk 

is inherently unbelievable. As Jerry reveals, Garth and Dirk were only 13 and 10 years of age at 

the time. Children of those ages would not be included in such a meeting, much less remember 

what transpired more than a decade later. 

2. Judge McFadden also had before him incontrovertible proof that both had 

lied to parrot their mother about a meeting that occurred at Bill's Osburn home in August of 

2004. In lockstep with their mother, both signed affidavits saying that Jerry had hired a lawyer 

to do a new will for Bill and that they came from their home in Spokane to rescue Bill before 

Jerry could force him to do so. Judge McFadden had before him the truth - an affidavit from 
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Nancy McGee in which re makes clear that it was Maureen, not Jerry who had asked her to do a 

new will, that Jerry was clearly embarrassed by Maureen's behavior and that she refused to assist 

Bill in drafting a new will at that time because it was clear that Maureen was pushing her father 

to do something he did not want and was clearly attempting to exert undue influence on him. Of 

equal note, she testified in her affidavit that Garth and Dirk were not even in the room when 

these discussions were taking place. 

Faced with the foregoing, Judge McFadden had no reason to believe Dirk about what he 

claimed to have seen in 2004 even ifhis testimony as to the contents of a document no one else 

has seen were admissible. Dirk lied about the 1994 meeting, Dirk lied about the 2004 meeting 

and no possible reason existed why Judge McFadden would believe his completely implausible 

claims in 2009. 

Without any admissible or believable evidence, Judge McFadden had good reason to 

exercise his discretion to deny the motion for reconsideration even if the North Fork property 

had not already been deeded to Jerry and his wife. 

D. Prejudice May Be Inferred Or Presumed. Though not critical to his decision, 

Judge McFadden also found that the multi-year delay in bringing the motion for reconsideration 

on for hearing was prejudicial to Jerry. In 2009, Judge McFadden clearly knew that Bill McKee 

was at least 93 years of age and in poor health. Maureen presented nothing in her motion that 

even suggested Bill was mentally capable of verifying the claims she now makes or of resolving 

his apparent confusion between the 1999 will drafted by Nancy McKee and the supposed will no 

one but Dirk has seen. Judge McFadden at the very least was entitled to consider the fact that 

Maureen presented nothing current from Bill to establish that he is even alive, much less able to 
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cogently explain why he failed to mention his supposed 1994 will in all of his prior affidavits. 

Obviously, ifhe is not able to present himself to resolve those issues, Jerry has been prejudiced. 

E. Maureen's Claim is, In Any Event, Barred by the Statute of Limitations. The 

issues Maureen purports to address on this appeal are mooted by the applicable statute of 

limitations, a defense that the Affidavit filed by Maureen in support of her motion for 

reconsideration puts to rest. 

Maureen asks this Court to treat her motion for partial distribution as an action to set 

aside the deed given by her father to Jerry and his wife in March of 2000. While Jerry disputes 

that a motion for partial distribution of an asset from an estate constitutes such an action even if 

all necessary parties were before the court, Maureen is, in any event, time barred. 

In her affidavit,7 Maureen unequivocally asserts that she first learned of the fraud that 

supposedly deprived her of the interest in the Property she should have inherited under her 

mother's will in August of 2004 (See Affidavit ~ 12). The motion for partial distribution was not 

filed until January of 2007, some 29 months after she supposedly discovered the fraud. 

However, Idaho Code § 15-1-106 provides that any action by a person injured by any fraud used 

to avoid or circumvent the provisions of the probate code must be filed within 2 years o/the date 

of discovery o/the/raud. Accordingly, even if her motion for the distribution of an asset that 

had not been in her mother's estate for almost 7 years qualified as an action to redress the fraud 

she alleges, Maureen was 5 months to late in her filing her action. 

Setting aside Judge McFadden's orders on either or both motions challenged in this 

appeal would thus be a wasted effort since the claims Maureen wishes to pursue are time barred 

as an absolute matter of law. Well recognized in Idaho jurisprudence is the ability of an 

appellate court to affirm a trial court's decision on alternate grounds even if those upon which 

7 Maureen's Exhibit 8. 
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the decision is based are faulty (Martel v. Bulotti, 138 Idaho 451, 454 (2003); Andre v. Morrow, 

106 Idaho 455 (1984)). Thus, even if this Court believes that Judge McFadden somehow erred 

his decision should be upheld. 

CONCLUSION 

This is not an appeal from a motion to dismiss, but a challenge to the denial of Maureen's 

motion for partial distribution of an asset that is not legally a part of Natalie Parks McKee's 

estate. For reasons unknown, Maureen failed to timely pursue an action to set aside the 

Community Property Agreement or the quitclaim to Jerry and Mina McKee. Instead, she elected 

to employ a simple motion procedure that did not bring all necessary parties before the court. 

The trial court was powerless to grant her motion in the first instance and nothing she presented 

by way of her motion for reconsideration, aside from being incompetent and unbelievable, 

changed that fact. Judge McFadden's decision should accordingly be affirmed. 

Dated: 2./" /, () .. . 
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IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF 

NATALIE PARKS McKEE 
CASE NO. CV 2006-40 

Deceased. APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF 

I. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

The facts in this case have been laid out previously but are reiterated here to bring forth 

the key issues before this Court. 

FACT #1. The Motion to Dismiss was decided on facts outside the official record in this 

matter, and not the record established by the UNCONTRADICTED affidavits submitted. The 

affidavits and other information in the file establish that there are material questions of fact. 

FACT #2. The trial court decided a question not before it on motion; there was a motion 

to dismiss the estate and a motion for partial distribution before the trial court. There was no 

motion for summary judgment before the court. The trial court's decision resulted in a summary 

judgment. 

FACT #3. In a summary judgment motion the moving party has the burden of showing 

the absence of any genuine issue as to all the material facts. 
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FACT #4. To satisfy his burden the moving party must make a showing that is quite 

clear what the truth is, and that excludes any real doubt as to the existence of any genuine 

material facts. 

FACT #5. A motion for summary judgment all doubts are to be resolved against the 

moving party. 

II. ARGUMENT 

A. RESPONSE TO OBJECTION TO AND MOTION TO STRIKE EXHIBITS 

The Respondent claims that some of the exhibits attached to the Affidavit of Lloyd A. 

Herman and related portions of the Appellant's brief are "outside the record" and constitute new 

material introduced for the fIrst time on appeal. Thus, he is objecting to and moving to strike 

Exhibits 26-31, 34-38, 40-46, 48-54, 56, and 57 attached to the Herman Affidavit. Yet, the 

Respondent is mistaken if they believe these exhibits and related arguments are new to the whole 

dispute between the parties. The litigation before the Court represents just one of several cases 

in both Idaho and Washington having to do with the property of Bill and Natalie Parks McKee 

and the related matter of Bill McKee's guardianship. They all involve the same nexus of parties, 

issues, and evidence. As such, the exhibits and arguments are properly before the Court 

according to the rule of judicial notice. 

Judicial notice is governed by ER 201, which states in section (g) that it may be taken by 

the court at any stage of the proceedings. In the exercise of their discretion, at least where such 

records are properly, or in some appropriate manner, called to their attention, the courts may take 

judicial notice of their records, fIles, or proceedings in other cases, partiCUlarly where such other 

cases were between or involved the same, or some of the same, parties. 31A C.J.S. Evidence § 

103. As a general rule, a court in one case will not take judicial notice of its own records in 

another and distinct case even between the same parties, unless the prior proceedings are 
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introduced into evidence. Lowe v. McDonald, 221 F.2d 228,230 (9th Cir. 1955). The rule is not, 

however, a hard and fast one since the extent to which it will be applied depends in large 

measure upon considerations of expediency and justice in the circumstances of the particular 

case. Id. Among the recognized exceptions are instances in which the prior case is brought into 

the pleadings in the case on trial or where the two cases represent related litigation. Id. at 230-

231. Generally, a trial court may take judicial notice of its own records. Lewiston Pistol Club, 

Inc. v. Board a/County Commissioners a/New Perce County, 96 Idaho 137, 140,525 P.2d 332 

(1974). Also, the record on a prior appeal in the same case in the same court is judicially noticed 

by the latter. Blaine County Inv. Co. v. Mays, 52 Idaho 381, 15 P.2d 734, 736 (1932). An 

appellate court can take judicial notice of other judgments made by a trial court if that other 

judgment is so closely related to the case before it as to be crucial to the record. See England v. 

Phillips, 96 Idaho 830,831-832,537 P.2d 1019 (1975). 

The following exhibit numbers are all pleadings, foreign state judgments, and discovery-

related material filed in the other closely related cases that the Respondent is moving to strike. 

Exhibit "26": Timeline prepared by Jerome McKee and submitted to the 
Department of Social Services in Idaho, which is a business record 
that was provided for the purpose of admissions by Jerome that 
Maureen did not obtain Natalie's will until August 2004, and that 
there were negotiation starting in 2002 through 2003 for Jerome to 
purchase the "River" property from Maureen regarding the return 
of the "River" property indicating ownership by Maureen during 
that period, which is confirmed by her affidavit and exhibits 
already as part of the record in the Amended Motion for 
Reconsideration. (Exhibits 8 - Affidavit of Maureen Erickson; 
Exhibit 16 - Affidavit of Van Smith; and Exhibit 17 Affidavit of 
Rhonda Fay.) 

Exhibit "27": July 6, 2005 letter from Michael Peacock to Jerome McKee 
requesting the return of the "River" property. 

Exhibit "28": September 9, 2005 letter from Michael Peacock to Michael 
Branstetter negotiating the return of the "River" property. 
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Exhibit "29"; July 13, 2006 letter from Michael Peacock which was already 
Exhibit 5 in the Amended Motion for Reconsideration. 

Exhibit "30"; Lis Pendens filed 1/26/06 on "River" property referred to in 
Michael Peacock's Memorandum in Opposition to Motion to 
Dismiss, and Exhibit 5 in the Amended Motion for 
Reconsideration. 

Exhibit "31"; Letter from Maureen Erickson to Jerome McKee offering to 
sell the "River" property to him, which confirms her belief that 
she owned the property, and that it had been transferred back 
to her as pointed out by Exhibits 8, 16 and 17 in the Amended 
Motion for Reconsideration, and confirmed by Exhibit 26 
(timeline) which include admissions by Jerome that he made 
offers to purchase the "River" property in 2002 and 2003. 

Exhibit "34"; Petition for Preservation Deposition prior to filing cause of 
action - CV 2007-016. 

Exhibit "35"; Notice of Service of Preservation Deposition - Craig 
McKee - 2/26/07. 

Exhibit "36": Notice of Non-service of Preservation Deposition -
Jerome McKee - 2/26107. 

Exhibit "37"; Affidavit of Michael Peacock dated January 14,2010 
authenticating Exhibits 1 and 2 of the Amended Motion for 
Reconsideration, where Jerome and Michael Peacock are 
informed of Bill's mutual holographic will done at the same 
time as Natalie's. 

Exhibit "38"; 2/26107 Notice of Taking of Preservation Deposition of 
Bill McKee in Probate matter. 

Exhibit "40"; Motion for Cognitive Assessment of Bill McKee in 
Guardianship matter - 4/13/07. 

Exhibit "41"; Notice of Taking of Preservation Deposition of Bill 
McKee in Probate matter - 4/27/07. 

Exhibit "42": Notice of Taking of Deposition of Jerome McKee in 
Probate matter - 4/27/07. 

Exhibit "43": Denial of Motion for Cognitive Assessment. 
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Exhibit "44"; Motion for Second Opinion and Postponement of Surgery 
- 6/8/07. 

Exhibit "45": Order Shortening Time of Petitioner's Motion for Second 
Opinion and Postponement of Surgery - 6/14/07. 

Exhibit "46": Order Denying Postponement of Surgery - 6/18/07. 

Exhibit "48": Restraining Order / Washington Guardianship Action filed 
on 2/28/07. 

Exhibit "49": Affidavit of Dr. Fuhs - 3/4/08. 

Exhibit "50": Letter of negotiation between Peacock and Branstetter 
filed in Charles Dean's Opposition to Amended Motion 
for Reconsideration and already an exhibit. 

Exhibit "51": Court testimony of Lyn St. Louis in the guardianship 
proceeding on 7/12/07 

Exhibit "52": Order terminating Idaho Conservatorship - 6/20/08. 

Exhibit "53": Order appointing Maureen Erickson as guardian of the 
person in Washington. 

Exhibit "54": Order appointing Garth Erickson as guardian of the estate 
in Washington. 

Exhibit "56": CV 07-469, McKee v McKee. 

Exhibit "57": Jerome McKee's Answers to Interrogatories in CV 07-469. 

Each of these documentary exhibits is crucial to the record. Moreover, given the 

complicated nature of this case and fact pattern, they are absolutely essential if the Court is to 

have any understanding of the controversy before it. 

Under the heading of Objection and Motion to Strike, after moving to strike several 

exhibits, Respondent claims that Appellant is making arguments for the first time on appeal and 

not presented to the trial court. Respondent specifically cites Plaintiff's Brief is replete with 

arguments not presented to Judge McFadden (pgs. 23 and 24 of her Brief), and should not be 
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considered on appeal. This part of the Brief is under section B: Why the Decision Should be 

Overruled on Appeal as a Matter of Fact. This section of the Brief points out that the court 

upholds its original ruling on the grounds that Appellant has never produced Mr. McKee's 

mutual holographic will. The Brief cites the testimony presented in the Amended Motion for 

Reconsideration, which includes the Affidavit of Dirk Erickson who saw the mutual will in the 

safety deposit box; and the additional fact that Bill McKee testified in his deposition that he did a 

mutual will with his wife, which is also part of the record in the Amended Motion for 

Reconsideration. That section of the Brief also points out that when the court originally ruled on 

the Motion to Dismiss, there were no opposing affidavits that supported Respondents contentions 

in this matter. Page 23 points out the significance that no affidavit has been submitted denying 

the existence of Bill McKee's holographic will that he testified he entered into at the same time 

as Natalie McKee's will, and evidenced by Exhibits 1 and 2 of the Amended Motion for 

Reconsideration. Page 23 of the Brief on Appeal points out that the Respondent Jerome McKee 

had entered Bill McKee's safety deposit box on three occasions, and after that time Bill and 

Natalie's holographic wills had disappeared from the safety deposit box. The Brief goes on to 

cite Jerome McKee's answers to interrogatories citing the same. The Amended Motion for 

Reconsideration submits as one of its exhibits (exhibit 14), the safety deposit box sign in sheet, 

and argues on page 6 that said the safety deposit box sign in sheet Jerome McKee and his wife 

entered the safety deposit box on August 13, 2004, and on two other occasions after Maureen 

Erickson has discovered his mother's holographic will providing plenty of opportunity for 

Respondent Jerome McKee to clean out the safety deposit box, causing the loss of the mutual 

holographic wills. Also made part of the Amended Motion for Reconsideration was Bill 

McKee's videotaped deposition in its entirety (Exhibit 11), parts of which were referred to on 
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page 24 of the Brief on Appeal in support of Maureen Erickson's contention that Respondent had 

plenty of opportunity to clean out the safety deposit box, especially since her father testified in 

his deposition that he saw several of his documents from his safety deposit box in Jerome's home 

in Sandpoint, Idaho after Jerome had entered the safety deposit box. Furthermore, the court itself 

in its decision admits "most of the affidavits and briefing submitted in the Amended Motion for 

Reconsideration asserts facts that the community property agreement between Bill and Natalie 

Parks McKee was revoked by mutual holographic wills." Obviously the courts decision cites the 

very heart of Appellant's contention that there were mutual wills, that this was not a new 

argument on appeal. The Brief on Appeal on page 24 further points out that all the evidence 

submitted to the court on the Motion for Reconsideration and Amended Motion for 

Consideration was uncontradicted by Jerome McKee. 

B. RESPONSE TO CLAIM THAT APPELLANT'S SUMMARY JUDGMENT 

STANDARD ARGUMENT IS MISPLACED, AND A MOTION FOR 

DISTRIBUTION IN THE PROBATE WAS NOT THE PROPER PROCEDURE 

FOR SETTING ASIDE A COMMUNITY PROPERTY AGREEMENT AND/OR 

DEED, AND WHETHER A PROBATE COURT CAN ORDER THE 

DISTRIBUTION OF AN ASSET. 

The Respondent cites no legal authority in support of his argument. A similar factual 

circumstance arose in Woodwardv. Utter, 29 Idaho 310, 158 P. 495 (1916). A petition was filed 

to reopen the probate questioning the validity of a deed in a probate, challenging the deed on the 

grounds that it was executed by a person who was incapacitated and under duress and undue 

influence. Supporting affidavits were submitted by the petitioners that alleged the author of the 

deed was incapacitated and under undue influence. The court, in upholding the petition to 
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reopen the probate and set aside the deed, pointed out that "no counter affidavits were filed, a 

certain degree of verity must be imputed to these objections ... as well as to the affidavits ... in 

support of their motion." 

The court endorsed the procedure when it said, "So far as the probate court is concerned, 

it must permit the stream of succession to flow in its usual course and must distribute the 

property in question to the heir, leaving the grantee under the disputed deed to try out the issue of 

his title in district court." The court went on to cite valid reasons such as pressing necessities 

that induce heirs to part with their inheritance to designing persons for inadequate considerations 

as was done here by Jerome McKee. The court said, "This may be deemed a controlling reason 

for requiring those who obtained conveyances from heirs before settlement of the estate to 

establish their rights in a court of equity if the conveyance is questioned in the probate court." 

The procedure is the same whether the probate has been brought and closed or whether 

the probate had not been instituted prior to the transfer. Once the will is discovered and a valid 

probate is begun, the court has the power to make determinations in regard to any of the property 

devised by the will. Douglas v Douglas, 22 Idaho 336, 125 P. 799 (1912), specifically states, "A 

probate court, however, does not have jurisdiction to determine adverse claims or an adverse title 

to real estate, except in so far as such questions arise between the heirs or devisees of an 

estate and are necessary to be determined in the administration of the estate." 

In the Statement of Facts, counsel for Jerome McKee criticizes Appellant's attorney 

Michael Peacock for choosing this procedure when he filed the will for probate while Jerome 

admits negotiations for return of the "River" property were ongoing. Idaho Probate Code 

Section 3-108 allows an heir to file a probate after the three year statute if it's filed within two 

years of discovery of the will. Idaho Probate Code, IC 5-1-101 et seq, is extended for an 
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additional two years from the date the fraud was discovered. IC 15-1-106 states, "if fraud is used 

to avoid or circumvent the provisions or purposes of this code, any person injured thereby may 

obtain appropriate relief against the perpetrator of the fraud." The fraud in this case was 

admitted by Bill McKee in an affidavit filed with the Petition for Informal Probate. Counsel for 

Jerome McKee alleges that it was a secretly initiated proceeding to acquire the "River" property 

without notice. The real objective was to prevent Jerome McKee from transferring the property 

pending the negotiations, because the filing was accompanied by a Lis Pendens. Idaho Probate 

Code Section 15-3-303A clearly requires notice only if "no letters are issued to a personal 

representative." The process of notice is explained in Cahoon v Seaton, 102 Idaho 542, 633 P.2d 

608 (1981), wherein it states that, "The process thus initiated under I.e. s 15-3-301 application is 

ex parte, in that no notice of the application is generally required." The court goes on to say, " 

Informal proceedings are characterized by the use of "applications," not requiring notice, 

followed by issuance of informal orders by the registrar." In the case holding the court says, 

"However, under the language of this section (I.e. s 15-3-303A), the requirement of notice to the 

heirs and devisees is not applicable here since in both estates letters were issued to personal 

representatives." If any activity in the probate whereby title to property would be affected was 

initiated, notice is then required. No further action was taken pending negotiations pending the 

return of the "River" property. When Jerome discovered the probate filing he asked that he be 

provided notice as allowed under I.C. s 15-3-204. When the negotiations failed, a Motion to 

Dismiss the Probate was fired by Jerome McKee on January 5, 2007. A Motion for Partial 

Distribution was then filed by Maureen Erickson on January 16, 2007, and notice duly sent. 

Counsel for Jerome McKee filed an Objection to Partial Distribution on January 23, 2007 

requesting the court to hear the Motion to Dismiss before hearing the Motion for Partial 
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Distribution and alleging no distribution should be made until the "validity of the purported will, 

undue influence and overreaching of Erickson," among other things were determined, and 

whether the newly discovered community property agreement filed in 1988 had caused by 

operation of law the property to pass to Bill McKee on the death of Natalie Parks McKee on 

December 19, 1994. Counsel for Jerome McKee attempts to persuade the court in their 

statement of the case that the probate was secretly initiated to somehow divest property, when he 

knows very well that any transfers of property would require notice. Counsel for Jerome McKee 

also contends that Maureen Erickson concocted a claim for fraud after the community property 

agreement was discovered. However, it should be pointed out that fraud of concealment was 

admitted to at the time of filing of the probate in Bill McKee's affidavit dated January 20, 2006. 

Counsel even accuses Maureen Erickson of scripting the will for her mother knowing all along 

that Jerome McKee in his deposition (Exhibit 13 in the Amended Motion for Reconsideration) 

admitted under oath when shown the will at page 70, lines 13-18, that it was his mother's 

handwriting, that he recognized the signature, and that he saw the will for the first time in 2002. 

Counsel for Jerome McKee argues under procedural matters that the motion heard by 

Judge McFadden was not a summary jUdgment hearing. LR.C.P. 12(b)(6) provides if motions to 

dismiss are brought before the court and matters outside of the pleading are presented to and not 

excluded by the court, the motion shall be treated as one for summary judgment and disposed of 

as provided in I.R.C.P. 56, and all parties shall be given reasonable opportunity to present all 

materials made pertinent to such a motion by I.R.C.P. 56. Judge McFadden in his Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions of Law specifically states, "The court considered all pleadings filed herein, 

including the affidavits, memorandums and records." In his Decision and Order on Amended 

Motion for Reconsideration, the court states that "the matter was taken under advisement so that 
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briefing, affidavits, and submitted cases could be fully reviewed." He further states that, "Most 

of the affidavits and briefing submitted in support of the Amended Motion for Reconsideration 

assert facts that the community property agreement between Bill McKee and Natalie Parks 

McKee was revoked by mutual holographic wills." The court makes it clear that he considered 

matters outside the pleadings, and all parties were given reasonable opportunity to present all 

materials made pertinent to a motion by loR.C.P. 56. 

Counsel for Jerome McKee attempts to say that Maureen Erickson should have filed an 

action to attempt to declare the community property agreement null and void. The cases are 

clear that the proper place to determine properties between heirs is in the probate proceeding and 

not in an independent action in equity. Third parties who are not heirs have the burden to bring 

such independent equitable actions. The probate was the proper venue. The court has 

jurisdiction under the probate code to hear property disputes involving heirs in a probate. That 

dispute was brought forward by means of Motion for Partial Distribution. It was not necessary 

for a fraud action to be brought and for damages to be awarded as contended by Jerome McKee. 

The rulings by the court are only significant in that there were substantial issues of fact as to 

whether the community property agreement had been rescinded by mutual holographic wills. 

The court chose to ignore Maureen Erickson's overwhelming evidence that was uncontroverted. 

C. RESPONSE TO THE QUESTION AS TO WHETHER THE COURT ON 

MOTION CAN SET ASIDE AN AGREEMENT OR DEED WHEN ALL 

INDISPENSABLE PARTIES ARE NOT BEFORE IT 

In Woodward v Utter, the probate court was asked to set aside a deed to a non-heir by 

heirs objecting to the deed after the estate was closed. The court, on appeal, upheld the probate 

courts right to allow the heirs to challenge the deed to a non-heir and set aside the deed for fraud 
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and undue influence, because the maker of the deed was incapacitated. No independent lawsuit 

was brought either by the recipient of the deeded property nor were they named in the process. 

The court upheld the probate courts right to deal with all parties including a non-heir, and 

provided that, "The right to cancel the deed obtained from an ancestor by fraud, duress or undue 

influence passes to the heirs, provided the ancestor had not committed acts amounting to 

ratification before his death." In this case, the rightful heir to part of the property under Natalie 

Parks McKee's will sought to open a probate to determine her rights to ownership on discovery 

of the will. The father deeded property to his son, half of which had been given under the will to 

the daughter prior to the discovery of the will and while it was being concealed by the father and 

the son who was the recipient of the deed. The father has never committed any acts of 

ratification, in fact is still alive and supporting the petition in probate to set aside the deed 

because of his fraudulent behavior. Woodward v Utter clearly puts the burden on any non-heirs 

that are on the deed to pursue their rights in the probate or a third party claim. 

D. RESPONSE TO CLAIMS THAT THE EVIDENCE IS NOT ADMISSIBLE AND IS 

NOT CREDIBLE 

Counsel for Jerome McKee makes the mistaken misplaced argument that summary 

judgment was not the proper form to decide the issues before the court on the Motion to Dismiss 

and Motion for Partial Distribution. Having made that incorrect assessment, the argument is then 

put forth that Maureen Erickson has the burden of submitting evidence to the judge, which 

allows the judge to consider it under the same rules as if a trial or full-blown hearing had taken 

place. In a summary judgment motion, the judge doesn't get to determine whether the evidence 

that would come in at some later time at a hearing is inadmissible or not worthy of belief. 

Complaints of not properly authenticating documents or that affidavits are based on hearsay do 
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not apply. Arguments that deposition testimony is somehow tainted or confused and therefore 

not worthy of belief are not the standard by which the judge gets to determine the evidence 

submitted by affidavit and deposition. All those arguments are reserved for a hearing after the 

court has determined if there is any genuine issue of fact. In determining if there is a genuine 

issue of fact, the party making the motion has the burden of showing the absence of any genuine 

issues as to all the material facts, and in order to satisfy that burden the moving party must make 

a showing that is quite clear what the truth is and excludes any real doubt as to any existence of 

any genuine material fact. These burdens are the moving party's duty and the court is required to 

resolve all doubts against the moving party. Clearly the affidavit and documentary evidence 

submitted to the court at the original hearing and at the Amended Motion for Reconsideration 

hearing were done in such a way as to establish there was a genuine issue of fact as to whether 

the community property agreement had been rescinded by the parties to the agreement. 

E. RESPONSE TO CLAIM OF LACHES CREATING PREJUDICE 

In a pleading to a preceding pleading, "a party shall set forth affirmatively ... laches ... 

and any other matter constituting an avoidance or affirmative defense." LR.C.P. 8(c). The 

purpose of this rule is to alert the parties concerning the issues of fact to be tried and to afford 

them an opportunity to present evidence to meet those defenses. Williams v. Paxton, 98 Idaho 

155, 559 P.2d 1123 (1976). The affirmative defense oflaches creating prejudice is a question of 

fact that must be pleaded and proved by the asserting party.! Thomas v Arkoosh Produce, Inc., 

137 Idaho 352, 359, 48 P.3d 1241 (2002). Because the doctrine oflaches is founded in equity in 

determining whether the doctrine applies, consideration must be given to all surrounding 

I The necessary elements of laches are (1) defendant's invasion of plaintiffs rights; (2) delay in asserting plaintiffs 
rights, the plaintiff having notice and an opportunity to institute a suit; (3) lack of knowledge by the defendant that 
plaintiff would assert his rights; and (4) injury or prejudice to the defendant in the event relief is accorded to plaintiff 
or the suit is not held to be barred. Henderson v. Smith, 128 Idaho 444, 449,915 P.2d 6 (1996). 
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circumstances and acts of the parties. The lapse of the time alone is not controlling on whether 

laches applies. Id. The failure to raise the question of laches ordinarily results in a waiver of the 

defense. Hartwell Corp. v. Smith, 107 Idaho 134, 686 P.2d 79 (1984). Finally and most 

importantly, the affirmative defense of laches creating prejudice must be raised by the asserting 

party at the trial court level and cannot be considered for the first time on appeal. See Herrmann 

v. Woodell, 107 Idaho 916, 921-922, 693 P.2d 1118 (1985). 

In this case, the whole question of laches creating prejudice was never brought up by the 

Respondent at the trial court level. Their briefing and arguments responding to the Motion for 

Reconsideration and the Amended Motion for Reconsideration contain no mention of this 

affirmative defense. There has been no pleading or proof submitted asserting and proving the 

existence of a detrimental change of position by the Respondent. The whole matter of laches 

creating prejUdice would have been completely ignored were it not for Judge McFadden's 

arbitrary and unprompted presumption that the 27-month delay in bringing the motion was 

supposedly prejudicial to Jerome McKee. Now, the Respondent Jerome McKee is trying to raise 

this issue at the appellate court level. However, since this is a question of fact that is being 

pleaded for the first time, it cannot and must not be considered by the Court. 

F. RESPONSE TO CLAIM APPELLANT'S MOTION WAS BARRED BY THE 

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS 

Regarding the contention that the Appellant's claim was barred by the statute of 

limitations set forth in Idaho Code § 15-1-106, the Respondent argues that the relevant statute of 

limitations began running on August 17, 2004 when Natalie McKee's will was discovered by the 

Appellant Maureen Erickson and that the filing of the Motion for Partial Distribution came on 

January 16,2007 came more than two years later. However, the key date for statute oflimitation 
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purposes was actually January 23, 2006 - when Natalie McKee's will was filed for probate. This 

was within two years of the discovery set forth in the statute, Idaho Code § 15-1-106. To add 

further clarification, Comment to the Official Text ofIdaho Code § 15-1-106 states in part: 

This is an overriding provision that provides an exception to the procedures and 
limitations provided in the Code. The remedy of the party wronged by fraud is 
intended to be supplementary to other protections provided in the Code and can 
be maintained outside the process of settlement of the estate. Thus, if a will 
which is known to be a forgery is probated informally, and the forgery is not 
discovered until after the period for contest has run, the defrauded heirs still could 
bring a fraud action under the section. Or if the will is fraudulently concealed 
after the testator's death and its existence not discovered until after the basic three 
year period (section 3-108) has elapsed. there still may be an action under this 
section. 

Comment to Official Text of Idaho Code 15-1-106 (emphasis added.) 

III. CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, it is clear that the judge handled the Motion to Dismiss and the Motion for 

Partial Distribution as a summary judgment, and as a result all the conditions under I.R.C.P. 56 

apply. The case law in the probate and the Idaho Rules governing probate make it very clear that 

the way to deal with disputes over property between heirs is in the probate court either by 

starting a probate or by requesting the reopening of a probate. An heir to an estate is not required 

to bring an independent action in equity and can seek regress under the probate code. As a 

result, the original motions brought and joined in argument require that the judge make a finding 

as to whether there was a genuine issue of fact, or that there being none he could decide the case 

as a matter of law. In this form the judge does not make a determination as to the weight of the 

testimony of the witnesses, their veracity, their character, and certainly not on a standard on what 

is more-probable-than-not. That standard is basis on which the judge makes his decision after a 

full hearing on all the issues after it has been established that there has been a genuine issue of 

material fact and resolving all doubts against the moving party. There was, at the original 
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hearing and the Motion for Reconsideration, substantial evidence that the parties revoked their 

1988 community property agreement. That being said, the admitted to fraud on the part of Bill 

McKee and the concealment of Natalie's will, and the transferring of properties governed by the 

will prior to the wills existence being known to Maureen Erickson, the sole beneficiary under the 

will, was fraud. In that event, Maureen Erickson had two years from the date of the discovery of 

the will to file the probate. Once the will was filed for probate, all statute of limitations were 

tolled until a trial on the issues resulted. Woodward v Utter states, "The regular line of 

succession to real property, both under the common law and under the statute law, is from 

ancestor to heir or devisee, and the machinery of the probate court is designated to effect such 

devolution of property as expeditiously as possible." 
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DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF 
NATALIE PARKS McKEE: 

Deceased. 

) Case No.: CV 06-40 
) 
) DECISION ON APPEAL 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

--------------------------) 
The appeal by petitioner, Maureen Erickson, of the Order of April 19, 2007 denying her 

Motion tor Partial Distribution and the Order of September 16, 2009 denying her Motion for 

Reconsideration thereof came on regularly for oral argument on May 17, 2010, the Honorable 

Fred M, Gibler, District COUlt Judge, presiding, Lloyd A. Herman appeared on behalf of 

Maureen Erickson; Charles R. Dean, Jr. appeared on behalf of respondent, Jerry McKee. 

The Court having considered the record on appeal, the briefing of the parties and the 

argument of counsel announced its fmdings and conclusions on the record. For the reasons so 

announced, the Court finds that good cause appears, now therefore, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND DECREED that the Orders challenged on appeal be 

and hereby are affimted. 

Dated: .fYl"j 18, 2 0 ( 0 {' ~ J11 /lJL--
Fred M. Gibler;mstdct Court Judge 
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; 1 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST .JUDICAL DISTRICT OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE o.F CASE NO. CV 2006-40 
NATALlEPARKS McKEE, 

MOTION FOR RECONSTDERA TION 
Deceased. 

Comes Now Maureen Erickson ("Erickson"), Personal Representative of the Estate of 

Natalie Parks McKee, pursuant to IRCP 11(a)(2)(b), moves the Court for a Motion for 

Reconsideration. This motion is made as a. result of the Decision on Appeal from the Magistrate 

Court to the District Court on May 18,2010 that affirmed the Magistrate Court's Findings of Fact 

and Conclusions of Law and Order signed on April 16,2009 and dated April 1.9,2007 that denied 

Erickson's Motion for Partial Distribution and the Order in Magistrate Court that denied her 

earlier Motion for Reconsideration dated September 16,2009. 

This Motion for Reconsideration is based upon the following facts and circumstances: 

1. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

there was not a final judgment at the Magistrate Court level in which a.n appeal could be 

taken. 

2. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of Jaw in that 

26 the Djstrict Court affirmed the Magistrate Court's decision that the recording of the 
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community property agreement vested on her death all of Natalie Parks McKee's property 

in Bill E. McKee and was therefore not part of the estate ignoring the undisputed issues of 

fact raised by appellate Erickson that there had been a mutual revocation of the community 

property agreement. 

3. The Decision on Appea.1 to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

the District Court reaffirmed a Motion to Reconsider before the Magistrate Court and stated 

that the property in question was, by Jaw, not part of the Estate of Natalie Parks McKee 

ignoring the uncontested issues of fact raised that Bill E. McKee and Natalie Parks McKee 

mutually revoked the community agreement either by mutual wills or by agreement 

4. The Decision 011 Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law 

because court held the proper parties were not before the court thereby ignoring that the 

filing of the probate and the appearance in the probate by the heirs under the will (including 

the heir who received the property by deed) does give the probate court the right to decide 

issues of fact raised as to whether the surviving spouse has title to the property deeded to 

the son because the surviving spouse and the decedent had entered into a mutual rescission 

of the community property agreement either by mutual wills or by contract 

5. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an en-or of law in that 

the court found that when there is a dispute over property in an estate between heirs, the 

propel' procedure was to bring an independent action against the heir instead of filing to 

probate the will. 

6. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court wag decided on an error of law in tbat 

t1le court maintained that the surviving grantor of the deed (or its representative) should 

bring an action to set aside the property he deeded to the heir when the issue is whether the 
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survivor had the right to deed the propelty when the mutual wills had rescinded the 

community property agreement and the will of the decedent had left it to the rightful heir, 

the appellant Erickson. 

7. The Decision on Appeal to the District COUlt was decided on an error of law in that 

the court stated the statute of limitations contained in I.e. Sec. 15-3-108 controlled and that 

the esta.te was not filed within three years of the decedent's death instead of applying I.e. 

Sec. 15-1-106 which allows heirs who have been defrauded by parties seeking to avoid or 

circumvent provisions or purposes of the probate code to seek appropriate relief by 

commencillg a proceeding within two years after the discovery of the fraud. 

8. The Decisjon on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an e1Tor of law in that 

the probate was opened on January 23, 2006, the motion to dismiss the probate was filed on 

January 5,2007, and the motion to dismiss the probate denied on April 19, 2007 with no 

appeal ever taken thereby leaving the Estate of Natalie Parks McKee still open for probate 

and, therefore, res judicata. 

These matters need to be fully addressed by the court in a hearing on this motion. 

The appellate ElicksoD requests oral argument and will file a brief within 14 days of the 

filing of this Motion for Reconsideration. 

DATED in Spokane Valley, Washington, thiS~y of ~ 2010. 
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ISB No. 6884 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICAL DISTRICT OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF CASE NO. CV 2006-40 
NATALIE PARKS McKEE, 

MEMORANDUM SUPPORTING 
Deceased. MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION 

Comes now, Maureen Erickson ("Erickson"), Personal Representative of the Estate of 

Natalie Parks McKee, submits the following memorandum supporting her Motion for 

Reconsideration. 

1. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

there was not a final judgment at the Magistrate Court level in which an appeal could be 

taken. 

Although Judge Gibler felt that there might not be a final judgment on which an appeal 

could be taken, appellant is cognitive of his reasoning and assigns error in order to discuss that 

issue on reconsideration. 

A "final judgment" is an order or judgment that ends the lawsuit, adjudicates the subject 

matter of the controversy, and represents a final determination of the rights of the parties. Spokane 

Structures, Inc. v. Equitable Investment, LLC, 148 Idaho 616, 226 P.3d 1263, 1267 (201O). It must 
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be a separate document that does not contain the trial court's reasoning or analysis (i.e., not the jury 

verdict or court's decision) and, on its face, states the relief granted or denied. [d. Whether an 

instrument is an appealable order or judgment must be determined by its content and substance and 

not by its title. [d. Merely typing "It is so ordered" at the end of a memorandum decision does not 

constitute a final judgment that can be appealed. Id. 

An appeal as a matter of right can only be taken from a final judgment. LA.R. 11(a)(l); 

Spokane Structures, Inc., 226 P.3d at 1265. Any notice of appeal taken from a memorandum 

decision is premature and is thus ineffective to vest jurisdiction. Spokane Structures, 226 P.3d at 

1268. 

In this case, the Appeal was taken from the Magistrate Court's Findings of Fact and 

Conclusions of Law and Order signed on April 16,2009 and dated April 19, 2009 denying the 

Motion for Distribution, and denying the Motion to Dismiss the Probate of the Estate of Natalie 

Parks McKee. This was a separate document for the memorandum decision, and although it did 

not contain the word "judgment", it was captioned as an order of the court. In Spokane Structures, 

226 P.3d at 1267, the court said the title is not determinative. "Whether an instrument is an 

appealable order or judgment must be determined by its content and substance, and not by its title. 

For example, a document entitled "Order" that stated, "It is hereby ordered that the complaint is 

dismissed" would constitute a judgment. It would set forth the relief to which the party was 

entitled." The Amended Motion for Reconsideration was denied and an appeal was taken of both 

orders. 

2. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

the District Court affirmed the Magistrate Court's decision that the recording of the 

community property agreement vested on her death all of Natalie Parks McKee's property in 

MEMORANDUM SUPPORTING MOTION FOR 
28 RECONSIDERATION - 2 

LLOYD A. HERMAN & ASSOCIATES, p.s. 
213 North University Rd. 

Spokane Valley, Washington 99206 
Phone (509) 922-6600 

Fax (509) 922-4720 
L1oydHerm@aoLcom 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

Bill E. McKee and was therefore not part of the estate ignoring the undisputed issues of fact 

raised by appellant Erickson that there had been a mutual revocation of the community 

property agreement. 

Appellant has provided more than sufficient evidence that raises the question as to whether 

there was a mutual agreement to rescind the community property agreement. The intention of the 

parties to terminate the community property agreement were provided in the form of evidence of a 

will of the decedent passing title of her share of the estate to Maureen Erickson. The surviving 

spouse has said repeatedly through affidavits, testimony under oath, and letters to his attorney and 

to his son that he entered into a mutual will with his spouse leaving all their property to Maureen 

Erickson. The grandson has testified under oath that he saw the grandfather's will and read it, and 

testified to the contents of the will, to wit leaving all his share of the estate to Maureen Erickson. 

All of the above factors create an ambiguity that must be resolved by testimony because an issue of 

fact has been raised and cannot be resolved by a motion to dismiss, which was treated as a 

summary judgment. 

In Herrera v Estay, 146 Idaho 674; 201 P.3d 647 (2009), the court reiterated the rules on 

summary judgment, to wit "When reviewing a ruling on a summary judgment motion, the Supreme 

Court of Idaho, employs the same standard used by the district court. Summary judgment is 

appropriate if the pleadings, deposition, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, 

show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a 

judgment as a matter of law. The Supreme Court of Idaho liberally construes all disputed facts in 

favor of the non-moving party and draws all reasonable inferences and conclusions supported by 

the record in favor of the party opposing the motion." Neither the magistrate court of the appellate 

court can weigh the facts to determine the issues. However, in most summary judgments there are 
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at least contradictory affidavits supporting the moving party's view of the facts. As pointed out in 

prior briefs, none exist in this case, and to this point no one has denied that the decedent and Bill 

McKee entered into mutual wills rescinding the community property agreement. 

3. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

the District Court reaffirmed a Motion to Reconsider before the Magistrate Court and stated 

that the property in question was, by law, not part of the Estate of Natalie Parks McKee 

ignoring the uncontested issues of fact raised that Bill E. McKee and Natalie Parks McKee 

mutually revoked the community agreement either by mutual wills or by agreement 

As pointed out above, there has been plenty of evidence demonstrating a mutual intent to 

give all of the decedent and survivors estate to Maureen Erickson. That evidence has only been 

contradicted by a pre-existing 1988 community property agreement, which the statute in Idaho has 

not provided any direction on how to rescind such an agreement. Drake, Devolution Agreements: 

Non-Probate Disposition o/Community Property in Idaho and Washington, 34 IDAHO L. REV. 

591,608-609 (1997-98). 

In Miller v Prater, 141 Idaho 208, 108 P.3d 355 (2005), the court held under "the law of 

either Washington or Idaho, the question of whether the later contract rescinded the earlier contract 

was a factual issue properly submitted to the jury. The courts of both states apply general rules of 

contract interpretation in determining the intent of contradicting parties where a later agreement 

made by them appears to be in conflict with an earlier one." The Miller v Prater court cited 

Washington authority in Higgins v. Stafford, 123 Wash. 2d 160,866 P.2d 31 (1994) for the 

interpretation of the effect of subsequently executed mutual wills on an earlier community property 

agreement. The court contended that there must be mutual intent in order for the later instrument 

to rescind the earlier one. Miller v Prater court quoted favorably the language in Higgins v 
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Stafford (ld.) and went on to say "General rules of contract interpretation are applied. If there is no 

ambiguity on the issue, it may be decided as a matter of law. However, if an inconsistency 

between the instruments creates an ambiguity, a factual inquiry is required to determine the intent 

of the parties. The Miller v Prater court stated "the analysis under Idaho is similar ..... That either 

the earlier and later instruments must be read and construed as one in order to determine the intent 

of the parties, utilizing rules of construction applying to the interpretation of a single contract." 

The intent of the decedent and the survivor to pass all of their estate to Maureen Erickson is clearly 

manifested in the decedent's will, and the survivors testimony disclosing his wish to do so, and his 

entering into a mutual will with his decedent spouse. 

4. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law because 

court held the proper parties were not before the court thereby ignoring that the filing of the 

probate and the appearance in the probate by the heirs under the will (including the heir who 

received the property by deed) does give the probate court the right to decide issues of fact 

raised as to whether the surviving spouse has title to the property deeded to the son because 

the surviving spouse and the decedent had entered into a mutual rescission of the community 

property agreement either by mutual wills or by contract. 

The Uniform Probate Code in Idaho, IC15-1-102(a) states that, "this code shall be liberally 

construed and applied to promote its underlying purposes and policies. (b) The underlying 

purposes and policies of this code are: (2) to discover and make effective the intent of the decedent 

in distribution of his property." IC 15-3-1001. Formal proceedings terminating administration-

Testator intestate - Order of general protection - The court provides the petition and requests the 

court to consider final account or compel or approve an accounting and distribution, to construe 

any will or determine heirs and adjudicate the final settlement and distribution of the estate. Under 
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Judicial Decisions the court points out under the heading of Jurisdiction of Probate, Lundy v Lundy, 

79 Idaho 185,312 P.2d 1028 (1957), which holds that "the probate court had in its jurisdiction to 

settle title to realty where question involved was whether property was community between 

decedent and administratrix or separate and to determine to whom it should descend, no strangers 

being involved in such matter but only rival claimants to heirship." 

Lundy specifically says, "As to jurisdiction, it is appellants' contention that title to real 

property was put in issue, and that the probate court lacked jurisdiction to try such issue. It is the 

general rule that where title to real property is in issue between an estate and its heirs and a third 

person, such issue must be tried in an independent action brought for that purpose in a competent 

tribunal and cannot be tried by the probate court. . ... However, this is not such a case. Here the 

issue is between the administratrix claiming as sole heir and appellants claiming they are the sole 

heirs. In probate proceedings the probate court is a court of record and has 'original jurisdiction in 

all matters of probate, settlement of estates of deceased person, and appointment of guardians'. 

... We have held that this probate jurisdiction bestowed on the probate court by the constitution is 

exclusive .... 'The foregoing authorities clearly and fully establish the proposition that the probate 

courts have exclusive original jurisdiction in the settlement of estates of deceased persons; and it is 

within the jurisdiction of those courts to determine who are the heirs of a deceased person, and who 

is entitled to succeed to the estate and their respective shares and interests therein. The decrees of 

probate courts are conclusive in such matters. A probate court, however, does not have jurisdiction 

to determine adverse claims or an adverse title to real estate, except in so far as such questions arise 

between the heirs or devisees of an estate, and are necessary to be determined in the administration 

of the estate. No such jurisdiction, however, exists in the probate court to determine and adjudicate 

adverse and conflicting claims to title to real estate as between the estate or heir thereof and third 
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parties; and such issues can only be tried in a court of competent jurisdiction, where the issue was 

to title and interest is directly and squarely made and presented to the court .... To enable the 

probate court to perform its function of determining heirship, it must be recognized as having 

jurisdiction to determine specific issues involved in that process, and arising between parties to the 

estate proceedings. Here no stranger or third party is involved. The issue is drawn between rival 

claimants to heirship. As between such parties the probate court has jurisdiction to settle all issues 

essentially involved in a determination of who are the heirs, and the distributive share or shares of 

each." 

In this case, the question is whether a community property agreement has been mutually 

rescinded resulting in the revocation of a deed to one heir instead of passing through the probate 

process to the heir intended in the will of the decedent. It is clear the probate court has jurisdiction 

in determining heirship between rival claimants to heirship. There is no stranger or third party 

involved, and therefore no independent action has to be brought either by the intended heir, 

Maureen Erickson, against the recipient heir, Jerome McKee, or by Bill McKee against Jerome 

McKee for the return of the property. 

5. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

the court found that when there is a dispute over property in an estate between heirs, the 

proper procedure was to bring an independent action against the heir instead of filing to 

probate the will. 

See argument and discussion in No.4 above. 

24 6. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

25 

26 

27 

the court maintained that the surviving grantor of the deed (or its representative) should 

bring an action to set aside the property he deeded to the heir when the issue is whether the 
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survivor had the right to deed the property when the mutual wills had rescinded the 

community property agreement and the will of the decedent had left it to the rightful heir, the 

appellant Erickson. 

See argument and discussion in No.4 above. 

7. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

the court stated the statute of limitations contained in I.C. Sec. 15-3-108 controlled and that 

the estate was not filed within three years of the decedent's death instead of applying I.C. Sec. 

15-1-106 which allows heirs who have been defrauded by parties seeking to avoid or 

circumvent provisions or purposes of the probate code to seek appropriate relief by 

commencing a proceeding within two years after the discovery of the fraud. 

The undisputed facts demonstrate that Maureen Erickson did not even discover her 

mother's will until more than 3 years after her death. The facts demonstrate that Jerome McKee 

knew the existence of the will in 2002. The undisputed facts are that her father, Bill McKee, had 

admittedly withheld the will from her so that he could control the entire estate. Bill McKee has 

admitted to committing fraud and disposing of real property he said he knew belonged to Maureen 

Erickson, and has had a consent judgment entered against him in Shoshone County for said actions. 

Said action was brought at the suggestion of Judge McFadden when he rendered his decision on 

April 11,2007. The action on the part of Bill McKee, and the participation in it by Jerome McKee 

in transferring property that the parties knew by the declared intentions of the decedent was to 

belong to Maureen Erickson, is covered specifically by the Uniform Probate Code, Title 15-1-106, 

wherein it provides that if fraud is used to circumvent the provisions of this code, any person 

injured may obtain appropriate relief by commencing within two years after the discovery any 

proceeding. This statute is especially significant since it is part of the probate code and would 
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necessarily lend one to believe probate is the property place to adjust such wrongdoings when there 

is a dispute between the heirs as to title. In The Matter of the Estate of Cahoon v Seaton, 102 Idaho 

542,633 P. 2d 607, held that this statute applied where the final accounting and distribution of an 

estate occurred in November 1975, an action in the probate was commenced in May 1976 which 

alleged fraud by the personal representative was timely filed, even though actual prosecution of the 

action did not take place until 1978, since the commencement of the action in 1976 was within the 

two year limitation period contained in this section. 

In this case, the will was not discovered by Maureen Erickson until August 17,2004, and 

was filed for probate on January 23, 2006, which was within two years of discovery and fraud. 

8. The Decision on Appeal to the District Court was decided on an error of law in that 

the probate was opened on January 23, 2006, the motion to dismiss the probate was flied on 

January 5, 2007, and the motion to dismiss the probate denied on April 19, 2007 with no 

appeal ever taken thereby leaving the Estate of Natalie Parks McKee still open for probate 

and, therefore, res judicata as to the issue as to whether there is an estate or not with no 

appeal ever taken, thereby leaving the estate open. 

See No. 7 above. 

20 DATED in Spokane Valley, Washington, this ~ay of ~ 2010. 
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LLOYD A. BI~RJlA.N & A.SSOCIA.rrl~S, P.S. 

LCoya Jl. J{erman 
Licensea in Wasliington ana [aalio 
Cliristoplier J. J{erman 

Judge McFadden 
Shoshone County District Court 
700 Bank Street, Suite 120 
Wallace, ID 83873 

Attorneys at Law 

June 8, 2010 

Re: In the Matter of the Estate of Natalie Parks McKee 
CV 2006-40 

Dear Judge McFadden: 

213 !N. Vniversity 
Spofi.gne, Wasliington 99206 

'l'efeplione (509) 922-6600 
~ (509) 922-4720 

1-800-275-8189 

JUN (5 9 2010 

Enclosed please find a final Judgment in the above captioned case. This Judgment is being 
provided as a result of Judge Gibler's cautioning that T.J.T., INC v Ulysses Mori (which does not 
have a citation at this time) may apply in this case. Enclosed is a copy of the decision for your 
convenience. 

It is not clear from the case whether your Findings of Facts and Conclusion of Law and Order 
signed on April 16, 2007 and filed on April 17, 2007, after your opinion entered on April 11, 
2007, is a final judgment that is required to be entered in a separate document before an appeal 
can be taken. 

The only order entered as a result of the Motion for Reconsideration was your Decision and 
Order on Amended Motion for Reconsideration signed on September 16, 2009, and filed on 
September 17,2009. It is not clear from the decision in T.J.T., INC v Ulysses Mori whether this 
is a final judgment representing a final determination of the rights of the parties giving the 
District Court the jurisdiction to hear an appeal. 

I am also enclosing for your convenience your Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law and 
Order, and your Decision and Order on Amended Motion for Reconsideration. A copy of this 
letter and all documents are also being sent to Mr. Dean. 

I would appreciate it if you could sign the Judgment provided so that any question as to whether 
a final judgment was entered in this case can be clarified. Once signed, it would appreciate if 
you could deliver it to the Shoshone County Clerk's office for filing. 

72.2 



Thank you for your assistance. 

LLOYD A. HERMAN 

EncI. 
p.c. Charles Dean 
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?i~.f~G'l ~:'iiHlrE 
CU~Ri\ OJ:3T. COUHT 

/sAMA·t;l~~ANSON 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 

ESTATE OF 

. NATALIE PARKS MCKEE: 

) 

) 

) 

----------- ) 

Case No. CV06-40 

DECISION AND ORDER ON AMENDED 

MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION 

Hearing on the Personal Representative's Amended Motion for Reconsideration 

took place on August 18,2009. Mr. Lloyd A. Herman, attorney, appeared ori behalf of Maureen 

Erickson, Personal Representative of the Estate of Natalie Parks McKee. Charles R. Dean, Jr., 

attorney, appeared on behalf of Jerome McKee. The matter was taken under advisement so that 

briefing, affidavits, and submitted cases could be fully reviewed. 

The Amended Motion for Reconsideration relates to a ruling on a Motion for 

Partial Distribution file stamped on April 19,2007. In Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and 

Order, the Court denied partial distribution of the subject property for the reasons announced by 

the Court and set forth in the Order. On April 30, 2007, Michael F. Peacock, attorney, filed a 

Motion for Reconsideration on behalf of the estate. Mr. Peacock did not notice the motion for 

hearing, nor did the motion contain any request for hearing. The original Motion for 

Reconsideration was served by facsimile to Mr. Branstetter, but copies were not provided to the 

Court as required by Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 7(b)(3)(F). The Amended Motion for 

Reconsideration was not filed until July 29, 2009, some 27 months after the Court denied the 

Motion for Partial Distribution. 

DECISION AND ORDER ON AMENDED 
MOTION-FOR RECONSIDERATION . 

1 



Most of the affidavits and briefing submitted in support of the Amended Motion 

for Reconsideration assert facts that the community property agreement between Bill McKee and 

Natalie Parks McKee was revoked by mutual holographic wills. There has never been produced 

any writing (including an)' purported holographic will) signed by Bill McKee. Petitioner, 

Maureen' Erickson, had plenty of time and opportunity 'to present these matters to the Court 

duri~lg the evidentiary hearing which took place on March 16; 2007 and she failed to do so. The 

property the subject of the original Motion for Partial Distribution is not as a matter of law part 

of the estate of Natalie Parks McKee. Insufficient showing has been mad.e to grant the Amended 

Motion for Reconsideration and the motion is denied. 

The Court also denies the Amended Motion for Reconsideration on grounds that it 

was not timely. The original Motion for Reconsideration was filed within the time limits set 

forth in Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 11(a)(2)(B), but that motion was not properly noticed for 

hearing by the Petitioner. Bringing the amended motion 27 months after the Court ruled and 

after the original Motion for Reconsideration was filed is unfairly prejudicial to Jerome McKee. 

DATED this tlo.-M.1 day of September, 2009. ' 

PATRICK R. MCFADDEN - 367 

DISTRICT COURT MAGISTRATE 

Certificate of Mailing . 

I hereby certify that copies of the foregoing were mailed first class, postage pre­

paid or hand delivered to the following parties on this 11- day of September, 2009. 

LLOYD A HERMAN 

Lloyd Herman & Associates, P.S. 

213 N. University Road 

Spokane Valley, W A 99206 

DECISION AND ORDER ON AMENDED 
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION 

CHARLES R. DEAN, JR. 

T'ean & Kolts 

2020 Lakewood Drive, Suite 212 

Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814 

1d111\~ b""- -\ - , 
Deputy Clerk 
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Michael K. Branstetter 
HULL & BRANSTETTER CHARTERED 
Attorneys at Law 
P.O. Box 709 
Wallace, ID 83873 
Telephone: (208) 752-1154 
Facsimile: (208) 752-0951 
ISB #2454 

stlat: (;)!FU.lAHO , 
Ctl;UNlfY' OF' St{05Ut}'NE I $$ 

"'ItEO 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
In the Matter of the Estate 

of 

NATALIE PARKS McKEE, 

Deceased. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. CV-06- 40 

FINDINGS OF FACT,. 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 
ORDER 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Pursuant to instructions from the Court, Michael K. Branstetter of Hull & 

Branstetter Chartered, attorneys, for Jerome S. McKee and Michael F. Peacock, 

attorney for Maureen Erickson, Personal Representative of the Estate, appe'ared in 

Court on April 11, 2007; Maureen Erickson was also present in Court. The Court 

" announced that it was prepared to enter its Findings of Fact, Conclusions ,of Law 

and Order in this matter and do so orally upon t~e record; Said ruling is made as a 
, ' 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER - 1 
726 



,( 

\ 

result of a hearing held on March 16, 2007 at which time the parties presented oral 

arguments on their pending motions. 

The matters pending for the Court to consider, as argued on March 16,2007, 

consist of (1) the Personal Representative's Motion For Partial Distribution of the 

Property know as an undivided one-fourth interest in and to Government Lot 2, 

Section 17, Township 49 North, Range 2 EBM, Shoshone County, ~tate of Idaho 

and commonly referred to as the River property. Jerome S .. McKee objected to 

'. . 
said Motion For Partial.Distribution and filed an OBJECTION; (2) Jerome S. 

McKee also filed a Motion to Dismiss .the Probate, and (3) Motion to Strike the 

Affidavit of Bill E. McKee dated January 26, 2007. 

The Court has considered all the pleadings filed herein, including the 

affidavits, memorandums and records. The Court's oral pronouncements in open 

. Court shall constitute the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law in this matter and 

said oral pronouncements are incorporated herein. Based therepn and good cause 

appearing IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AS FOLLOWS; 

1. Maureen Erickson's Motion for Partial Distributiqns is hereby denied, the 

property known as the River property and described as an undivided one-

fourth interest in and to Government Lot 2, Section 17, Township 49 North, 

Range 2 EBM, Shoshone County, State of Idaho, is not part of the assets of 

the Estate .of Natalie Parks McKee. Said property passed to Bill E. McKee 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS or 27W AND ORDER - 2 



. . 

pursuant. to a valid Community Property Agreement, and thereafter by deed 

from Bill E. McKee to Jerome McKee and Mina McKee; therefore, said 

property is not an asset of the Estate of Natalie Parks McKee. 

2. Jerome S. McKee's Motion to Dismiss the Probate of Estate of Natalie Parks 

McKee is hereby denied at this time provided, however, the Court has found 

the Co:tnmunity Property Agreement is valid as to the River property and 

title to the River property is not affected by the continued probate of the 

Estate of Natalie Parks McKee. There may be other issues and matters to . .. . 

consider in the probate and the Court is n<;>t prepared to dismiss the probate 

at this time. 

3. The Court finds it unnecessary to rule upon Jerome S. McKee's .Motion t·o 

Strike the Affidavit of Bill E. McKee for the reason that, even if considered 

in full, said Affidavit does not affect the foregoing Findings. of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law and Order duly entered herein for the reasons state in 

open Court. 

4. Jerome S .. McKee and Maureen Erickson, Personal Representative of the 

Estate of N~talie Parks McKee, shall each bear their own attorney fees and 

costs . 

. FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER - 3 
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«'1 
DATED this L day of April, 2007. 

WJtUUftCJcuitaeMY6~'/ -
Patrick R. McFadden, Magistrate Judge 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I caused a true and correct copy of the foregoil~to be 
served by the method indicated below and addressed to the following this> . day 
of April, 2007: . 

Michael K. Branstetter 
Hull & Branstetter Chartered 
P.O. Box 709 . 
Wallace, ID 83873 

-X- U.S. Mail 
Hand Delivered --

__ Overnight Mail 
Facsimile --

Michael F. Peacock 
Attorney at Law 
12~ McKinley Avenue 
Kellogg, ID 83873 

--A- U.S. Mail . 
Hand Delivered . --

__ Overnight Mail 
Facsimile --

CLERK OF THE DISTRICT COURT 
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STATE OF IDAHO, ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SHOSHONE, ) 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the original _____ _ 

y.~ ~S~) Q..~ ~l-q.w ~ Q~ 
~.1l ~ \ ~)~? Ct ~) on file in my office. 

DATED at Walface, Idaho, this d. day of ' ~ , ~D8 . 

PEGGY WHITE CLERK DISTRICT COURT 
First Judicial District Court 
Shoshone County, Idaho 
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NOTICE: THIS OPINION HAS NOT BEEN RELEASED FOR PUBUCATION IN THE PERMANENT LAW 
REPORTS. UNTIL RELEASED, IT IS SUBJECT TO REVISION OR WITHDRAWAL. 

Supreme Court of Idaho, 
Boise, January 2010 Term. 

T.'. T., INC., a Washington corporation, Plaintiff-Appellant:, 
v. 

Ulysses MORl, an individual, Defendant-Respondent. 

No. 35079. 
April 15, 2010. 

Background: Employer brought action against former employee for breach of non-compete 
agreement. The Fourth Judicial District Court, Ada County, Ronald J. Wilper, J., entered summary 
judgment in employee's favor, and then entered subsequent order awarding employee costs and 
attorney fees. Employer appealed. 

Holding: The Supreme Court, Burdick, J., held that it lacked jurisdiction In absence of final judgment. 

Appeal dismissed. 

West Headnotes 

ill j~ KeyCite Citing References for this Headnote 

·106 Courts 
·1061 Nature, Extent, and Exercise of Jurisdiction in General 
,····106k37 WaiVer of Objections 

106k37(2) k. Time of Making Objection. Most Cited Cases 

I.e 106 Courts 11 J(eyCite Citing References for this Headnote 
1061 Nature, Extent, and Exercise of Jurisdiction in General 

106k39 k. Determination of Questions of Jurisdiction in General. Most Cited Cases 

The question of subject matter jurisdiction may be raised by the court at any time sua sponte. 

ill iir KeyCite Citing References for this Headnote 

<;. '30 Appeal and Error 
.. 30VII Transfer of Cause 

.30VII(D) Writ of Error, Citation, or Notice 
30k428 Filing Notice and Proof of Service 

30k428(2) k. Time for Filing. Most Cited Cases 

The timely filing of a notice of appeaJ is jurlsdlctional;131 

http://web2.westlaw.comlresultidocumenttext.aspx?r1tdb=CLID _ DB58256572519265&db... 5/26/2010 
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Ul ,$ KeyCite Citing References for this Headnote 

30 Appeal and Error 
30XVI Review 

30XVI(A) Scope, Standards, and Extent, in General 
30k838 Questions Considered 

• 30k842 Review Dependent on Whether Questions Are of Law or of Fact 
30k842(1) k. In General. Most Cited Cases 

Page2of5 

Jurisdictional issues are questions of law over which the appellate court exercises free review. 

L1:l M KeyCite Citing References for this Headnote 

'. ,- -- 228 Judgment 
- 228V On Motion or Summary Proceeding 

228k187 k. Form and ReqUisites of Judgment. Most Cited Cases 

Granting motion for summary judgment Is simply a procedural step towards granting relief, and, 
thus, merely typing "It is so ordered" at the end of a memorandum decision does not constitute a 
judgment. Rules Civ.Proc., Rules 56(c), 58(a). 

ill ~ KevCite Citing References for this Headnote 

;- -228 Judgment 
228VI On Trial of Issues 

228VI(A) Rendition, Form, and Requisites in General 
._::228k215 k. Mode of Rendition. Most Cited Cases 

228 Judgment ~ KeyCite Citing References for this Headnote 
228VI On Trial of Issues 
-228VI(A) Rendition, Form, and Requisites In General 

228k219 k. Contents in General. Most Cited Cases 

Judgment must be a separate document that does not contain the trial court's legal reasoning or 
analysis. Rules Civ.Proc., Rule 58(a). 

I.§l GJ KeyCite Citing References for this Headnote 

30 Appeal and Error 
30II1 Decisions Reviewable' 

30III(F) Mode of Rendition, Form, and Entry of Judgment or Order 
30k123 k. Necessity of Formal Judgment or Order. Most Cited Cases 

Supreme Court had no jurisdiction to hear appeal from summary judgment in favor of former 
employee on ground that non-compete agreement was void and from award of attorney fees and 
costs in absence of final judgment on separate document stating relief granted or denied and 
representing final determination of rights of the parties, even though summary judgment stated "IT 
IS SO ORDERED." Rules Civ.Proc., Rules 56(c)r- 58(a). 

Appeal from the District Court of the Fourth Judicial District, State of Idaho, Ada County. Hon. Ronald 
J. Wi Iper, District Judge. 
District court order granting summary judgment, dismissed. 
Moffett, Thomas, Barrett, Rock & Fields, Chtd., Boise, for appellant. Tyler James Anderson argued. 

'13 ;)..... 
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THE COURT'S PRIOR OPINION 

BURDICK, Justice. 
*1 Appellant T.J.T., Inc. (TJT) appeals from the district court's grant of summary judgment to 

Respondent Ulysses Morl (Morl) in connection with a non-compete agreement entered into between 
the parties. TJT argues that the district court erred in finding that the Non-Competition Agreement 
was void and therefore unenforceable under California law. TlT also appeals from the district court's 
award of attornev fees and costs to Moriin the amount of $107.236.85. and the court's ce:::::: ~:' .. -;-'­
Motion for Reconsideration. Because we do not have jurisdiction to hear this case, we dismiss the 
appeal. 

.L. rA('; fUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND 
TJT filed Its Complaint on June 1, 2007, seeking Injunctive relief and imposition of a constructive 

trust, and raising claims including breach of fiduciary duty, breClch of contrClct on three scptirtitc 
grounds, breach of the impiied covenant of good faith and fair deaiing, and tortious intt!J it!J t::11(.;t! UII 

two separate grounds. Following a hearing on October 22, 2007, the district court issued an order 
denying TJT's motion for a preliminary injunction. On January 31, 2008, the district court denied TJT's 
request for partial summary judgment and granted r.10ri's motion for summary judgment In its 
entirety, holding that the Non-Competition Agreement was void as a matter of California law. The 
Order concluded: "The Court hereby GRANTS Mori's motion for summary judgment and DENIES TlT's 
motion for partial summary judgment. IT IS SO ORDERED." 

TJT appealed to this Court from that Decision and Order on March 13, 2008. On June 2, 2008, the 
court entered its Order and Judgment, awarding Morl his requested attorney fees and costs In the 
amount of $107,236.85. The Judgment referred to the January 31, 2008, order granting summary 
judgment and stated that Morl was the prevailing party. TJT filed an amended notice of appeal with 
this Court on June 23, 2008. Prior to that date, on June 16, 2008, TJT filed a Motion for 
Reconsideration, which was denied by the district court on November 21, 2008. TJT then filed its 
Second Amended Notice of Appeal with this Court on December 31,2008. 

II. ANALYSIS 
A. Standard of Review 

ill ~ill ~rn f;( "The question of subject matter jurisdiction may be raised by the Court at any 
time sua sponte." In re Quesnell Dairy, 143 Idaho 691, 693, 152 P.3d 562, 564 (2007). "The timely' 
filing of a notice of appeal is jurisdictional." In re Universe Life Ins. Co., 144 Idaho 751, 755, 171 P.3d 
242, 246 (2007). Jurisdictional issues are questions of law over which this Court exercises free. 
review. Christian v. Mason, 148 Idaho 149, ----, 219 P.3d 473, 475 (2009). 

B. lurisdiction 
In Camp v. East Fork Ditch Co., this Court defined a final judgment as "an order or judgment that 

ends the lawsuit, adjudicates the subject matter of the controversy, and represents a final 
determination of the rights of the parties. It must be a separate document that on its face states the 
relief granted or denied." 137 Idaho 850, 867, 55 P.3d 304, 321 (2002) (internal citations omitted). 
We further stated in In re Universe Life Insurance Co., that "[aJn order granting summary judgment 
does not constitute a judgment." 144 Idaho at 756, 171 P.3d at 247. In addition, Idaho Rule of Civil 
Procedure 58(a) requires: "Every judgment shall be set forth on a separate document." 

*2"ill J:'W ~ Idaho Ruie of Civil Procedure 56 (c) provides that "[tJhe judgment sought shall be 
rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions, and admissions on file, together with the affidaVits, if 
any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled 
to a judgment as a matter of law." In other words, "[tt~~gment sought is a final determination of 

http://web2.westlaw.comlresultidocumenttext.aspx?rltdb=CLID_DB58256572519265&db... 5/26/2010 
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a claim or claims for relief in the iawsuit." Spokane Structures, Inc. v. Equitable Inv., LLC, No. 
35349-2008,2010 WL 30'9004, at *3 (Idaho Jan. 28, 20'10). In Spokane Structures, this Court 
explained: 

The relief to which a party is entitled is not the granting of a motion for summary judgment. The 
Rule refers to the relief to which the party is ultimately entitled in the lawsuit, or with resoect to ('l 

claim in the lawsuit. The granting of a motion for summa!"'! iudament 15 sl!!!!J!v :: !Jr0!:~0'''I"~1 c:h::>n 

towards the party obtaining that reiier. 

Id. Because the granting of a motion for summary judgment is simply a procedural step, "merely 
typing 'It is so ordered' at the end of a memorandum decision does not constitute a judgment." Id . at 
";"4. Instead, "[tjhe judgment must be a separate document that does not contain the trial court's 
legal reasoning or analysis." Id. 

[§J I"~ In this case the district court signed an order granting summary judgment and then entered 
a judgment awarding costs and attorney fees, but no final judgment was entered that stated the relief 
granted or denied and represented a final determination of the rights of the parties. Therefore, we 
have no jurisdiction to hear the appeal. 

III. CONCLUSION 
We find that this Court does not have jurisdiction to hear the appeal as no final and appealable 

judgment was entered below; therefore, the appeal is dismissed. 

Chief Justice EISMANN and Justices J. JONES, W. JONES and HORTON concur. 

Idaho,2O'1O'. 
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LLOYD A. HERMAN 
LLOYD HERMAN & ASSOCIATES, P.S. 
213 N. University Road 
Spokane Valley, WA 99206 
(509) 922-6600 * fax (509) 922-4720 
ISB No. 6884 
Attorney for Bill E. McKee 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICAL DISTRICT OF THE 
9 STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTYOF SHOSHONE 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
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21 
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25 

26 

27 

28 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF 
NATALIE PARKS McKEE, CASE NO. CV 2006-40 

Deceased. JUDGMENT 

The Court, having heard the arguments of counsel on the original Motion by 

Personal Represenative Maureen Erickson for Partial Distribution and the original Motion 

by Jerome McKee for Dismissal of the Probate on April 11, 2007, and having entered 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law on April 16, 2007, and having heard the 

Amended Motion for Reconsideration on the above-described matters on August 18,2009, 

and viewed the evidence presented, NOW, THEREFORE, makes the following: 

ORDER 

1. THAT the Motion by Maureen Erickson, Personal Representative of the 

Estate of Natalie Parks McKee, for Partial Distribution of Property is hereby DENIED; 

2. THAT the Motion by Jerome McKee, an heir in the Estate of Natalie Parks 

McKee, to dismiss the Probate of the Estate of Natalie Parks McKee is hereby DENIED. 

3. THAT the Amended Motion for Reconsideration is hereby DENIED. 

DONE IN OPEN COURT this ___ -----'day of ______ ----'20 __ . 

~/IO/lO 
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Charles R. Dean, Jr, ISB # 5763 
Dean & Kolts 
2020 Lakewood Dr., Suite 212 
Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814 
(208) 664-7794/(208) 664-9844 FAX 

Attorney for Respondent~ Jerry McKee 

DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST ruDICIAL DISTRICT 

STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF 
NATALIE PARKS McKEE: 

Deceased. 

) Case No.: CV 06-40 
) 
) MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION OF 
) MOTION FOR RECONSIDERA nON OF 
) DECISION ON APPEAL 
) 
) 
) 

--------------------------) 
INTRODUCTION 

Maureen's motion for reconsideration of this Court's decision on appeal is flawed with 

the same legal errors she and her counsel continue to repeat in almost every losing argument they 

have presented for the past four years of this case. Since most issues have been already briefed 

ad nauseam, Jerry McKee will address only those dispositive of this motion without possible 

reply (or, rather, legitimate reply). 

ARGUMENT 

A. Orders Denying Motions For Partial Distribution Are Appealable. Maureen 

latches on to this Court's pondering at the hearing on appeal as to whether it had jurisdiction to 

hear the arguments Maureen was presenting since no fonnal judgment had been entered below. 

Maureen, however, need not have wasted several pages of her brief on that issue, since she and 

her counsel already know from prior briefmg i.n this matter that Idaho Code § 17-201(7) 

REPL Y !\.reMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION Tom ON FOR RECONSlDERA TlON - 1 . 



specifically permits appeals to be taken fi'om orders granting or denying motions for partial 

distribution. 

B. Summary Judgment Standards Are Not Applicable. Maureen continues to harp 

on summary judgments and motions to dismiss. For at least the 10th time, neither is in issue in 

this case. Jerry McKee's motion to dismiss was not granted, meaning that Judge McFadden did 

precisely what Maureen argues he should have done - denied the motion because there were 

factual issues as to whether Maureen was the victim of fraud by her father. Though Judge 

McFadden was incorrect in his ruling (see infra), he applied sununary judgment standards to 

deny the motion. 

Contrary to what Maureen keeps presenting in her briefmgs, the pleading at issue is 

instead her motion for partial distribution as to which no case law imposes a summary judgment 

standard. Even the law did, however, Judge McFadden again ruled properly since it was 

Maureen's burden on that motion, not Jerry McKee's. Since her entitlement to any interest in the 

real estate subject to that motion was disputed with the existence of the community property 

agreement, Judge McFadden was obligated by the law Maureen now argues applies to deny her 

motion. Again, she has nothing to complain about.l 

C. The Real Property Was Bill McKee's To Convey As A Matter of Law. Judge 

McFadden and this Court correctly ruled that the real property that was the subject of Maureen's 

motion for partial distribution was not a part of the estate as a matter of law. As detailed below, 

the ,statute oflimitations for probating a will found in Idaho Code § 15-3-108 is absolute (subject 

to exceptions not applicable in this case). Once the statute lapses, a will can no longer be 

probated and the estate passes by intestacy. Whether or not the Community Property Agreement 

was rescinded (clearly a recent fabrication by Maureen), Natalie McKee's purported will could 

I Maureen's brief is replete with claims that her newly concocted claims about a mutual rescission of the 
Community Property Agreement are not in dispute is so patently false she may as welJ be advocating for the 

739 
REPLY MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR RECONSIDERA 1'1 ON - 2 



not be probated after the third anniversary of her death (Le. 1997). Under the laws of intestacy, 

her interest in that property thus passed to her husband pursuant to Idaho Code § 15-2-1 02(b). 

While he may have been subject to an action for fraud (if anything Maureen claims is remotely 

true (see, infra»)~ the property was stilI his and not part of his wife's estate either at the time of 

her original petition for infonnal probate or her motion for partial distribution. 

D. Maureen Falsely Claims Only Heirs Are Involved In This Dispute. Maureen 

correctly recites that a probate court has jurisdiction in Idaho to determine disputes among heirs 

when no strangers are involved. She correctly reports that a probate court has no authority to 

resolve such disputes when non-heirs re involved. However, she then falsely reports that "Here 

no stranger ofthird party is involved" (See Maureen's Brief, pg. 7). 

Maureen and her counsel know full well that the rights of a stranger, a non-heir are 

involved. Nina McKee, Jerry McKee's wife, owns half of the real property at issue. Her interest 

is not just a community interest; her name is on the deed from Bill McKee Maureen challenges. 

Nina McKee is not an heir as defined in Idaho Code S 15-1-201 (21). The probate court 

thus did not have jurisdiction to adjudicate her interest. 

E. Maureen's Claim Is Barred By The Statute of Limitations. Maureen again misses 

the point as to the Statute of Limitations. Idaho Code § 15-3·108 imposes an absolute 3-year 

time limit on probating a will (subject to a few specifically listed exceptions, none of which are 

applicable to this case). Idaho Code § 15-1-106 does not extend the time to probate a will as 

Maureen asserts. Instead, by its precise terms, § 15- 1-106 gives a party damaged by fraud the 

right to initiate action to "obtain appropriate relief against the perpetrator of the fraud or 

restitution from any person ... benefiting from the fraud" within 2 years of the date the fraud is 

discovered. 

existence of the Easter Bunny. A simple review of all Jerry McKee's opposition to Maureen's various motions 
reveals her fairytaJes are highly contested. 

'~ .. ' .~n;.n 'ff (,'!. >\] 
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Seeking an informal appointment as the personal representative of an estate (especially 

after the time to do so has expired to do so) is clearly not an action by the "person injured" nor 

an action seeking relief based on the fraud.2 If she was injured by her father's purported fraud, 

Maureen should have filed an action against him or sought restitution from Jerry McKee and his 

wife by August of2006 (2 years after her admitted discovery). Maureen did not do so. She 

waited until April of 2007 to file a motion for partial distribution of an asset that was no longer 

part of the estate in a probate that was time-barred and which involved claims by strangers to the 

estate. Even if that action could, in the abstract,. be considered an action for "appropriate relief' 

it was itself time-barred tmder § 15-1-106 and brought in a probate proceeding that should have 

been dismissed under § 15-3-108 and presented to a court that did not have jurisdiction to resolve 

conflicting claims by non-heirs. 

Dated: June 2..(, 2010 Dean & Kolts 

By ____________ ~==~~~~ __ --

2 fllThe Matter o/the Estate o/Cahoon v. Seaton, 102 Idaho 542 (1981) has no application to the facts of this case. 
In Cahoon, the persons "injured" by the personal representative's fraud filed a motion to set aside orders they 
contended were secured by fraud. They filed their motion within 2 years oftbe date of discovery oftne fraud and 
against the person responsible. The Supreme Court held that setting such a motion was both timely and the proper 
procedure to obtain "appropriate relief'. Unlike Maureen's motion, the probate in Cahoon was timely, the motion 
was timely and the court had jurisdiction to grant the relief requested. 

·741 
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LLOYD A. HERMAN 
LLOYD HERMAN & ASSOCIATES, P.S. 
213 N. University Road 
Spokane Valley, WA 99206 
(509) 922-6600 * fax (509) 922-4720 
ISB No. 6884 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICAL DISTRICT OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTYOF SHOSHONE 

IN THE :MATTER OF THE EST A TE 

OF NATALIE PARKS McKEE 

Deceased. 

CASE NO. CV 2006-40 

REPL Y TO MEMORANDUM IN 
OPPOSITION OF MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION OF DECISION 
ON APPEAL 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Comes Now Maureen Erickson, Personal Representative of the Estate of Natalie 

Parks McKee pursuant to IRCP 11(a)(2)(b), anel responds to Jerome McKee's 

Memorandum in Opposition to the Motion for Reconsideration of Decision on Appeal.. 

Il. ARGUMENT 

A. Qrders Denying Motions For Partial I2istrt1?utj.Q.!J._..e.re...t\ppealable. 

Appellant Maureen Erickson agrees that Idaho Code § 17-201 (7) permits appeals frOIIl. 

22 judgments or orders that either allow or refuses to allow the distribution of an estate or 

23 any part thereof. The appellant was cOllcemed that the courts discussion ofT.J.T., Inc. v 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Ulysses Mori, concerned the form. of the order, not whether all order had been granted. 

Appellant attempted to clarify the intent of the order and make it clear. that it was a final 

order by proposing a separate document entitled "Judgme11t" that clearly met the 

requirements of the fonn of the order set out in T.J.T., Inc. v. Ulysses Mori. Magistrate 

court declined to sign this document since matters are still pending in district court, al1d 
REPLY TO MEMORAN.DUM IN OPPOSITION J..loyd A. Hennon & Associates 
OF MOTION FORRECONSIDERATrON 213 N. University Road 
OF DECTSION ON APPEAL - 1 743 Spokane Valley, WA 99206 

Ph. (509) 922·6600 
Fox (509) 922-4720 
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also required that opposing counsel have no objection.. (See Exhibit 1.) AppeJlant still 

believes that the Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law al1d Order signed on April 16, 

2009 and dated April 19, 2009 denying the Motion for Distribution, and denying the 

Motion to Dismiss the Probate of Natalie Parks McKee meet the requirements ofT.J.T. 

Inc. v Ulysses Mori. The document was a separate document from the memorandum 

decision, and although it did not contain the word "judgm.ent", it was captiol1ed as au 

order of tho court. Spokane Structures, 226 P.3d at 1267, states that the title is not 

determinative and that an order that states the motion or complaint was dismissed would 

constitute judgmel1t, and therefore set forth the relief to which the party was entitled. 

Appellant believes that since the will is still admitted for probate, the magistrate COUlt 

stIll has jurisdiction to enter fmal orders that would comply with T.J. T., Inc. v Ulysses 

Mori, but the magistrate court has declined. 

B. Summary Judgm.ent Standards At·e,.N.ot ~ruicable. Jeny McKee 

continues to argue that the magistrate court was not bound by Rule 56 when he made his 

decision. Jerry McKee adl11its that the judge applied summary judgment standards to 

deny the motion. The m:gwnent of appellant Maureen Erickson is that ifhe applied 

summary judgment standards, which he should have and did, he had to decide the motion 

based upon the requirements of Rule 56. The court wa.s bound to follow the requirements 

17 that "When reviewing a ruling 011 summary judgment motion, the Supreme COll).'t of 

. Idaho, employs the same standard used by the district court. Summary judgment is 
18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

appropriate if the pleadings, deposition, an,d admissions on file. together with the 

affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the 

movitlg party is entitled to ajudgroent as a matter oflaw." As a result the court liberally 

construes all disputed facts in favor of the non-moving party and draws all reasonable 

inferences and conclusions supported by the record in favor of the party opposing the 

motion. Appellants point of contention is that there was more than enough evidence 

submitted by form of affidavit that raised an issue of fact, which the court ignored in 

fmding as a matter of law the community property agreement ruled. 

Contrary to counsel for Jerry McKee's argument, it was not the burden of the 

non-moving party; it was the burden of the moving party to establish by its motion that 
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there were no issues of fact. The record is replete with facts that demonstrated a m.utual 

intent to rescind the con1l11W1ity property agreement, and therefore a motion to dismiss 

could not be granted as a matter of law. Nor. could the community property agreement be 

found as a matter of law to be enforceable. 

c. The Rel!l Eroperty Was Bill McKee's To Convey As A Matter of Law. His 

right to cOllvey is subject to acquiring the property without fraud. Bill McKee has 

admitted to this court and COUlts in Washington that be concealed. not ol11.y his wife's will 

from the personal representative, but also his own will. In addition, Bill McKee has 

admitted that there existed an agreement between himself and the descendent, his wife, .to 

leave all oftheir property to Maureen Erickson. All action alleging fraud for disposi.ng of 

property that belonged to Maureen Erickson was brought ill the state ofWashlngton, and 

was settled and a Judgment entered based Up011 that admitted fraud. That judgment has 

been recorded. in Shoshone County. Pm1 of the propelty that was involved in the 

fraudulent conceahnent was transferred to Jerry McKee and resulted In a fraudulent 

collveyal1ce. 

I.C. § 15-3-1006 - Limitations on actions and proceedings against distributes 

specifically states tha.t, "This section does not bar an action to recover property or value 

received as the result of fraud." It is clear that the probate code has no statute of 

limitations in attempts to recover property that is received as a result offraud. This 

section would be even broader tl1an probate cod.e 15-1-1. 06, which extended the time for 

commencing actio11s to recover property where fraud is used to avoid or cirCl.lmvent the 

probate code to two years after the discovery of the fraud. Thus, the limitation in I.e. § 

15-3-108 is not absolute when it cOlnes to fraud and is even extended beyond I.e. § 15-3-

108 by I.e. § 15-3-1006 to be unl1mited whcn fraud is involved. The whole point of the 

Un.iform Probate Code jn the fraud ar,ea, and adopted. by Idaho, is to allow a procedure by 

wh.ich personal representatives can seek property that has beel1 frauduleJ.ltly transferred 

before an esta.te is pl'obated, left out of the estate, or. not probated as part of the estate. If: 

also allows heirs the same right. The code emphasis eliminating statute of limitations 

when fraud is involved is given further endorsement in LC. § 15-3-1005, wherein it 

states, "The rights thus barred do not include right., to recover from a personal 
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representative for :fi:aud, misrepresentation, or inadequate disclosure relating to the 

settlement of the descendents estate." Previously appeUant has cited for authority for its 

position Cahoon v. Seaton, which is extrem.ely jnfonnative when it comes to :fi:aud in 

application of the Ul1iform Probate Code. In Cahoon, suit was brougbt by means of not 

an independent civil action, but by means of petitioning the magistrate court to reopen an 

estate based upon fraud of the personal representative. The court dealt with the 

applicati.on ofLC. § 15-1-106, where fraud had been comr.ni:tted and specifically 

authorized proceedings ill pl'obate to reverse the fraud committed by filing an action. in 

the probate, not an independent civil action. In Cahoon the fact that there was a delay to 

prosecute the probate action by two years after filillg the reO,pening of the probate, the 

court allowed the action. to proceed relating back to the date of the reopening of the 

probate, n.ot when the heirs proceeded to renew their active concern two years later. The 

court concluded that the action for relief from the alleged fraud was commenced when 

the respondents petitioned the magistrate court. The court went on to say that the 

commencement of the action in probate thus comes within the period established by I.C. 

§ 15w l-l06. 

I.e. § 55-909 - Title of purchaser not impaired also deals with. the question of 

fraud. in passing of title. That statute says tllat a purchaser who pays valuable 

consideration for property, which is not the case in this transfer because there was no 

con.sideration paid, the grantee's title is impaired if fraud was in.volved rendering void the 

title of the grantor. 

D. Maureen falselY- Claims Onl.}' Heirs Are Involved I.n TIllS Disp1.1te. 

Counsel for Jerry McKee maintains that since Jerry McKee's wife is a stranger and is 011 

the title to the property, that appellant Mameen Erickson is required to file an 

ind.ependent action outside the probate to determine her rights to the property in question. 

Appellant Matu'een Erickson contends that she is the rightful heir to the property that was 

fraudulently transferred by the descendent spouse knowing the exjstence of his own and 

the deced.ents will which mutually rescinded the community property agreement. Filiug 

the will for pr.obate and requesting a partial distribution places the question of that 

fraudulent transfer before the probate court. If the probate court would have ruled that 
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the community property ~.greement is not, as a matter oflaw, controlling and held a 

hearing to determine whether the community property agreement was mutually 

rescinded, and ultimately decided that the COmnllliuty property agreement was rescinded, 

then the transfers would be set aside by the l11agistrate court and the pro.perty in question 

becomes an asset of the estate. At that point Jerry McKee's wife is required by I.e. § 15" 

3-404 to fi.l.e a written objection to the probate. and was required by statute to file an 

objection when notice that the will had been filed for probate and a motion for partial 

distribution was made. Black's Law Dictionary defi.nes "stranger" as "one who is not 

paliy to a given transaction or someone other than the party or party's employee, agent, 

tenant or immediate family member." Black's Law Dictionary further described 

immediate family as lea person' s immediate family including spou.ses of children and 

siblillgs." 

Furthennore, I.C, § 15-3-106 provides. "The court may herein determine any 

other controversy conceming a succession or to which all estate, through a personal 

representative, may be a party. Persons notified are bound though less than, aU interested. 

persons may have been given notice." The comment on the code provides that "The 

cowt ha~ COl1CUl1'ent jlU1sdiction of any other actio11 or proceeding concerning a 

succession or to which all estate, through a personal representative, may be a party, 

including actions to determine title to property, alleged to belong to the estate ...... This is 

the very position that Jerry McKee's counsel took wh.en he argued on page 20 of the 

transcript of Oral Arguments on Appeal, ... "Idaho adopted the Uniform Probate Code in 

1971. And it goes on to say that the Uniform Probate Code gave the probate court wide 

rallge in powers to determine contested matters, such as those involved iu the case. And 

he went on to say that the upshot is that both district judges and magistrate judges have 

jurisdiction to entertain actions of the type that was involved in that which was between 

third parties which would have resolved title to some issue." (See Exhibit 2.) 

Ill. CONCLUSION, 

The appellant respectfully requests the court reconsider its decision finding that 

the community property agreement, as a matter oflaw, controls, and allow the hearing Oll 
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the issue of mutual recision oftlle c011lmunity property agreement that was raised by all 

the unconverted fact~ provided by affidavit in the hearing. 

Dated this --='--_ & Of~ __ 2010. 

Attorney for Maureen Erickson 
Personal Representative, 
Estate ofNa.taHe Parks McKee 

REPLY SUPPORTING MOTION FOR R.ECONSIDERA nON 
OF DECISION ON APPEAL· 6 

748 

Lloyd A. Hennan & Associates 
213 N. University Road 

Spokane Valley, WA 99206 
Ph. (509) 922·6600 
Fax (509) 922·4720 



LLUYV Ht:.f'<MAN 

exhibit I 

2 

3 

LLOYD A. HERMAN 
4 LLOYD HERMAN & ASSOCIATES, P.S. 
5 21.3 N. University Road 

SpoJ<ane Valley, WA 99206 
6 (509) 922-6600 * fax (509) 922 .. 4720 

JSB No. 6884 
7 Attorney for Bill E. McKee 

t-'AGt:. 11/13 

s';-::~~r:: OF ;J;\,i,O 
Cell':-I-'" u'F Cj.lf",("',P.'I\'C /','(' 

... I I ,,; fU" .. '" .llt,Co./ ... 1",1 

F'lt r:f'; 

lOiD,Jlm 10 PI1 I: lr.8 

IN TIlE DISTRICT COURT OF THE F1RST JUDICAL DISTRICT OF THE 
9 STATE OF IDAHO, IN AN.D FOR THE COUNTYOF SHOSHONE 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTAT.E OF 
NATALIE PARKS McKEE, 

Deceased. 

CASE NO. CV 2006-40 

JUDGMENT 

RECEIVED 

JUN 11 2010 

BY. LLOYD A. HERMAN' 

The Court, having hea.rd the'arguments of counsel on the original Motion by 

Person.al Represenative Maureep Erickson for. Partial Distribution and the original Motion 

by Jerome McKee for Dismi.ssal of the Probate on AprU 11, 2007~ and. having entered 

Findings of Fact al,1d Conclusions of Law on April 16,2007, and having heard the 

Amended Motion for Reconsideration on the above-described matters on August 18,2009, 

and viewed the evidence presented, NOW, THEREFORE, makes the followjng: 

ORDER 

1. THAT the Motion by Maureen Erickson, Persona.l Representative of the 

Estate of Natalie Parks McKee, for Partial DistIibutiOll of Property is hereby DENIED; 

2. THAT the Motion by Jerome McKee, an JleiX in the Estate of Natalie Parks 

McKee, to dismiss the Probate of the Estate of NataHe Parks McKee is hereby DENIED. 

3. THAT the Amended Motion for Reconsideration is hereby DENIED. 

DONE IN OPEN COURT this ____ day of _____ ~ 20 __ . 
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19 

'f my brief, In you-have-got-to-be-klddlng-me categorIes to 

2 listen to her son say he saw It and read It and do It. 

3 But In any event, It -. none of that changes the fact that 

4 If Judge McFadden had before hIm contested Issues, he dId 

5 what he was supposed to do, and that Is deny a motIon for 

G partIal dIstrIbution. And nothIng In the motIon for 

7 reconsIderation changes that fact. 

a ,On() other thing I wanted to point out Is 

9 throughout several places durIng the reply brief and, I 

10 thInk, partIally In their openIng brier, Maureen argues 

11 about the case of Woodward (phonetIc) versus Utter 

12 (phonetic). It Is a 1915 case that predates by 55 years 

13 the UnIform Probate Code. And In that case, whIch Is 

14 dIstinguishable on Its facts because the probate court 

15 there had an asset that they admllted was an asset of the 

16 estate when the probate was filed. It was a ranch, the 

17 benefiCiary of·- the sale beneficIary, hIs elderly mother 

18 deeded that property to a thIrd party and then dIed beFore 

19 the order of dIstrIbution occurred. And some of her other 

20 children contested that deed claIming she was Incompetent. 

21 The probate court afflrrnad the ValidIty of the deed and 

22 saId If you want to fight about It, go do It In district 

23 court. The probate court says you do not have 

24 jurisdiction to resolve title Issue. But that was what 

25 the law was In 1916. 

21 

1 than a decade, should have dIstributed a quarter Interest 

2 In the River Property to MBur~en and let the parties fight 

3 It out In dIstrIct court, that's not what the UnIform 

4 Probate Code says, and the case law that they are relying 

5 on Is outdated and InconsIstent with the UnIform Probate 

e Code. 

7 The thrust of It, although, Is 1:0 get back, no 

8 matter •• I mean, what we are lookIng at Is tile procedure 

9 that Maureen employed to try to get something from her 

10 brother Is barred by the statute of limitations. It Is 

11 not the appropriate way to do II:, because It wasn't an 

12 adversarlal proceeding. And It Is not something that, 

13 because of the procedural asp~ct of It, Judge McFadden was 

14 In any way wrong In decidIng that you haven't met your 

15 burden so, therefore, I am not going to grant the motion. 

16' Thank you,your Honor. 

17 THe COURT: Thank you. Mr. Herman. 

1B MR. HERMAN: Your Honor, I would like to point 

19 out that this motIon wIth lacl<: of -- statute of Jlmltat/on 

20 was argued once before by Mr. Dean In his motion to 

21 dIsmIss thiS appeal, and you ruled against him on that 

22 'motIon. 

23 MR. DEAN: I'll object to that, your Honor. That 

24 Is <I mIsstatement. You saId you don't have to reach It. 

25 THE COURT: I don't recall that decIsion. 

Il\I THE MAlTeR OF DECEASED, 

ORAL ARGUMENTS ON APPEAl 

20 
1 What Is overlOOked Is the case that Mr. Herman 

2 just cfted, and that Is the estate of Miller versus Prater 

3 -- excuse me, Miller VI:. Prater. And In that case the 

4 supreme court makes clear that Woodward Versus Utter Is 

6 obvIously no longer good law. They were dealing with _. ' 

6 thIs was a ease In dIstrIct court. But one of the partlcs 

7 was arguing that the 'distrIct court didn't have 

8 JurIsdIction to resolve an Issue with respect to the 

9 probate - excuse me, a contract to -- a contract to make 

10 a will, and the other party was arguing that the probate . 

11 court dId not have jurIsdIction. And the supreme court In 

12 response to the one who said that the probate court does 

13 not have jUrisdIctIon said Miller -- and that's who the 

14 party was. What Miller overlooks Is that Idaho adopted 

1S the Uniform Probate Code In 1971. And It goes on to say 

16 that the UnIform Probate Code gave the probate court wIde 

17 range In powers to determine contested matters, such as 

18 those Involved In the cese. And went on to say that the 

19 upshot Is that both dIstrict judges and magIstrate Judges 

20 h,ave jurIsdiction to entertain actions 0' the type that 

21 was Involved In that whIch wa$ between thIrd partIes which 

22 would have resolved title to some Issue. 

23 So the case law tha~ they are relying upon to say 

24 that Judge McFadden should have just, even though the 

26 hadn't been rt of the estate for decades, more 

22 

1 I thInk I saId I'd make a procedural deciSIon to not bar 

2 ' you from makIng the arguments you presented with respect, 

3 to the orIginal petitIon, request for partial 

4 distributIon. 

5 MR. HERMAN: Well, your Honor, the statute 

6 clearly gives a party a right to bring an action withIn 

7 two years to resolVe th~ Issue of fraud and If fraud has 

8 occurred In the handling of the estate or fraud has 

9 occurred preVentIng the estate to be beIng brought. And 

10 It Is clearly the Intent here when the estate Was ~Ied, 

11 It was filed during negotiatIons over tryIng to get the 

12 property returned. That went on for months or years. It 

13 was flied to protect the statute from running. Tllen a 

14 later motion for dIstribUtion was brought when an 

15 agreement couldn't be made. 

16 So, the filing of the probate was med wIthin 

17 two years of dIscovery of the will. The probate Is the 

18 proper place to bring the Issue to the court and for 

19 decisIon. And If you 1001<: at In calhoun's Estate 102 

20 Washington 54}., 'we cIted It In our prior brIef when wf! had 

21 thIs same argument over wllst was the right plac~,to brIng 

22 the motion, tile Idaho Supreme Court found that vIolations 

and fraud In the case was suffICient to JustIfy openIng 

the probate. And t"~ probate It was the openIng the 

25 estate. And tHe proper form for those 
CV-06-tO P;;jQe 19 to of33 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

I CASE NO. CV-06-40 
IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF I 
NATALIE PARKS McKEE, Deceased. I ORDER DENYING MOTION 

I FOR RECONSIDERATION 

Maureen Erickson has moved for reconsideration of the court's decision 

on appeal, affirming the decision of the magistrate court. Procedurally, there is 

no rule allowing a "motion for reconsideration" of a decision of a district court 

sitting in an appellate capacity. Rule 83(x) of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure 

provides that "[a]ny appellate procedure not specified or covered by these rules 

shall be in accordance with the appropriate rule of the I.R.C.P. or the I.A.R. to the 

extent the same is not contrary to this Rule 83." 

IAR 42 allows for filing a petition for rehearing, and pursuant to the court's 

directive in Ustick v. Ustick, 104 Idaho 215, 657 P.2d 1083 (Ct.App.1983) 

Erickson's motion will be treated as one for reconsideration. 

752 
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The court has reviewed the arguments submitted in support of the motion 

for reconsideration, and hereby denies the motion for reconsideration. 

The case is remanded to magistrate division. 
,-tk 

DATED this ~ day of August, 2010. 

frJ~~ 
FROM. GIBL~istrict Judge 

1 hereby certify a true and correct copy of the foregoing was mailed, postage 
prepaid, this 50 day of August, 2010, to the following: 

Lloyd A. Herman, 
Lloyd Herman & Associates, P.S. 
213 N. University Rd. 
Spokane Valley, WA 99206 

Charles Dean 
Dean & Kolts 
1110 W. Park Place, Ste. 212 
Coeur d'Alene, 1083814 

PEGGY WHITE, Clerk of Court 

BY:~~ 
Deputy Clerk 
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STATE OF IDAHO 
COUNTY OF SHOSHONE/SS 

FILED 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHO 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
ESTATE OF NATALIE PARKS 
McKEE, Deceased. 

) 
) CASE NO. CV-06-40 
) 
) CLERK'S REMITTITUR 
) 
) (Idaho Appellate Rule 38) 

-------------------) 

TO: The Honorable Patrick McFadden, Judge of the Magistrate Division: 

Notice is hereby given, pursuant to Idaho Appellate Rule 38, that the 

opinion deciding the appeal in the above-entitled matter has become final. 

Notice is further given that you shall forthwith comply with the directive 

of the opinion. 

Dated this ;2 & day of August, 2010. 

C~n;mS~h 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was sent this 
cf2 (/ 'i:!:' day of C2z...A..~· , ~ltt2610, as follows: 

LLOYD A. HERMAN 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 
213 N UNIVERSITY ROAD 
SPOKANE WA 99206 

CHARLES DEAN 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 
1110 WEST PARK PLACE STE 212 
COEUR 0 ALENE 10 83814 

Honorable Patrick McFadden, Magistrate Judge 

Fax: 208-245-3046 BY:~1U.L' QL,-v?-t.~.J 
1/ 

CLERK'S REMITTITUR -1- 754 

, Deputy Clerk 



STA F IDAHO 
COUNTY Of SHOSHmJE/SS 

FILED # i..J 11 I 
1 LLOYD A. HERMAN 2010 SEP Ilf PM 2: 22 
2 LLOYD HERMAN & ASSOCIATES, P.S. 

213 N. University Road 
PEGGY WHITE 

8YC~~~~~ 3 Spokane Valley, WA 99206 
O'EPUT (509) 922-6600 * fax (509) 922-4720 

4 lIoydhenn@aol.com 
5 ISB No. 6884 

6 

7 

8 

9 

l() 

11 

12 

13 

14-

15 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICAL DISTRICT OF THE 
STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE 

OF NATALIE PARKS McKEE 

Deceased. 

CASE NO. CV 2006-40 

NOTICE OF APPEAL 

TO: RESPONDENT, JEROME S. MCKEE, AND THE PARTY'S ATTORNEY, 

16 CHARLES DEAN, 1110 WEST PARK PLACE, SUITE 212, COUER D'ALANE, 

17 IDAHO, AND THE CLERK OF THE ABOVE ENTITLED COURT, SHOSHONE 

18 COUNTY COURTHOUSE, WALLACE, IDAHO. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24-

25 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 

1. The personal repesentative of above-named Estate of Natalie Parks McKee, 

Maureen Erickson, appeals against the above-named respondent, Jerome S. McKee, to 

the Idaho Supreme Court from the Decision on Appeal entered in the above entitled 

action on May 18, 2010, and the Order Denying Motion for Reconsideration entered in 

the above entitled action on August 5,2010, by Judge Fred M. Gibler in the First Judicial 

District of the State of Idaho, in and for the County of Shoshone. 

26 2. That the party has the right to appeal to the Idaho Supreme Court, and the 

27 

28 

judgments or orders described in paragraph 1 are appealable orders under and pursuant to 

Rule II(a)(1) and (2) and Rule II(b) I.A.R. 
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3. A preliminary statement of the issues on appeal which the appellant then intends 

to assert in appeal; provided, any such list of issues on appeal shall not prevent the 

appellant other issues on appeal. 

The District Court erred in upholding the Magistrate Court's decision as follows: 

(1) Did the Magistrate Court's err and abuse its discretion when it made its 

decision during the March 16, 2007 hearing for partial distribution of the property in 

question, the motion to dismiss the probate, and the motion to strike the Affidavit of Bill 

McKee (surviving spouse) when the Magistrate Court, prior to ruling on all the 

motions-including the motion to strike-failed to determine the threshold question of 

admissibility of the evidence in the form of Affidavit of Bill McKee which demonstrated 

the mutual intent of the parties to revoke the community property agreement and 

furthermore, when entering the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, found that it 

was unnecessary to rule upon Jerome S. McKee's Motion to Strike the Affidavit of Bill 

E. McKee. 

(2) Did the Magistrate Court err and abuse its discretion when, on September 

16,2009, it rendered its decision on the Amended Motion for Reconsideration by either 

not taking or taking into account the Affidavit of Bill McKee without ruling on its 

admissibility during the hearing on the Motion to Dismiss. 

(3) Did the Magistrate Court err when it contradicted itself in its decision on 

the Amended Motion for Reconsideration when the court described the original March 

16,2007 hearing as an evidentiary hearing when in fact the judge signed Findings of 

Court and Conclusions of Law reciting that it was unnecessary to rule upon the Motion to 

Strike the Affidavit of Bill McKee. 

(4) Did the Magistrate Court err and abuse its discretion when it stated that 

there has never been produced any writing by Bill McKee that he drafted a mutual 

holographic will. 

(5) Did the Magistrate Court err when it weighed the evidence before it during 

the Motion for Reconsideration of the Motion to Dismiss (the Motion to Dismiss being 

the equivalent of a Motion for Summary Judgment). 
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(6) Did the Magistrate Court err when it found there were no writings 

submitted signed by Bill McKee that proved the intent to mutually revoke the community 

property agreement. 

(7) Did the Magistrate Court err when it found as a matter of law that the 

community property agreement was controlling despite there being substantial issues of 

fact raised by affidavits and testimony as to the mutual intent of the parties to revoke the 

community property agreement by the subsequent execution of mutual wills. 

(8) Did the Magistrate Court err when it failed to recognize the issue of fact of 

the inconsistency between the community property agreement and the subsequent will of 

the decedent along with failing to consider the Affidavit of Bill McKee asserting the 

mutual intent of the parties to revoke their community property agreement. 

(9) Did the Magistrate Court err in upholding the validity of the community 

property agreement between Bill McKee and Natalie Parks McKee that entered into on 

July 11, 1988, and basing that holding on the following facts: finding that the 

holographic will executed by Natalie Parks McKee was insufficient to revoke the 

community property agreement and any action of Bill McKee to assent or agree to the 

rescission of the community property agreement was insufficient as a matter of law. 

(10) Did the Magistrate Court error in its finding that the community property 

agreement between Bill McKee and Natalie Parks McKee was not revoked by mutual 

holographic wills of the above named parties on the grounds that the will of Bill McKee 

was never produced even though Bill McKee testified under oath that he and his wife 

signed mutual holographic wills oflike intent. 

(11) Did the Magistrate Court commit further error by placing the burden on 

Maureen Erickson of having to produce Bill McKee's holographic will at the March 16, 

2007 hearing, when the sworn testimony at the Motion for Reconsideration indicated she 

nor her lawyer were aware of the existence of the will at the time the original Motion for 

Partial Distribution was heard, and it was new evidence brought to the Court at the time 

of the hearing on the Amended Motion for Reconsideration. 
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(12) Did the Magistrate Court error when it ignored the new evidence sworn 

testimony of the existence of the will by Dirk Erickson, 1 stLt, USMC, who saw the will 

in his grandfather's safety deposit box on August 17, 2004. 

(13) Did the Magistrate Court further error when the Court ignored the 

testimony of Bill McKee that he had done a mutual holographic will as so indicated in his 

sworn testimony before the same Court in a prior hearing, and as indicated in letters to 

Michael Peacock, attorney for the estate, and in letters to Jerome McKee who was the last 

known person, along with Bill McKee, to have access to the safety deposit box where the 

mutual holographic will of Bill McKee was stored. 

(14) Did the Magistrate Court error in failing to require a full hearing involving 

testimony of all parties to this will contest, which would have allowed the proponents of 

the mutual holographic wills to prove as a matter of law the intent of Bill McKee and 

Natalie Parks McKee to make mutual wills rescinding their community property 

agreement. 

(15) Did the Magistrate Court error in failing to require a full hearing because 

the existence of Natalie Parks McKee's will and the testimony of Bill McKee agreeing to 

the revocation of the community property agreement raised an ambiguity or an issue of 

fact as to the mutual intent of Bill McKee and Natalie Parks McKee. At such a hearing 

the opposing parties would have had the burden of establishing lack of testamentary 

intent to cancel the community property agreement. 

(16) Did the Magistrate Court error in ruling the Motion for Reconsideration 

was not set for hearing timely by moving party, and therefore to bring that motion on 27 

months later was unfairly prejudicial to Jerome McKee when no prejudice has occurred, 

no evidence of prejudice was offered, and no claim of prejudice was made, especially in 

light of Rule 7(d)(3)(D) which allows the Court to deny such motion when it's been filed 

without a brief. 

(17) Did the Magistrate Court error in failing to consider the newly discovered 

evidence and judgments offraud against Bill McKee for hiding, with Jerome McKee's 

help, the will of Natalie Parks McKee from appellant resulting in preventing the appellant 

from inheriting from her mother in accordance with the will. 
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4. No order has been entered sealing all or any portion of the record. 

S. (a) Is a reporter's transcript requested? Yes 

(b) The appellant requests the preparation of the standard transcript according 

to Rule 2S(c)(S) and (6) LA.R. 

6. The Appellant requests the following documents be included in the clerk's papers 

in addition to those automatically incuded under Rule 28 LA.R: Motion for Partial 

Distribution, Motion to Dismiss, and Motion to Strike Testimony; all briefs by all the 

parties submitted in support of or opposing the Motion for Partial Distribution, the 

Motion to Dismiss, and the Motion to Strike Testimony; all affidavits submit in support 

of or opposing the Motion for Partial Distribution, the Motion to Dismiss, and the Motion 

to Strike Testimony; all briefs and affidavits submitted in support of or opposing the 

Motion for Reconsideration before the Magistrate Court, Judge McFadden; all 

memoranda and opinions of Judge McFadden; all findings of fact and conclusions of law 

of Judge McFadden; all briefs and affidavits on appeal from Magistrate Court to District 

Court; all motions to dismiss the appeal and responses thereto including affidavits and 

briefs; all memoranda and opinions on the motion to dismiss the appeal; all memoranda 

and opinions of the District Court rendered on appeal from the Magistrate Court; all 

briefs and affidavits in support of and opposing the Motion for Reconsideration filed in 

District Court; all memoranda and opinions rendered by the District Court on the Motion 

for Reconsideration; all transcripts of the hearings and decisions before Judge McFadden 

on March 16,2007 and August 18,2009; and all transcripts of the hearings and decisions 

before Judge Gibler on December 14,2009 and May 17,2010. 

7. I certify: 

(a) That a copy of this Notice of Appeal has been served on each reporter of 

whom a transcript has been requested as named below at the address set out below: 

Name and address: Beryl Cinnamon (Hearing of March 16, 2007 on Motion for Partial 

Distribution), P.O. Box 2821, Hayden, ID 8383S; 

Name and address: Joann Schaller (Hearing of May 17, 2010 on Motion to 

Appeal), P.O. Box 9000, Coeur d' Alene, ID 83816-9000. 
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(b)(l) That the clerk of the district court has been paid the estimated fee for 

preparation of the reporter's transcript. 

(c)(l) That the estimated fee for preparation of the clerk's record has been paid. 

(d)(1 ) That the appellate filing fee has been paid. 

(e) 

to Rule 20. 

That service has been made upon all parties required to be served pursuant 

Dated this It.rPtday of ~t i 2010. 

L~ 
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Attorney for Maureen Erickson 
Personal Representative, 
Estate of Natalie Parks McKee 
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2 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

3 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Notice of Appeal was 

4- served by the method indicated below, and addressed to the following this /yrl- day of 

5 ~?kt~l..cu.- 2010. 

K U.S. Mail 
)( Hand Delivered 

Overnight Mail 
Facsimile 

;( U.S. Mail 
Hand Delivered 
Overnight Mail 
Facsimile 

U.S. Mail 
X. Hand Delivered 

Overnight Mail 
Facsimile 

X; U.S. Mail 
Hand Delivered 
Overnight Mail 
Facsimile 

)? U.S. Mail 
___ Hand Delivered 
___ Overnight Mail 
___ Facsimile, ______ _ 
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324 'West (jaraen .9tventu • P.O. '.Bo;c9000 - - .. 

Coeura'.9tfeneJ laatio 8381Q-f~CT 18 
pfwne: (208) 446-1136 P [1 L,: 4 7 

TO: Clerk of the Courts 
Idaho Supreme Court Building 
P.O. Box 83720 
Boise, Idaho 83720-0101 

DOCKET NO. 38130 
(Shoshone No. CV-06-40) 

(IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF 
(NATALIE PARKS MC KEE, 
( 

( Deceased. 

NOTICE OF TRANSCRIPT LODGED 
Notice is hereby given that on October 

15, 2010, I lodged, through the U.S. Post Office, all 
assigned appellate transcript(s) requested of me in the 
above-referenced appeal, entitled Transcript on Appeal, 
totalling 35 pages, an original and three copies, with 
the District Court Clerk of the County of Shoshone · in 
the First Judicial District. An electronic PDF file is 
attached to e-mail and sent to sctfilings@idcourts.net. 
A copy of this notice with the Table of Contents of the 
appeal transcript attached is faxed to the Idaho Supreme 
Court at 208 334-2616. 

NOTICE OF LODGING ORIGINAL TRANSCRIPT 

Phone # O<.~ () 
Fax # I, l 



TO: Clerk of the Court 
Idaho Supreme Court 
P.O. Box 83720 
Boise, 10 83720-0101 

2010 OCT 19 M1 9: 07 

DOCKET NO. 38130-2010 

( MAUREEN ERICKSON 
( 
( vs. 
( 
( JEROME S. McKEE 

NOTICE OF TRANSCRIPT LODGED 

Notice is hereby given that on October 19, 2010, I lodged 

a transcript of 20 pages in length for the above-referenced 

appeal with the District Court Clerk of the County of Shoshone 

in the First Judicial District. I have lodged all assigned 

appellate transcript(s) requested in the Notice of Appeal. 

12/14/09, Motion to dismiss 

~~e~/~ --- ---------------
Byrl Cinnamon 

October 19, 2010 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
ESTATE OF NATALIE PARKS 
MCKEE, 

Deceased, 
MAUREEN ERICKSON, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Personal Representative, ) 
Appellant, ) 

vs. 

JEROME S. MCKEE, 
Respondent. 

State ofIdaho ) 
County of Shoshone ) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 
DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE 

I, PEGGY WHITE, Clerk of the District Court of the First Judicial District of the State of 

Idaho, in and for the County of Shoshone, do hereby certifY that the foregoing Record in this cause 

was compiled and bound under my direction and is a true, correct and complete Record of the 

pleadings and documents required by Appellate Rule 28, as well as those additionally requested in 

the Notice of Appeal. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that the Court Reporter's Transcript (from two different Court 

Reporters) will be duly lodged with the Clerk ofthe Supreme Court along with the Clerk's Record in 

the above entitled cause of action. Please note there were two other transcripts that were prepared in 

re: to hearings in Magistrate Court that are being forwarded to the Supreme Court. 

Please further note that on page 104 and page 119 right next to the filing stamp there is a 

notation in re: to attachments, just to make the record clear the attachments that are attached to the 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE - PG 1 



Amended Motion for Reconsideration are one and the same that were attached to the Affidavit of 

Lloyd Herman on page 119. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that there were no exhibits which were marked for identification or 

admitted into evidence during the course of this action. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said court 

at Wallace, Idaho this 17th day of February, 2011. 

PEGGY WHITE, Clerk District Court 

.. ;.rv1 11 L1/>/1",,_ 
By ./ // \ t1t.,X.,q. ~ Deputy 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SHOSHONE 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 
ESTATE OF NATALIE PARKS 
MCKEE, 

Deceased, 
MAUREEN ERICKSON, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Personal Representative, ) 
Appellant, ) 

vs. 

JEROME S. MCKEE, 
Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

SUPREME COURT NO. 38130-2010 
DISTRICT COURT NO. CV-2006-40 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

TO: STEPHEN W. KENYON, Clerk of Supreme Court; LLOYD HERMAN for the 
Appellant and CHARLES DEAN for the Respondent: 

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that I have personally served or mailed, by certified 
United States mail, one copy of the Clerks Record (consisting of four volumes) and one copy of two 
different Court Reporter's Transcripts along with two other transcripts from Magistrate Court in the 
above entitled cause upon each of the following: 

LLOYD HERMAN 
Attorney at Law 
213 N University Rd 
Spokane W A 99206 

CHARLES DEAN 
Attorney at Law 
1110 West Park Place, Ste 212 
Coeur d'Alene ID 83814 

YOU ARE FURTHER NOTIFIED that, pursuant to Rule 29(a), Idaho Appellate Rules, all 
parties have twenty-eight days from this date in which to file objections to the Record, including 
requests for corrections, additions or deletions. In the event no objections are filed within the twenty­
eight day period, the Record shall be deemed settled. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Court 
this 17th day of February, 2011. 

766 PEGGY ~ITE~trict Court 
ByJ1} Al' Deputy 

t 
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